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I. BACKGROUND 

Ths  contract represents the continuation of USAID work to support the development of the 
financial infi-astructure of bank supervision and accounting at the National Bank of Ukraine 
( N W  

USAID has been providing technical assistance to the National Bank of Ukraine (NBU) since 
April 1995, to help strengthen its capacity to regulate and supervise the banlung sector The 
pnmary focus of the program has been to help the Bank Supervision Department (BSD) build up 
the pnmary components of prudential regulation, on and off-site examnation, problem bank 
resolution, and legal underpimngs T h s  program, however, m11 reach an impasse unless the 
U k r u a n  b d n g  system converts to international accounting standards (IAS) There is no 

@ poss~ble way that either the National Bank of Ukrame or the general public can get an accurate 
picture of the financial conditions of the banks unless the IAS system is adopted The Gosplan 
accounting system currently in use was designed for a time when the so-called banks served not 
as allocators of financial resources to the most efficient uses based upon price, but were a funnel 
of centrally planned financial allocations In such a system, risk and credit analysis had no role 
and the accounting system reflected this Therefore, it is cntical that this conversion to IAS be 
made as soon as possible 

The Governor of the NBU has asked that USAID broaden its program to include part~cular 
emphasis on the implementation stage of the development of international accounting standards 
in the commercial banks Bank supervision and internationally accepted accountmg conventions 
are interrelated prionties in building a market-onented private banking sector Conversion to 
IAS is one of the most important conditions in the World Bank's Financial Sector Adjustment 
Loan, which was implemented in 1997 It also forms part of the conditionally in the IMF 
program The implementation of IAS in the Ukraman commercial banks is a large undertaking 
and AID will be joined by EU TACIS and the British Know How Fund In this program 

The National Bank of Ukraine issued a draft accounting chart for commercial banks and 
instructions on the new accounts, based on IAS and existing requirements set up by the 
supervision and statistics sections of the NBU, in the first half of 1997 These documents will be 
used as guidelines by commercial banks during the implementation phase, which was planned to 

a begin in April 1997 
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The project began in June 1997 There were three resident foreign advisors two accounting @ specialists and one specialist in information technology (IT) for a total level of effort of 924 
person days The resident advisors were supplemented by a team of five local professional hires 
four accountants and one IT specialist, and local support personnel two translators and one 
administrator Total local hire level of effort was approximately 2500 days Benchmarks were 
set out for each quarter of the project However, the major implementation "event" was the 
installation of the new chart of accounts (COA) and revised reporting system in the NBU, the 
same that became effective on January 1,1998 

The project was conducted in two components The first component provided technical 
assistance to a group of pilot banks (PIBs) so that they could accomplish a rapld and correct 
transition from the Soviet-based accounting system to the new accounting system, whlch would 
be in substantial compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) In addition, the 
techca l  assistance was directed to ensure that PIB management understood and used correctly 
the IAS data produced from the new system This component of the project was conducted 
throughout the term of the project, June 1997 to September 30, 1998 

The second component was to asslst as many Ukraman banks as possible, the partlcipatlng bank 
group (PABs), w t h  an analysis and approval of their conversion keys from the existing system to 
an IAS-based system, to advise them on the use of IAS valuation and recoption rules for 
implementation b e g m n g  January 1, 1998, and assist them in the development of possible 
management information systems whch could be prepared from the new system Ths  

@ component began d m g  the 2nd quarter of the project, whch quarter ended December 3 1, 1997, 
and continued to September 30, 1998 

11. PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

The Task Order helps to fulfill the ENI Bureau's strategic objective to develop a more 
competitive and market-responsive private financial sector, and most specifically to develop the 
financial infi-astructure The specific objective of the task order is to support the Intensive 
transformation of a group of pilot banks to facilitate their use of the contemplated IAS-based 
accounting system At the end of the project, it is expected that the group of pilot banks w11 
have received techtllcal assistance necessary to 

Ensure a rapid and correct transition from the existing to the contemplated IAS-based 
accountmg system, 
Ensure a comprehensive and correct use by bank management of the IAS data to be produced 
under the contemplated system 

In addition, under the participating bank component, as many other Ukra~nian banks as poss~ble 
will receive expert approvals of their conversion keys ("bridge programs") from the existing to 
the contemplated accounting system, advice on the practical use of IAS valuation and recognition 
rules starting from January 1, 1998, and guidelines on the possible management information 
systems that can be built on the new standards 
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e 111. COMPONENT I PILOT BANK PHASE 

A ACTIONS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Quarter 1 Benchmarks (endlng September 30,1997) 

Selection of a small number ofpilot banks for the project 

The NBU's Commercial Bank Accounting and Reporting Unit (CBARU) prior to 
commencement of the project had completed the preliminary selecting of PIB candidates 

Diagnostzc studies of candzdate banks 

Since the initial group of PIBs subject to the diagnostic studies had been pre-selected by the 
NBUYs CBARU, the scope of the diagnostic studies focused on confirming and updating the data 
used in the pre-screemng process The diagnostics were conducted using a team effort with an 
overall busmess evaluation, scope of technical assistance and recommendation completed by the 
assigned accounting consultant This report was further supported by a financial analysis 
prepared by KPMG or Arthur Andersen & Co (two PIBs each), a report on the credlt portfolio 
prepared by John Gntzek, Treasury Advisor, and a report of the MIS capabilities of the PIBs 
prepared by the project's MIS consultant 

Dunng August the PIB diagnostic reports and conversion level recommendations were presented 
to the NBU/CBARU The four PIBs studied were recommended and the scope of our techmcal 
assistance was approved as submtted in the report Thls permitted us to begin actual IAS 
conversion field work at the four PIBs 

Preparatzon of zmplementatzon plans, mcludzng zssues ralsed as recommendations 
to management in the diagnostzc reports 

The project work plan was submitted to USAID in August 1997 based, initially, on the NBU's 
CBARU time line for IAS implementation This time line attempted a sigmficant acceleration of 
the benchmarks set forth in the terms of reference (TOR) It was our opmion at the bme that the 
ability to perform on the NBU time line was dependent to a large extent on the NBUICBARU 
issuing timely and complete instructions See Exhbit I 

Quarter 2 Benchmarks (endmg December 31,1997) 

Prelzmznary reformattzng of the exzstzng accounts to the new U S  accounts 
prescrzbed by the Nabonal Bank wzll be completed 

W~th the assistance of the on-site technical advisors, all PIBs were able to reformat their old 
Chart of Accounts (COA) to the new IAS-based COA using a bridge program developed by thelr 
respective accounting software providers (Mobieus and Unicorn) From the new COA "br~dge @ table", all the PIBs produced the init~al set of data files requested by the NBU start~ng as of 

- -- 
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October 1, 1997 While this represented significant progress towards the objective of an IAS 
conversion, the followng points need to be emphasized 

1 The bridging tables at all the PIBs only accomplished an account level "reshuffling" of 
financial data No attempt was made at any of the PIBs to implement a transaction level 
conversion and financial data reported is still based primarily on the Soviet system since, 
with the exception of the USAID PIBs as discussed in paragraph 3 below, IAS adjustments 
are not being made to the financial records With regard to the progress on transaction level 
conversion, there was no time to address this effort during the quarter since all technical 
advisory services and in-house resources at the PIBs were devoted to designing and 
redesigmng bridge tables and data files in response to a multitude of changes required by the 
NBU (1 e the "final" revised COA was not issued until November 21) 

2 The banking sector began submitting financial information to the NBU in more than 20 data 
files (not all of these data files were "formatted" by the NBU by the end of the quarter) 
Based on the information in these data files, the NBU is supposed to be able to produce more 
than 80 regulatory reports However, by quarter-end the banks were not furnished the 
software to produce the reports so, under the new reporting system, hard copy reports can not 
be generated at the bank level and reviewed for accuracy We urged the NBU to provide thls 
software to the banks 

3 In November, based on our recommendation, the NBU instructed the four, USAID PIBs to 
report based on IAS-adjusted balances as "recommended by the techtucal advrsors" We 

a thought it important that h s  begin early in the conversion process so that the procedures can 
be incorporated Into the accounting systems and the PIB staff trained We also recognized 
that formalization of this process and production of accurate IAS-based financial reports on a 
regular basis would take a signrficant amount of time and effort Based on the NBU "go- 
ahead", we prepared the IAS Adjustment checklist to assist the PIB accounting staff m the 
adjustment analysis Exhlblt 11 (1) 

Nomthstanding the above limitations, the TA teams at the PIBs made significant progress in 
generating, verifymg and reporting IAS-based financial information We developed a "bridge 
validation" software program to identify "account pairings" in the PIB bridge tables, which were 
not in compliance with the NBU bridge table Exhibit I1 (2) Thrs validat~on program was used 
at the PIBs for both home office and branch reporting We also prepared IAS-formatted financial 
reports from the basic monthly data file ("File 02") and met w th  senior management at each PIB 
to discuss the financial information and conversion issues 

Feedback gzven to the NBU's Commerczal Bank Accountzng and Reportzng Unzt 
(CBAR U) concerncng necessary modzficatcons to the chart of accounts and 
reportcng forms 

Our feedback to the CBARU was structured in two general areas 

1 Weekly, our TA teams met and, as part of each meeting, accumulated a list of "NBU Issues" 

0 with center largely on suggestions to improve the structure of the COA, correct instructions 
on the classification of transactions within the COA, and revise account painngs which are 
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inconsistent between the NBU and PIB bndge tables The most pertinent of these are e- rn mailed to CBARU wth  copies to the BSD and USAID Many of our suggestions were 
adopted in the final COA revision issued in late November 

2 During the quarter the CBARU issued drafts and final versions of directives covering 
accounting procedures for selected areas These directives are not really "Accounting 
Standards" but in describing the accounting methodology required, they often incorporate 
principles that need to be compared to IAS We compared the instructions in the drafts w th  
IAS and sent the CBARU our comments, pointing out any deviations from IAS An example 
of this process is the directive on accounting for investment securities By the end of the 
quarter, this directive had not been issued on a final basis but a forth draft was issued in 
December We had cornmumcated serious concerns to the CBARU on the first versions 
because the instructions contradicted IAS However, substantially all our recommendations 
were incorporated into the final version and this very important directive was in substantial 
compliance wrth IAS 

Quarter 3 Benchmarks (endmg March 31,1998) 

Fznal reformattzng of exlstzng accounts at pzlot banks to new U S  accounts wzll be 
completed uszng CBARU modzficatzons 

All general ledger accounts m the old system were reformatted at the PIBs to the new COA The 
"ending" account balances (12/31/97) were "bridged" to the "begimg" account balances 
(111198) under the new COA The year-end bridge validation program was used to ensure its 
compliance w t h  current CBARU modifications Starting w t h  the first busmess day of 1998, 
1/5/98, all transactions were coded duectly into the new COA, eliminating the need for further 
bridging The recording of transactions directly into the new COA (effectively a "transaction 
level" conversion) was significant progress towards the objective of an IAS conversion 
However, the PIBs could not prepare IAS-based internal financial reports fiom the new COA 
and, since they complied with NBU reporting, were not wlling to reprogram the in-house 
systems to do so In order to expedite t h s  process and further train PIB accounting staff in 
modern accountmg penod closings and statement preparation procedures, we enhanced the 
statement preparation program, Barracuda (see Exh~b~t  I1 (4)), and focused PIB TA on the 
process requ~ed to prepare timely and accurate IAS-based internal financial reports 

At least one traznzng class wrrll be presented to each pzlot bank zn the preparatzon of 
regulatory reports and the concepts of management znformatzon 

The tramng at the PIBs focused on the preparation of IAS-based internal financial reports and 
the analysis of these reports to assess the performance of the bank and identify major financial 
issues requiring management attention As stated above, regulatory reporting is accomplished 
through electronic submission of data files, not reports As of the end of this quarter, there still 
were no practical means to review the substance of this reporting at the bank level other than as 
the data in these files is extracted into IAS-formatted financial statements using Barracuda 

-- - - - 
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During the quarter, training sessions were conducted with the chief accountant and senior @ management (Board Chairman and President) of three of the four PIBs (the situation with VA 
Bank is discussed below) At these sessions, the format and content of the preliminary 1213 1/97 
financial statements were reviewed In addition, key balance sheet and performance ratios were 
calculated and compared to two other Ukrainian banks that issued IAS financial reports We 
focused the formal training meetings on senior management covenng the content and use of the 
internal reports being prepared under IAS in order to encourage using bank resources to sustain 
and enhance the new reporting systems Informal but intensive training is provided the 
accounting staff at the PIBs on an ongoing basis (See Exhlblt 111 for financial reports) 

At VA Bank, we identified some major problems in balances being reported in the Miscellaneous 
Asset and Clemng Accounts These problems had been "masked" under the old system but 
became obvious when we prepared some of the early IAS-formatted reports We advised senior 
management of t h s  issue in December 1997 and they referred the investigative process to their 
auditors, Arthur Andersen & Co htially, VA Bank management was reluctant to address this 
problem with the TA team However, after a senes of meetings w th  management at the highest 
levels, we reconfirmed their commitment to the timely resolution of the reporting problems and 
for the remainder of the quarter were able to proceed with TA to support system development 
and preparation of 1998 internal reports 

Quarter 4 Benchmarks (endmg June 30,1998) 

@ The pzlot banks wzll prepare a prelzmznary year-end 1997 balance sheet of the 
regulatory report (includzng detazl schedules on the loan portfolto, tnterbank funds 
and deposzts) Income and expense wzll be recorded m accordance wzth IAS 

As discussed previously, all regulatory reports to NBU are submitted in electromc data files As 
of December 3 1, 1997, commercial banks were limited in their programming capability to 
produce "hard copies" of these reports and their preparation was not requred by the NBU 
Therefore, PIB staff were unwlling to devote resources to preparation of NBU hard copy reports 
However, using the Financial Statement Preparation Program, Barracuda, the IAS-based 
December 3 1, 1997, financial statements were completed, including Balance Sheet, Income 
Statement, Cash Flow Statement, and footnotes, for all PIBs with the exception of VA Bank (see 
the discussion of VA Bank below) The database used for the preparation of these statements 
was the same data file submitted to NBU, wth  additional IAS adjustments Footnote 
information contamed the details of loans, fixed assets, and deposits The English versions of the 
complete statements are attached hereto as Exhbit I11 In addition, condensed December 31, 
1997 balance sheets based on IAS were provided to NBU for inclusion in the Commercial Bank 
Directory which was prepared for the May, 1998 annual EBRD Conference in l e v  

At VA Bank, the major problems m certain balance sheet accounts remamed unresolved at the 
end of June Discussions with senior management m April seemed to mdicate a wllingness on 
their part to provide the consultmg team wth  access to information from the outside auditors, 
and assistance with streamlining the information gathering process to eliminate barriers whlch 
were impeding our advisory efforts After several delays on resolving these issues, the technical 
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assistance program was suspended in early May and NBU was advised accordingly In mid-June, 
@ after a meeting with the USAID project officer and the project team leader, VA Bank agreed to 

the two conditions and advisory work was resumed 

VA Bank was substantially behind the other PIBs in preparing internal IAS financial reports, in 
part because of the disruption to the accounting organization resulting from the year end 
reporting problems (three senior managers, including the chief accountant, were suspended) 
Accordmgly, with the concurrence of USAID, we focused our advisory work on 1998 interim 
reporting, starting with the lSt Quarter, so training in that important process could be completed 
before September 30, 1998, and applied to future internal reporting We believe this was more 
important than going back to reconstruct December 3 1, 1997, as the bank's outside auditors, 
Arthur Andersen & Co , had already issued the financial report as of that date 

Models of approprzate znternal management reports wzll be presented to pzlot banks 
and a strategy developed wzth each bank that customzzes the system. 

A "menu" of thlrteen basic management reports was presented and discussed wth  the Chief 
Accountants of the PIBs as the first step in prepmng a development strategy for the production 
of these reports Ths  development effort needs to be preceded by first, reprogramming systems 
to produce the data files required by NBU, and second, developing procedures for the preparation 
of reasonably accurate intenm financial statements upon whch to base the information in the 
management reports The strategy agreed upon was to select those reports whch can be created 
from mformation already assembled in the NBU data files We concluded that three of the * thrteen reports could be created from extractmg information from the NBU data files As a 
demonstration of t h s  process, we developed a daily Foreign Currency Position Report from the 
daily "File 01" report submitted to NBU Ths  is a key risk assessment report not currently 
available in the PIBs Reference is made to the Management Reports section of the exhibits, 
(Exhlb~t 111 - 1) 

We belleve the core set of reports developed using this strategy, together with traimng in their 
use, provided the PIBs and PABs w t h  a "taste" of the benefits of tlmely management reporting 
Further, the programs developed are readily adaptable to other banks, again as an interim 
measure, until in-house systems can be reprogrammed to provide information customized to the 
bank 

Quarter 5 Benchmarks (endmg September 30,1998) 

The first batch of regulatory reports uszng avazhble 1998 data wzll be submztted to 
NBU so that the NBU can run baszc automated edzt checks on these reports 

Data for 1998 has been submitted on a regular basis to NBU in electronic data files since January 
1998 Because NBU requires only data file submissions, no "regulatory reports" are available 
As previously stated, we used the key data files (Files 01 and 02) as the source to produce 
internal financial reports using software programs developed by the project team Accordingly, 

a 
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we were able to perform reasonability tests on the data submitted The "automated edit checks", @ if any, performed on the data files at NBU was beyond the scope of our technical assistance 

The pzlot banks wtllprepare a$nal year-end 1997 balance sheet based on LAS 

Final year-end balance sheets, income statements, cash flow statements and footnotes thereto 
were completed in Quarter 4 at each of the PIBs with the exception of VA Bank as explamed 
above 

Each pzlot bank wzll prepare a final profit and loss statement, and a balance sheet 
for completed I998 quarters 

As explained above, 1st quarter (March 3 1, 1998) financial reports were completed at each PIB 
in Quarter 4 with the extensive "hands-on" training from the in-bank accounting consultants 
These reports were prepared using Barracuda 

During Quarter 5, senlor management of each PIB agreed that the internal accounting staff 
should complete the initial balance sheet and income statement for the second quarter (June 30, 
1998) again using Barracuda in order to confirm their capability to sustam t h s  reporting after 
termination of the techca l  assistance program The imtial balance sheets and income 
statements were completed w t h  a m i m u m  of techca l  assistance 

Phase Two of the statement preparation process followed, whch requued PIB staff to identify 
key accounts for analysis and verification in order to prepare "post-closing" adjustments The 
PIB staff were agam tramed in the use of the IAS Adjustment Checklist and given Excel 
templates with formats to document the phase two process However, sigmficant hands-on 
training was still requlred for its completion on a reasonable basis Once the correcting 
adjustments were made, financial statements, including cash flow statements, were prepared at 
all the PIBs (See Exh~b~t  IV ) 

a The balance sheet and profit and loss statement wtll be publrshed zn a spectal mzd- 
year edztton of the Dzrectory of Ukratnzan Banks 

As set forth above, dmng Quarter 4 condensed December 3 1,1997 balance sheets based on IAS 
for the PIBs were provided to NBU for mclusion in the Commercial Bank Directory which was 
prepared for the May, 1998 annual EBRD Conference in Kiev 

At least one traznzng sesszon wzth each pzlot bank wzll be held to filzalzze the 
customzzatzon of the internal management reports 

The followng management reports were completed during Quarter 5 All of these are in 
Ukraman and extract data from the banks' NBU data files 

1 Daily Foreign Currency Position 
2 Dsuly Funds Flow and Funds Management 
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3 Monthly Branch Performance 

Each of the reports was installed in the PIBs' designated computer and the staff responsible for 
its preparation was trained on a one-on-one basis In addition, as part of the "wrap-up" work 
session with seruor management, the content and use of the reports was explained 

As discussed below in the results of the PAB component the management reports were also 
presented in the Senior Executive Seminar conducted on August 28, 1998 

B PROBLEMS 

1 During the course of the project, we urged NBU to issue a comprehensive set of standards 
to gmde the banks in adopting IAS As of the end of the project, however, only the COA 
and four major accounting directives were issued on a final basis The directives are 
basically instructions and covered accounting for income and expense (accrual method), 
investment secmties, fixed assets, and loan loss provision Missing are instructions 
covermg key standards such as income tax accounting, consolidation, reporting changes 
in accountmg, financial denvatives, cash flow statement, and IAS 30 whch specifically 
covers disclosure reqwements for banks 

The banks wl l  not adopt any change in accounting unless specifically instructed to do so 
by NBU Even reference to the framework of the accounting system, whch is set forth m 
the instructions to the COA and conforms to the IAS framework, is not an acceptable 
authority to adopt an IAS compliant practice wlthout specific NBU instructions We were 
informed that the CBARU would form a new Accounting Standards Advisory Committee 
in Fall 1998 to expedite the development and issuance of accounting instructions 

2 During the last quarter of 1997 and the first half of the lSt quarter 1998, the PIBs devoted 
the majority of their accounting and IT resources to reprogramming their systems to 
accommodate the new COA and prepare the data files required by NBU Upon 
completion of this work, there seemed to emerge an overall complacency at both the 
NBU and wthin the bank accounting staff that the IAS conversion was completed In 
reality, the PIBs were still not applying IAS principles in recording many of their 
transactions and had not developed the in-house capability to prepare internal financial 
reports from the new COA Similarly, their ability to print out hard copy regulatory 
reports was limited as the program provided by NBU for t h s  purpose lacked account 
descnptions and was based on regulatory reportmg issues, not adherence to U S  

As stated above, Barracuda was deslgned to be an interim solution to compensate for the 
lack of in-bank software to prepare internal US-compliant financial reports Long term, 
the individual bank software must be reprogrammed to produce financial and 
management reports smce Barracuda does not "reach down" to the analytical account 
detail needed by bank management However, as of the end of the project, we noticed no 
efforts in the PIBs or PABs to develop customized software for this purpose In fact, 
based on meetings with several banks and advisors with the BSD, Barracuda remains the 
only software program available to prepare IAS compliant reports This demonstrates the 
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0 continued lack of understanding by senior management of the importance of accurate 
financial information 

3 Modem post-closing review and adjustment procedures were introduced at the PIBs and 
utilized in the preparation of 1'' and 2nd quarter financial reports However, these 
procedures, which are required to provide adequate internal control and reliable financial 
records within the new system, have not been made part of a normal accountmg cycle 
As a result, the procedures used to apply the accrual principles and other d~rectives of the 
NBU consist of a "patchwork" of new assignments with no coordination or control 
Again, all banks are wating for the NBU directive on the "Accounting Function" which 
was projected for issuance in May 1998 to begin reorganization efforts on the accounting 
operation As of the close of this project, that directive had not yet been lssued so PIBs 
were unwlling to reorganize their in-house accounting operat~ons without NBU approval 

4 A major part of the problem in training the accountants to use "post-closing" procedures 
is that the law in Ukrame prohibits retroactive adjustments to the financial records The 
accountants are therefore reluctant to spend time on h s  effort However, we had been 
urging NBU to require post-closing procedures for their reporting since accurate IAS 
financial reports can not be expected unless there IS a period of tme  after close to make 
correcting adjustments Sigmficantly, in September, 1998, NBU lssued a directwe that 
required banks to reflect post-closing adjustments in thelr monthly File 02 submssion 

e (due ten days after month-end) starting October 1, 1998 We are therefore optmlstic that 
the basic procedure we used in traimng both PIB and PAB staff wlll become part of the 
future NBU reporting requirements 

C RESULTS VS EXPECTED OUTCOMES AS PER SOW 

The project results at the PIBs meet substantially all expected outcomes in the SOW wth  the 
exception of the one PIB, VA Bank, which did not complete the December 3 1, 1997 financial 
report for inclusion in the Commercial Bank Directory At the same time, we are not optimistic 
that the financd reporting tools and procedures put into place at the PIBs d u n g  the technical 
assistance program wlll be sustained Every attempt was made during the course of the project to 
involve semor management in the financial reporting process and m the development and review 
of the resulting reports Meetings were held at least quarterly for this purpose At the end of the 
project, however, there was no evldence of a cornrnltment by semor management to sustain and 
further enhance thrs process For example, as ind~cated above, in-house resources were not 
allocated to software development for improved internal reporting National accounting firms 
audited only two of the PIBs However, the aud~t adjustments, as well as many of the IAS 
adjustments mcluded in the quarterly reports prepared wth  our ass~stance were never entered 
into the bank's financial records Accordingly, the reporting to NBU was still not accurate 
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IV. COMPONENT 11.. PARTICIPATING BANK (PAB) PROGRAM* 

With the approval of USAID, the structure of the advisory services to be provided for the PAB 
component was changed from the limited, on-site advisory program set forth in the original 
benchmarks to a senes of training workshops The purpose in making this change was to more 
efficiently deliver the combined technical resources of the USAID and EUITACIS teams to the 
PAB group as a whole The memo setting forth the revised program is attached as E x h ~ b ~ t  V 

A ACTIONS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

Quarter 2 Benchmarks (endmg December 31,1997) 

Partzczpatzng banks wzll be selected and each wzll be provzded wzth at least one 1- 
day zntroductory vzszt 

The PAB component got off to a late start NBU did not solicit for PAB candidates until the first 
week in December and the PAB group that responded to the solicitation was not approved by 
BSD until December 24 Accordingly, an introductory visit was not made during the quarter 
However, to launch the PAB component, IBTCI developed and orgamzed a technical 
presentation for the PAB group Thls presentation was delivered on December 26 and consisted 
of two techca l  areas 

1 Demonstration and tnumng in the bndge validation program The program, developed by 
IBTCI, was modified so that all banks could use it Each of the PABs in attendance was 
provided a disk copy of the program Mlth installation instructions 

2 Review of the IAS Adjustment Checklist and trainmg in how to develop a simlar tool in the 
PAB 

Quarter 3 Benchmarks (endmg March 31,1998) 

For the PABs, completzon of the revzew of the mappzng the banks have prepared of 
thezr exzstzng accounts to the new LAS system, ~ncludzng at least one day vzszt to 
each bank Traznzng sesszons gzven to these banks on how to prepare the new 
regulatory reports 

As discussed above, the structure of the advisory services to be provided for the PAB component 
was changed to a series of workshops in order to more efficiently deliver the combined technical 
resources of the USAID and EUITACIS teams to the PAB group as a whole 

The PABs were trained in the bndge validation program that verified their mapping procedures 
to m v e  at the opening January 1998 balance sheet Following the creation of the openlng 
balance sheet in the new COA, the PABs were coding transact~ons directly to the new account 
structure Accordingly, mapping was no longer required Regulatory reports were also not 
prepared, since, as previously stated, under the new system regulatory information is submitted to 
NBU via data files 
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In order to adjust the advisory work for the PABs to the current environment, a series of 
workshops was developed which trained the PAB representatives in the procedures and 
implementation tools used at the PIBs These were interactive workshops which reqmred the 
participants to use the tools in their banks and report on the results during workgroup sessions 
scheduled for the beginning of each succeeding workshop As scheduled, three such workshops 
were del~vered during the quarter 

Quarter 4 Benchmarks (June 30,1998) 

For the PABs, at least one-day szte vzszt wzll be made to each bank to dzscuss any 
on-gozng problems for the IAS converszon and strategzes developed whzch address 
these problems 

In keeping with the revised PAB program, worlung jointly wrth the EUITACIS team, we 
developed and delivered seven workshops to the PABs, completing the formal trsumng portion of 
the program All the implementation tools used in the PIBs were presented at these sessions and 
the PABs were given program disks to use in their banks The sessions normally began by 
orgamzing the participants into four small work groups (one for each IBTCI local h re  accounting 
consultant) During the work group sessions, the results of using the implementation tools in the 
banks were discussed and any questions were answered on a one-on-one basis The techmcal * workshop session followed the work group period 

Of the PAB group (approxmately 15 banks m total), six were active participants and very 
- - -  

responsive to the lrnplementation tools introduced Accordingly, we concluded there is a basis 
for limited in-bank technical assistance to t h s  group to complete the preparation of the lSt quarter 
financial reports begun during the workshops With USAID's concurrence, we expanded the 
scope of the PAB assistance to these "star banks" during the following quarter using the 
assistance of volunteer consultants from FSVC and IESC 

Quarter 5 Benchmarks (ending September 30,1998) 

For the PAB9s at least one 1-day szte vzszt wzll be made to revzew financzal 
statements prepared zn accordance wzth U S  
A final szte vzszt wtll be made to each PAB to revzew zmplementatzon of U S  and 
ensure zts smooth operatzon 

Under the revised USAID/EU/TACIS PAB program described above, techn~cal ass~stance to the 
PABs was scheduled to end with the June 1998 completion of the workshop series However, 
during t h s  quarter plans were finalized to expand the technical assistance program to the SIX 

"star" PABs identified in the workshop series Two senior techmcal adv~sors, Hans Jacobsthal 
from IESC and Dick Thorsen from FSVC, were provided on a volunteer basis to complete the 
training of the star PAB accounting staffs in the use of the IAS implementation tools for 
preparation of both lSt Quarter and 2nd Quarter financial reports Semor management at the 
PABs actlvely partlcrpated in the process through introductory meet~ngs and "wrap-up" working 

- 
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sessions to discuss the financial results The participation of the volunteers in the project enabled @ us to expand TA to these PABs beyond that originally contemplated in the benchmarks 

Early in the month, the decision was made to expand on the opportumty provided by the 
additional volunteer resources and we developed a seminar program specifically directed to 
senior management of the PIBs and selected PABs The focus of the program was to 
demonstrate for semor management the specific tools implemented in their banks to prepare IAS- 
based financial and management reporting and how t h s  reportmg should be analyzed to assess 
risk and evaluate performance The message was straightforward, when the TA wth  this group 
of banks phased out in September, it was senior management's responsibility to require the 
preparation of these reports if the IAS internal reporting process was to be sustained The 
seminar was held on August 28, 1998, and, despite vacation conflicts, there where a total of 35 
participants from the PIBIPAB group as well as representatives from the new EUITACIS PIBs, 
NBU and Bank Supervision Both volunteer executives delivered presentations at the seminar 
A copy of the seminar invitation and schedule are attached as Exh~b~t  VII 

B PROBLEMS 

There were no problems specific to the PAB component of the project However, those problems 
set forth as part of the PIB component are relevant to IAS bank accountrng reform for the entire 
banlung sector 

0 C RESULTS VS EXPECTED OUTCOMES AS PER SOW 

The actual results exceeded expectations because of the extra level of effort that was made 
available to the select PABs through the volunteers from IESC and FSVC Combined, these 
semor professionals added 35 days of t echca l  assistance which included both intensive in-bank 
assistance and high-level seminar presentations 

V ROLE OF AND COORDINATION WITH OTHER DONORS OR 
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ORGANIZATIONS. 

In addit~on to the efforts represented by the benchmarks set forth in sections I1 and 111 above, the 
project maintained a close and continued coordination wth  other projects in the banlung sector 
such as Bank Supervision, Bank Traimng Institute, EU/TACIS and the British Know How Fund 
In addition, project team members were called upon to advise other international financial 
organizations Examples of t h s  coordination follow 

In October and November of 1997, briefings on bank accounting reform were conducted wlth 
the visiting World Bank mission 
The project goals and lnltiatives in bank accounting reform were discussed mth 
representatives of USAID and other advisory teams involved wlth comrnerclal accounting 
reform and capital markets In October 1997 and, again, in February 1998, the IBTCI team 
met with Greg Hemphil and John Glover of USAID to discuss the PIB experience and its 
relevance to enterprise accounting We also partic~pated in several joint meetmgs of project 
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4D leaders from the enterprise accounting reform and Securities Commission teams to 
coordinate efforts in this area 
In February 1998, we met with an IMF team that was in Gev to evaluate NBU's bank 
supervision department We updated the team on the status of the accounting reform in the 
commercial banking sector 
Diana Slobodian, project accounting consultant, attended the April 1998 USAID sponsored 
regional accounting reform conference in Almaty, Kazakstan and participated in the panel on 
bank accounting reform Upon her return to Kiev, she prepared and delivered a summary on 
the conference to all USAID contractors involved with accounting reform in Ukraine See 
Exh~b~t  VI - 2 
Meetings were held wth  Michael Borish, USAID Consultant in Bank Sector Evaluation, and 
members of the project team as well as wth  senior management of OL Bank, a PIB, to assist 
Mr Borish in h s  sector evaluation 
Gary Fechtmeyer, project team leader, delivered a presentation on Bank Accounting Reform 
in Ukraine at the May 1998 Bank Supervision Conference in Budapest A Power Point 
outline of his presentation is attached as Exh~b~t  VI - 1 

VI. OTHER RELEVANT ISSUES 

Section V of the Task Order makes a general reference to a requirement for the consultants to 
"overhaul" the existmg accounting systems, mcluding the "design of new subledgers" to carry 

@ transaction level data Our experience at both the PIBs and PABs and, by extension, most of the 
other banks in the Gosbank system is that subsystems in the context of Western accounting 
practice are just not used except in very llmited instances (1 e , fixed assets) Instead, "analytical" 
accounts, whch are an integral part of the general ledger, are used to provide detail for control 
("synthetic") accounts We learned that it is both practical and feasible to acheve a transaction 
level conversion and IAS-based reporting using the existing system of synthetic and analytical 
accounts, provided a new COA and accrual basis procedures are adopted 

The design and implementation of subsystems that h c t i o n  similar to a modern, integrated bank 
accounting system is a major undertalung which, time wse, is beyond the scope of the typical 
project team and beyond the financial resources of most Ukrainian banks If subsystem design 
and implementation had been considered a prerequisite to acheving IAS accounting reform, 
NBU's success in accomplishmg the sector-mde implementation of IAS-based reporting would 
not have been realized Long-term, accounting efficiencies and comprehensive management 
reporting do require modernization of the underlying accounting systems However, thls process 
should not detract from the practical goal of achieving IAS-based reporting on a wde scale basis 

VIII CONCLUSIONS 

Despite the problems identified above in the PIB component of the project, the NBU was hlghly 
successful in achieving a substantial conversion to IAS-compliant methodology in the banking 
sector Although in the first year, the new reporting was still largely a "mechanical" process, the 
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theoretical framework is in place to build sound accounting practices and accurate financial @ reporting throughout the system 

The transition was not perfect but there were a number of factors that made it successful despite 
some of our imtial concerns First, the COA, whlle not m the standard Anglo-American 
structure, was a significant improvement over the Gosbank chart and was workable withn an 
IAS report~ng system Further, NBU required that a fairly rigid analytical account structure be 
incorporated into the new general COA so that banks could settle through Ukrsune's central 
payment system This rigidity is again not typical of a Western system However, it mandated 
that a sector-wde transaction level conversion be accomplished on the first banking day of 
January 1998 T h s  occurred wth  a minimum of disruption, eliminating the need to continue an 
unwieldy "bndging" system 

The NBU required that reporting be done only in electromc data files This resulted in an 
immediate void of internal reporting in the banks However, it provided the opportunity for the 
IBTCI team to develop practical software programs to prepare IAS-compliant reports from the 
data files These programs were adaptable sector-wide and the reports contained financial and 
management mformation addressing bank performance rather than regulatory data This 
provided an excellent opportumty to train senior management and accounting staff in the use of 
IAS-based financial reports 

As of the end of the project, the accounting practices and procedures followed in the banks were 

@ 
still very mechmcal and the internal controls necessary to produce accurate financial reports 
consistently have not been implemented The need continues for extensive advisory efforts in the 
followmg areas 

Adopting accounting and verification procedures, including an internal audit function, which 
insure the production of timely and accurate financial reports 
Traimng senior management to interpret and use the financial data to assess performance and 
manage nsk, and make informed management decisions 
Developing accounting systems which enhance internal control and improve the efficiency 

of the accounting function 

Internat~onaE Busmess & TechnrcaI Consultants Inc 15 



Nahonal Bank of Ukrarne - F~nancral Infrastructure Development 
Implementation of International Accounting Standards Frnal Report 

Exhibits 
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Exhibit I 
Summary Project Work Plan 
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lntroductron 

The Financial Infrastructure Development Project plan is a constraint based plan of the schedule, 
tasks, and responsibilities of the IBTCI project team and all the agencies and organizations 
whose activities impact on the project The plan will be updated monthly to coincide with the 
subm~ssion of monthly project reports Computer Associates CA-SuperProject for Windows, 
version 3 0 was used to develop the plan 

The plan is structured in two dimensions, vertical, by task, and horizontal, in time The first 
pages of the plan printout contain the task ID number, a short descnption of header and detail 
tasks, the project bar chart, with constraints, and scheduled and actual start and finish dates of the 
activities The following pages contain the Task ID number, a longer descnption of the task or 
header, and the actual duration of completed tasks Additional data fields can be added if needed 

Plan Structure 
The plan uses an hierarchical task structure with headings for major categories and detailed 
tasks indented under the headings Detailed tasks themselves may be headings for finer levels 
of detail, or links to sub-plans (e g individual pilot bank implementation plans) Detailed 
tasks often constrain performance of subsequent or parallel tasks under the same or different 
headings (see bar chart, below) It should be noted that tasks are identified by Task Name, not 
by Task ID number' The major task categories are 

NBU Tasks tasks which are NBU responsibility, and which constrain overall IAS 
conversion, per Addendum No 1 to NBU Decision No 237 of 21 July 1997 A key 
constraining task under this heading is Report file formats Develop standard reporting file 
formats (13) which is a primary constraint on final modifications to the bank's accounting 
and reporting systems 

Commercial Bank Tasks are the responsibility of commercial banks per Addendum No 1 to 
NBU Decision No 237 of 21 July 1997 Although the NBU has exempted the pilot banks 
from some schedule and reporting requirements under this heading, they too must carry out 
the activities prescnbed to implement IAS Most of these tasks w11 constrain, or be 
constrained by, the detailed tasks in the individual pilot bank work plan 

Pllot Bank Diagnosbc covers the candidate pilot bank diagnostics carried out in July, 1997, 
and which are completed A key task is Pzlot bank approval NBU approval of pzlot bank 
acceptance recommendatlons which constrains providing implementation support to the pilot 
banks 

Convert pdot banks covers pilot bank IAS conversion A separate, subsidiary detailed plan 
w11 be developed for each pilot bank and linked to th~s  master plan The plans for each pilot 
banks will have essentially the same structure, but wl l  differ in details of task duration, 
sequence, and internal constraints depending on the specific circumstances in each bank 

Task ID numbers are assgned by the project management system, and may change from time to time as the plan 1s 
expanded or updated Task names are generally permanent 



@ 
Post conversion includes tasks for assisting the pilot banks in finalizing the~r accounting 
procedures, developing management information reports, and delivering training We 
anticipate that this heading wl l  be expanded to identify tasks specific to each pilot bank 

Partic~patmg banks covers technical assistance to participating banks after the pilot bank 
implementation We have arbitrarily made this category dependent on completion of the pilot 
bank conversion, but if pilot bank resources and progress permit, work with participating 
banks can probably start well before the end of 1997 

Project act~vlt~es covers project management, planning and reporting activities The Project 
Plan task covers development of this general project plan Project reports includes tasks 
which detail the schedule of each monthly and quarterly report to AID, NBU, and IBTCI 
through the term of the project, ending with the final project report in September, 1998 

Task Duration and Constrarnt Relafronshrps 
Each detail task is assigned a duration and if appropriate, linkages to earlier and later tasks In 
addition responsibility (not shown on the plan printout for brevity) is assigned for each task 
Insofar as possible, assignments will be made by individual responsible for the task regardless of 
his or her orgamzational position so that absences at critical times (e g vacations) can be 
accommodated 

Duration is estimated in calendar days2 m two ways, 

@ assigned durahon, per the NBU plan cited above, and 

estimated duration based on the consultants' andlor responsible individuals' experience 
Estimated durahon can change based on performance in the pilot banks and by the software 
suppl~ers 

When a task is completed the actual duration is recorded for future reference 

Identification of constraint relationships between tasks are cntical for planmng There are three 
types of task links used in the plan 

P ~ n ~ s h  to Start (FS) constrants indicate that a task cannot begin until its predecessor(s) are 
completed For example, pilot bank implementation support cannot start until the NBU 
approves the project team's pilot bank recommendations 

Start to Start (SS) constraints indicate that a task cannot begin until a parallel task has 
begun For example, NBU momtonng of regulatory reports cannot begin until the pilot banks 
begin producing the reports 

Fmsh  to Fmsh  (FF) constraints indicate that a task cannot be completed until a parallel task 
is completed For example, accounting system changes cannot be completed until the NBU 
has issued its final, defin~tive definition of synthetic and analytical account coding 

This w~l l  be changed to work days when the Ukrainian holiday schedule is ~ncorporated into the project calendar 
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The type of task link is shown on the basr chart by the position of the lirdung arrows The 
significance of constraints is their effect on the overall plan when tasks are completed early or 
later then scheduled A task which is completed later than scheduled (or committed, for example 
by the NBU) will affect all subsequent tasks which it constrains and, if the task is on the critical 
path, the overall completion date of the project or one of its major parts Therefore monitoring 
actual start and complet~on dates of tasks under the responsibility of all the project participants is 
essential for project management 

Reading the Plan 

Page Headmg 
Date (upper left corner) the date the plan was printed 

Revwon number of the plan, to be used when referring to items on a specific plan report 
Revision numbers w11 always increase, but will not necessarily be consecutive 

Column Headings 
Task ID a numbered identification of each task used by the project management system 
(PMS) to orgamze its data base Task IDS can change from version to version of the plan 

HeadmgiTask the heading or task name, indented according to its place m the overall plan 
herarchy The task name is the pnmary identification of the task Note that only detailed 
tasks have duration The duration of headmg tasks is calculated based on the duration and 
start and fimsh dates of the tasks under the heading When resource assignments are shown 
on the plan the column wl1 be headed Headmg/Task/Asslgnment and the resource 
assignments listed under each task 

Bar Chart Covers the entire span of the project The scale can be expanded to individual 
days if necessary 

- Black bars are critical path tasks Completion of the project w11 be delayed if a 
cntical task is fimshed later then scheduled, and no compensating actlon IS taken to 
reschedule or reorgmze dependent tasks There may be more than one critlcal path 

- Shaded bars are normal, non-critical tasks whch can slip in tune wthout affecting the 
project completion date 

- Cross-hatched sections of bars indicate schedule anomolies, such as missing a 
specified start or end date, which affect the overall schedule 

- Arrows indicate constraming task llnks 

Status The current status of each task 

- Schd Scheduled 

- Prog in progress 

- Done finished 

- Crzt on a critical path 



Scheduled Start and Finish The date the task IS scheduled to start or finish This date can 
change if earlier constraining tasks take place at tlmes different than scheduled The symbols 
after some dates are 

= Must start on date > Must start after date < Must start before date 

Actual Start and Finlsh The actual start and finish dates of the task 

Descript~on. Task descnpt~on The number in parentheses In NBU and Commercial Bank 
task descnptions indicates the activity number In the IAS Implernentatzon Plan for the Second 
Half of 1997, per Addendum No 1 to NBU Decision No 237 of 2 1 July 1997 

Est Dur The estimated duration of the task, either pre-specified (e g NBU planned tasks) or 
calculated by the PMS Header task do not have estimated durations because their duration is 
calculated from the detailed tasks under the header 

Actual Dur The actual duration of the task when finished 

Task Type The type of schedule or durat~on assigned to each task 

- ASAP As soon as possible Schedule calculated by the PMS based on predecessor 
and successor task relationships 

- Start Before, On or After the preset fimsh date of the task 

- Fznzsh Before, On or Afer the preset finish date of the task 
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- 
Tas 

ID 
-- 
PI  
001 
002 
003 
004 
005 
006 
007 
008 
009 
010 
01 I 
012 
013 
014 
015 
016 
017 
01 8 
019 
020 
021 
022 
023 
024 
025 
026 
027 
028 
029 
030 
031 
032 
033 
034 
035 
036 
037 
038 
039 
040 
04 1 
042 
043 
044 
045 
046 
047 
048 
049 
050 
051 
052 
053 
054 
055 
056 - 

Head~nglTask 
4 Days Per Column 

3ANK IAS PJ 
N B U ~ S ~ S  
NBU plan 
COA conversion table 
Confirm report forms 
IAS ~nstructlons 
Automahon reqts 
Reg~onal fraln~ng 
Account parameters 
Report file formats 
CB staff tra~nlng 
Anafytrcal changes 
Problem bank reports 
Monrtor prlot reports 
Confirm IAS trans~t 
Report analys~s 
Comment response 
Fmal~ze COA 
Instruction 10 change 
Final~ze reportmg 
Software changes 
Software controls 

Commeraal Bank Tasks 
Form IAS work groups 
IAS plans 
COA & report study 
Pro ose changes 
~nd)ging tables 
Analvtiml account #S 
~grekment inventory 
Reportmg comments 
Re register cl~ents 
Inform chents new #s 
Off balance sheet act 
IAS software changes 
P~lot Balance sheets 
Rpt software changes 
P~lot bank reports 
CB balance sheets 
CB reports 
Legal enhty reports 
Entlly reporbng 
Monthly reports 

P~lot bank d~agnoshc 
ln~hal meetings 
VABank 
Forum Bank 
Olbank 
Slavuhch 
Bank MIS 
Credrt 
D~aanostic Report 
Pit01 bank approval 

anvert o~lot banks 

OlBank converslon 
Forum converslon 

11997 1 ( 1998 ) Status 
JUI J ~ u g  1 sep 1 uct 1 NOV 1 Dec 1 Jan 1 keb ( Mar 1 APr 

- 

Progl 
DonelCnt 
~ o n e l ~ n i  DonelCrit 

ProglCnt 
Schd 
Progl 
Schd 
Schd 
Schdl 
Schdl 
SchdfCnt 
Schdl 
Schdl 
Schdl 
Schdl 
Schdl 
SchdlCnt 
SchdlCnt 
Schd 
SchdlCnt 
Progl 
Prog 
ProgJCnt 
ProglCnt 
Schdl 
Schdl 
SchdlCrit 
SchdlCnt 
Schdl 
Schdl 
Schdl 
Schdl 
SchdlCnt 
SchdfCnt 
Schdl SchdlCnt 

SchdlCnt 
SchdlCnt 
SchdlCnt 
Schdl 
Prog 
ProglCnt 
DonelCr~t 
DonelCnt 
DonelCnt 
DonelCrit 
DoneICn t 
DonelCnt 
DonelCnt DonelCnt 

P~O~IC~I t ' 
Schdl 
SchdlCr~t 
SchdlCnt 
SchdlCnt 

I I 

Page I 
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Task 
ID 

P I  
001 
002 
003 
004 
005 
006 
007 
008 
009 
010 
011 
012 
013 
014 
015 
016 
017 
018 
019 
020 
021 
022 
023 
024 
025 
026 
027 
028 
029 
030 
031 
032 
033 
034 
035 
036 
037 
038 
039 
040 
041 
042 
043 
044 
045 
046 
047 
048 
049 
050 
051 
052 
053 
054 
055 
056 

Schedulec 
Start 

24/06/97: 
3W 06/97 
011071 97 
301 06197 
011 071 97 
01107197 
27/06/97 
151 071 97 
21107197 
04/08/97 
17/09/97 
20108/ 97 
011 101 97: 
28/071 97 
28111197 
07110197 
141 10197 
03111197 
04/11/97 
0 2  12/97 
111 12/97 
011 09197- 
01107197 
01107/97 
031 071 97 
21107197 
21107197 
211 071 97 
30107197 
30107197 
23107197 
20108/97 
08/091 97 
19108/ 97 
311 071 97 
011 101 97= 
291 08/97 
151 101 97= 
011 111 97= 
151 111 97= 
02/091 97 
311 12/97 
01108/97= 
24/06/97 
2410W 97 
OW071 97 
08107197 
071 071 97 
131 071 97 
01107197 
011 071 97 
30107197 
011081 97 
071 08/97 
081081 97 
08108197 
08/081 97 

Complete [AS methodology ~nstructions (6) 
Develop automation requirements outline (8) 
Conduct reglonal training & semlnars re IAS (5) 
Analyze analytical account parameters (12) 
Develop standard reportmg file formats (13) 
Organize CB personnel tralnmg re NBU methods (17) 
Amend anal ~cal accounting parameters (18) 
Deude on I& problem bank reporthg (21 
Mon~tor new p110t bank finamal repomng b 3 )  
Confirm CB transition to IAS (35) 
Fmancial and statistical report analysis (26) 
Mod~fications In response to bank comments (27) 
Preoare final verslon of COA (28) 

Actual Scheduled Actual 
Start F~nlsh F~n~sh 

-- 
241 061 97 281 091 98 
301 061 97 131 021 98 
011 071 97 211 071 97 211 071 97 
301 061 97 211 071 97 211 071 97 
011 071 97 211 071 97= 211 071 97 

Description 

--- 
Ukrarne Financial Infrastructure Development Project 
NBU tasks which constram overall IAS conversion 
Issue lAS impiementatlon Ian for non pilot banks 0) 
Prepare 6 distribute draft ~ O A  convenlon tables (h) 
Confirm reoort forms and due dates (4) 

  st 
Dur 

011 071 97 221 091 97 
311 071 97= 

151 071 97 171 091 97 
291 081 97= 
291 081 97= 
101 121 97 

22/ 091 98 
111 081 97 281 011 98 
!41 061 97 071 08/ 97 
!4/ 061 97 271 061 97 271 061 97 
161 071 97 311 071 97 311 071 97 
18/ 071 97 211 071 97 211 071 97 
171 071 97 241 071 97 241 071 97 
31 071 97 251 071 97 251 071 97 
111 07/97 251 071 97 251 071 97 
111 071 97 301 071 97 301 071 97 
I01 071 97 011 081 97 011 081 97 
111 08/ 97 071 081 97 

261 031 98 
251 121 97 
251 12/ 97 
251 121 97 

10dy 
20dy 
24dy 
60dy 
25dy 
47dy 
30dy 
20dy 
60dy 
30dy 
30dy 
90dy 
15dy 
60dy 
30dy 
20dy 
20dy 
lOdy 
15dy 
120d) 

30dy 
22dy 
60dy 
l OOdy 
40dy 
30dy 
30dy 
60dy 
30dy 
60dy 
30dy 
60dy 
70dy 
30dy 
60dy 
50dy 
40d 
20d; 
90dy 
80dy 

:8y 
12dy 
15dy 
5dy 
16dy 
16dy 
3dy 
5dy 

OOdy 
OOdy 
OOdy 

propose changes to lnstructron li) (29) 
Finalize financial and statishcal reportmg (30) 
Modify NBU software re new reporting results (31) 
Controls for data collection software comphance (32) 
Commerdal bank actrvlties requ~red by NBU work plan 
Form IAS work groups & desi nate managers 1 
Develop IAS conversion &r NBU regions 
Organ~ze study of approved COA & reporting (14) 
Propose changes to COA and report forms (7) 
Prepare analytcal I synthetic account bndging table (9) 
New analytical account numbenng scheme (10) 
Create new agreement inventory data base (11) 
Analyze and commend on reportmg forms (22) 
Rsregister and recode chents (19) 
Inform clients of new numbenng system (33) 
Develop off balance sheet account numbenng (15) 
Mod~fy accounhng & subsystems for IAS (34) 
Pilot bank balance sheets to oblast NBU (24) 
Re orting sohare mod~fications (34) 
l~gf inandal and stat~st~cal reports to oblast NBU (25) 
IAS balance sheets to oblast NBU (24) 
IAS finandal and stahshcal reports to oblast NBU (25) 
Pre are and deliver inittal legal entity reports (20 
~ e l t e r y  of standard ent~ty reports to Obiast NB J (36) 
Monthl implementat~on reports to Oblast NBU (16) 
~ a n d l d t e  pilot bank diagnoshcs 
ln~t~al meehngs wth cand~date p~fot bank management 
VaBank dlagnostlc 
Forum bank d~agnostic 
Olbank diagnostic 
Slavutich bank dragnostic 
Diagnostic of cand~date pilot bank systems 
Dlagnosos if pilot bank credit posit~ons 
Develop and deliver diagnostic report(s) 
NBU approval of pilot bank acceptance recommendations 
P~lot bank IAS converston 
VABank IAS conversion 
OLBank IAS conversion 
Forum Bank IAS conversion 
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Actual ,,,- 
22di 
21dy 
22dy 
2ldy 
Odv 

odjr ASAP 
Odv I ASAP 

ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
Fmsh On 
ASAP 

0d: 
Ody 
Ody 

5 
3 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Odv 

0 d i  ASAP 
Ody / Finish On 
Ody F~nish On 

~ h s h  On 
ASAP 
F~nish On 

y&O" 
F~nish On 
start On 
Fmsh On 
F~n~sh Before 
ASAP 
ASAP 
F~n~sh On 
F~n~sh On 
F~nrsh On 
F~n~sh On 

Ody F~nish Before 
Ody F~nrsh Before 
Odv 1 ASAP 
0djr 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 

%$ 
Ody 
Ody 
29dy 
4dy 
19dy 
lOdy 
14dy 
10dy 
19dv 

Start On 
F~nlsh Before 
Start On 
Start On 
Start On 
F~n~sh On 
ASAP 
StartOn 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 

!2d$ 
3dy 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 
Ody 

ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 



Flnancral lnfrast~cture Development Project 

081 081 97 
071 081 91 
011 121 97 
011 121 97 
031 041 98 
091 011 98 
151 051 98 
301 101 97 
301 101 97 
301 101 97 
131 11197 
011 121 97 
Dl1 081 97 
311 081 97 
311 081 97 
311 081 97 
311 091 97 
311 10197 
311 101 97 
31/11/97 
311 121 97 
111 011 98 
311 011 98 
I11 021 98: 
111 031 98. 
Ill 041 98: 
I11 041 98' 
111 051 98: 
Ill 061 98: 
I11 071 98: 
I11 071 98: 
111 081 98: 
111 091 98: 
151 091 98: 

Actual 
Start 

Ill 081 9 
111 081 9 

Schedule 
F m h  

251 121 91 
261 031 9E 
141 071 9E 
031 041 9E 
261 061 9E 
151 051 9E 
141 071 9e 
071 091 9E 
271 111 97 
131 111 97 
011 121 97 
071 091 98 
281 091 98 
061 081 97 
281 091 98 
051 081 97 
041 091 97 
051 101 97 
071 101 97 
051 11197 
041 121 97 
051 011 98 
071 011 98 
041 021 98 
041 031 98 
D5104198 
071 041 98 
951 051 98 
341 061 98 
351 071 98 
371 071 98 
351 081 98 
141 091 98 
281 091 98 

Slavuttch Bank IAS convenlon 
Coordlnation of reportrng w~th NBU Bank Supervision 
Post conversion sup ort for p~fot banks 
Assist in finallzing pikt bank accounting procedures 
Delwer re ulatory and acaountlng trainrng to PlBs 
Asslst in deeveioping management mformation reports 

Actual 
Flnlsh 

Descnptlon 
- 

ESt 
Dur 

61 081 97 

Task 
Type 

Support for partrdpating banks 
Develop sup ort program for partlcl ating banks 
Select parti&ating banks for technkl assistance 
Develop technical assistance plans for selected banks 
Delwer TA to parhc~pating banks (to be detalied) 
Genenl project actrvities plannmg and reportrng 
Develop general project Ian 
Reports to AID NBU IB?CI 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Quarterly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Quarterly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Quarterly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Quarterly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Monthly report to AID 
Final project report to AID 

-- 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
start On 
ASAP 
ASAP 
ASAP 
4SAP 
4SAP 
4SAP 
4SAP 
4SAP 
4SAP 
GAP 
\SAP 
Start After 
Start After 
Start On 
Start After 
%tart After 
start After 
;tart After 
Start After 
;tart After 
start After 
;tart After 
start After 
;tart After 
;tart After 
;tart After 
;tart After 
;tart After 
;tart Aft er 
;tart After 
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Exhibit I1 - 1 
IAS Adjustment Checkllst 

Handout for Partmpatlng Banks 
Updated May 1998 

Securitzes 
a Interest accrual andlor amortization of discount/premium 
b Selection of amorlzation method (straight-linelinterest method) 
c Categorization of trading and investment portfolios 
d Calculation of market values 
e Market adjustments based on IAS 25 
f Restatement of treasury stock to cost and reclass to contra-capital 
g Investment in affiliates (Equity method vs Consolidation per IAS 

22,25,27,3 1) 
Loans 
a Interest, comrmssion and fee accruals 
b Loan loss reserve calculations 
c Disclosure of non-accrual loan policy 
d Disclosure of related party loans and loans to employees (IAS 24, 

Subject areas / Adjustment Deta~ls 

30) 
Fzxed Assets and Intangibles 
a Reclass of Indexation adjustments to separate capital account (5 100 

and 5101) 
b Classification of operatmgfnonoperating assets 
c Adjustment of depreciat~on/arnortiza~on 
d Determination of depreciation on indexationlrevalution, cumulative 

and period amount 
e ~ e v i e w  of operating leases and capitalization of those considered 

financing leases by IAS 
f Other per IAS 4, 11, 16, 17 
Deposzts and borrowings 
a Interest accruals 
b Disclosure of related party and employee deposits 

Res- 
ponsible 

- ~ 

c Review of trust agreements - (~x&islon of bona fide trust 
accounts from BS and Proper reclassification of directed 
investment / deposit accounts) 

d Review of terms/conditions of borrowmgs and appropnate 

Done 
(4)  

Person 

classifications and disclosures 
Clearzng accounts, interbranch lendzng/borrowzng, and technzcal 
adlustments 
a Analyze content and reclassify according to substance 
b Eliminate interbranch balances in consolidat~on 
c Ellmlnate foreign currency technical accounts (3800-3801) 

checklist doc page 1 of 2 



NBUAJSAIDIIBTCI 

Capztal (other than adlustments and reclasses related to loans and 
fixed assets, above) 
a Proof of account 5900 to sum of 6000 and 7000 series accounts 
b Division of statutory capital into par capital and capital in excess of 

Par 
c Prepare statement of changes in capital accounts 
d Loan reserves (see 2d above) plus review general reserve (5020) 
e Indexation (see 3b above) 
f Treasury stock (see l e  above) 
Income and Expense accruals 
a Administrative expenses 

1 Accrued payroll, vacations, financial assistance and related 
taxes 

2 Operating expense accruals for rent, telephone and other 
utilities 

a M~sc  Other income accruals not covered in loan area (e g 
safekeeping, registrar agreements) 

b Income tax expense, includmg current and deferred portions and 
related assetsliiabilitles (IAS i 2,30) 

Off-balance sheet actzvztzes and accounts 
a Trusts (see additional techmcal guidance) 
b Letters of credit and other forms of guarantees 
c Repos and reverse repos 
d other commitments - 
e Foreign exchange and derivatives 
f Off-balance sheet nsk reserve (acct 3690) 
Other dzsclosures 
a Basis of accounting (IAS 1) 
b Non-accrual loan policy (see 2c above) 
c IAS 25 policies re valuation and affiliates (1) 
d Related parties (2b, 4b) 
e Asset lives, depreciation method, indexation adjustments (3) 
T Calculation of effect of accounting changes (IAS 8) 
g OtherperLAS 1,5, 10, 13, 14, 15i18, 19,20,21,22,23,24,30 
Cash flow statement gatherzng (prelzrnznaw Ezst-for 1 January 
reportzng - L4S 7) 
a Must have beginning and ending blance sheets 
b Must have corrected Income statement 
c Must have statement of changes in capital accounts 
d Brutto analysis of securities purchases and disposals 
e Brutto analysis of fixed and intangible asset purchases and 

disposals 
f Brutto analysis of activity in all income tax accounts (7900 and 

3520/3521,3620/3621) 
g Prepare CFS following IAS 7 guidance 

checklist doc page 2 of 2 



Invalid Bridge Table Account Pairs for OLBank XKXX - number in NBU t a K  - = number NOT ~n NBU table 0 par not ~n N 4 le 

Account Number 
Old New 

Match 
NBU? Paffern 
N - - - -0- --- 

N X X X X ~ - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N ---- 0 ---- 

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N X x x x 0 - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N XXXXQ----  

N x x x X 0 - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N XXXXD----  

N X X X X ~ - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N XXXXO---- 

N X x x X 0 - - - -  

N X x X X 0 - - - -  

N X X X X ~ - - - -  

N X X X X ~ - - - -  

N X X X X ~ - - - -  

Bank 
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Comment 
Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

Not In NBU table 

I 

Page 
N 



Account Number Match 
o ld  New NBU? Pattern Bank Pairs 

976 0000 N xxxx0---- 0 3 
Corn, It 

Not m NBU t a d  

Not in NBU table 

Not in NBU table 

validated 2M1111997 

validated 26/11/7997 

validated 26/14/1997 

validated 26/11/1997 

added 26/11/1997 

added 26/11/1997 

Bank notes and coins at currency exchange sltes 
~ ~ H K H O T M  TO MOHeTO B O~MIHHUX IlyHKTaX 
Travel checks and other checks at currency exchange s~tes 

A o p o m ~ ~  WKU B O~MIHHHX nYHKTaX 
Short term loans, obtained from the National Bank of Ukraine through auct~on 
KO~OTKOCT~OKOE~ KpeAWU, RKI OTpUMaHl WPe3 ClYKUlOH 61A H ~ U I O H ~ ~ ~ ~ H O ~ O  6 a ~ ~ y  YKPQIHM 
(contra asset account) Non amortized d~scount from debt securlt~es refinanced by the Nattonal Bank of Ukraine ~n bank 
(KOHT~C~KWBHM~~ P ~ X ~ O K )  H e a ~ o p ~ u 3 0 ~ a ~ u i j  AUCKOHT 30 60p rosu~u  UIHHMMM nanepaMM, I40 P ~ ~ I H ~ H ~ I O T ~ C R  

Accounts payable on cash transactions 
KpenuTop~bKa 3a60proeo~lcrb 3a OflepOUlmU 3 rOTlBKOIO 

Long term loans for current needs extended to md~viduals 
~ o s r o c r p o ~ o ~ l  Kpeflm, RKI HanaHI + ~ H W H W  O C O ~ ~ M  Ha n o ~ O ' l ~ l  n o ~ p e 6 ~  

added 26/11/1997 Long term loans for acquisitron of buildings construct~ons equ~pment and land extended to indlvlduals 

f l o~ roc rpo~os l  KpeAWU, 9KI H0.4aHl ~ I ~ U W H U M  O C O ~ ~ M  Ha KyfllBflD 6ynleenb, cnopyn 06flaJlHa~HR Ta 3 e ~ n l  
validated 2611 111997 Targeted demand funds of business entitles 

b l b 0 ~ 1  KOUITM A0 3anMTaHHR 4 €KT18 TOCflOflQPCbKOl PlRnbHOCTl 
validated 26/11/1997 Short term deposits of business entitles 

K o p o ~ ~ o c r p o ~ o s ~  nenO3UTU EKTlB rOCRO.4apCbKOl AlRnbHOCrl 
validated 26/11/1997 Short term deposits of business ent~tles 

K o p o ~ ~ o c r p o ~ o s ~  .4€!n03Um &€KTIB ~OCnOAaPCbKOI AlRnbHOCTl 
validated 2Wt lM997 Short term deposits of business entitles 

KO~OTKO~OKOBI  Aefl0311TI.r @€KTIB rOCnO@YpCbKOl .4lRflbHOCrl 
added 26/1 111 997 Accounts payable on inactive accounts of clients 

Kpenmopcb~a 3a6oproaa~lcrb KnlEHTlB 30 HenlIOqUMU paXyHKaMM 
added 2611 1 11 997 Accounts payable on inactive accounts of clients 

Kpenn~opcb~a  306oproea~lcrb K~I~HTIB 3a Henlormu PaxyHKaMu 
added 26/11/1997 Accounts payable on inactive accounts of clients 

Kpenu~opcb~a  aa6oprosa~lcl-b lCn1hHTlB 3a HeAl~WMU PaXYHKaMN 
added 26/11/1997 Accounts payable on inactive accounts of clients 

KpepITopcbKa aa6oproea~lcrb KnleHTlB 3a HenlIOqUMU PaXyHKaMM 
val~dated 26/11/1937 Other accounts payable on transactions with clients 

l ~ w a  Kpe.4MTOpCbKa aa6oprosa~lcrb 3a onepaLwv.4u 3 KnlcHTaMw 6 a ~ ~ y  
er accounts payable on transactlons wlth cilents 

IHU~ KpenWOpCbKa 3 a 6 0 p f 0 B a ~ l ~ ~ b  3a ORepaQlflMU 3 KnIEHTaMU 6 a ~ ~ y  
validated 2611111 F~nancial entities (not bank) issued shares and other Investments wlth vanable profit in the bank portfolio for sale 

AKUII TCI lHWl UIHHI nanepU 3 H ~ ~ I K C O B C ~ H M M  ~PM~YR(OM Y n ~ p ~ $ e n l  6 a ~ ~ y  Ha npOnaX flKI BMrIyUeHl 
validated 2611 1MW7 Other shares end securities with variable profit in bank portfolio for sale 

IHWI CIKUII Ta UIHHI nanepH 3 H~+IKCOB~HUM n p u 6 y r ~ o ~  y nopr+em 6 a ~ ~ y  Ha npogam 
added fo 1Z1 Z1997 Stored low value items 
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Account Number Match 
Bank Pam 

v a l l d a t e ~ ~ k & 3 7  

vahdated 2611 111937 

validated 2W 111997 

added k 121 2/1997 

added fo 12/12~1997 

validated 26/11/1997 

validated 26/11/1997 

validated 26/11/1997 

validated 26/11/1997 

added 26/11/1997 , 

added 2611 111 997 

added 26/11 11 997 

added 26/11/1997 

added fo 12/12/1997 

added 26/11/1997 

added 26/11 I1 997 { 
added 264 111 997 

C 

Accounts receivabb on purchase of foreign currency and bank metals for banus own account 

Ae61~0p~bKa 3a60pr0BCI~lCrb 3 n p u n 6 a ~ ~ 1 1  lH03eMHOI BantoTn TP ~OHKIBC~KHX MeTanlB 3CI PQXYHOK ~ Q H K ~  

Accounts payable on purchase of foreign currency and bank metals for banus own account 

Kpenwropcb~a 3CXfjoproBa~lCrb 3 II~U~~~CXHHR IH03eMHOI BLUIOTU Ta ~(IHKIBC~KHX MeTanlB 38 PCXYHOK 6 a ~ ~ y  
AL Clearing accounts on settlements In transactions wth secur~t~es 
A n  Kn~pu~roe~ paxy~w 3a ~ O O ~ ~ X ~ H K C I M H  3Q onepau~n~n 3 UIHHWMM nanepaw 
Credlt amounts under Investigation 

KpeAn~oel CYMH A0 ~'I~CYBOHHR 

Credit amounts under investigation 

Kpenwroe~ CYMH A0 ~'%CYB~HHR 
Accounts opened In bank establishments located In Ukraine 
P ~ x ~ W I ,  I40 BlAKPHTl B YCraHOBClX ~C~HK)', RK1 P03TaIUOBClHI B YKPOIHI 
Settlements on credit resources extended to bank establishments located in Ukrame 

P03paxyHW 3a KOUITClMM, HClAClHHMM YCTCIHOBCIM ~CIHKY, RKI POOTCllLlOBQHl B Y K P ~ ~ H I  
Investments in construction in progress and in operatmg fixed assets prior to start up 

k f l l ~ a n b ~ l  BMClAeHHR 3a He3aBepIUeHW ~Y~IBHULCTBOM I 3Q HeBBeAeHMMU B eKCllnyClTaUll0 OnePQUIMHMMU 
Complete capital investments in leased opemtmg flxed assets 

3aBepIUe~l KanlTWlbHl BKJlaAeHHR 3a 0nepa~ l f i~WLi  OCHOBHWM 3aco6a~u I~PH~~HFITMMH B O ~ ~ ~ T U B H H ~ ~  nl3uHr 
General provisions 

3aranb~1 pesepsn 
General provisions 

3aranb~1 peaepew 
General provisions 

3aranb~1 pe3epau 
General provisions 
3aranb~1 peaepeu 
To be translated 
A n  k3yflb~QT TOpnBJll IHO3eMHOK) BQnlOTOtO TQ ~C~HKIBC~KHMU MeTanCYMLI 
To be translated 

~HUII ~CIHKIBC~KI 0 ~ @ p C I ~ t k ~ l  BUTpTM 

To be translated 
Cnna~a IHIUUX ~ O A ~ T K I B  Ta 0606 ~ ~ K O B U X  nnmexm, K ~ I M  nonamy Ha npw6yron 
To be translated 
Bnrpaw Ha IHWl CUffeMU ~CIHKIBC~KO~O 3B R3KY 

Page 3 



BHHMAHMEI 
1) BCE MHHblE HA 3EJlEHHOM (nmcr MVM) H CEPOM (nmcr 6A3A) nOnFlX BBOLlFlTCFl llOnb30BATEnEM 
2) WHHblE HA OCTAnbHblX nOJlFlX (benblx) H JlMCTAX l l O W I W T  KOHTPOnK) H OTPMEHMK) B N E T €  ll0 MCKO 
3) ECJlM nPOMCXO~Wl0 IlEPEMEUlEHHE OBI3 M W  llOPT@EflFIMM (7 e m3 nopr4) na nponaxy e noprct, Ha mneecTnq m nao6opor) 

TO B KOHUE TAEnUUbl ( ~ a  nncn MVM wanpome Kamoro ay~qtfona) HEOSX YKA3ATb - "l7EPEMELUEHHE" M M3 KAKOrO nOPT@EJlFI 
4) ECflM OAUH n TOT XE AYMIJHOH IlOWnAETCFI ( ~ ~ P o M ~ T C F I )  no YACTFlM TO HEOSXODMMO OTPAXATb 

W Y K )  IlPOpIBAEMYD (~IPHO~PE~HHYK))  YACTb (CM ayrq NP 303 317 m3 noprct,enfI Ha nponancy) 

v 

Pam& 
aBlUMa 
wrecKuu 

I 
aMOpTJlpSM 
Oflep-aMOpT 
onep-a~opr 

TRD 
I 

HA OCHOBE BBWEHblX/&4HHblX IlPOrPAMMA nPOM3BOnMT PACqET 
a~opru3a~luH AHCKOHsa npRMOnHHeHHMM M W O M  =((C+f 1 6 EI)*(W HjJ)I(K AD)) ((F2 E2) (m G)I(K AD)) 
p a w  HaWCileHHR aMOPTU38UHH Ha OCHOBe ~PRMOflHHeMHOrO M m a  
Pawet yreTHon c r o u ~ o m  
Pawet Topmeom aoxoaa 



- 
mvm 





Transact~ons Durmg the Penod-Accumulat6d uscount 
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M a r k e t  

Nn 

Issue # 

- 
D E F G 

P o B ~ ~ X ) ~ H K H  UOAO BH3Ha'leHHFI nOnpaBOK a0 PHHKOBOl BaPTOCTf yn 

~ ~ P T I C T ~  
n ~ c n f l  

nepeoqrttw 

Lower o f  
cost o r  
market 

0 6 n i ~ o ~ a  BapnCTb 
un H a  KIHellb IlepIOAy 

(CT BanaHcy no 
MCSO "L(ncn 

~ n s e m d  B OBDn ') 

Net book value 

3 6 m ~  sra 
neP eOu, HKYI 
(~bproeuR 
nopwenb) 

Unreal~zed loss 

PHHKOBB 
mpTlcTb 

Market Value 
at current rate 

P ~ w a  
AOXOAHICT~ 

no AaHHMX 
aymlloHy 

Annuallzed 
market yleld 

UHIB AO 
IlOraWHHR 

Days to 
matutlty 



Rate 



A H ~ ~ ~ I ~ U Y H U ~  o6n1~ OBfln npoda~ux npomn2oM dee kmu ~ l c n y l e  1998 p 
3anMLuoK 

0 6 n l ~ o e a  
3 a r a n b ~ ~ h  

HoMIHanbHa 
HesaMoptH- ~ ~ P U ~ Y T O K  

nep81~Ha BaPTlCTb BaPTlMb C Y M ~  fl0xlfl BIA 
tOBaHOrO KaCOBMM 

(TPH) "OAaHux n o ~ a ~ ~ x  n p o ~ a x  un (~OA~TKOBMMI  
AHCKOHTY "0 un qn npoflaHMx un O ~ ~ I K O M  

KT I ~ T \  6203 I I I I 1 I 
- - -  .r. - , 

A B C D E F G H 
C - D  F - E  F - B 
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Sample Monthly Balance Sheet from Barracuda dated 01-04 1998 

TEST BANK 
-- - 

Pnmary Corrections Balance with 
Table Corrections 

#02XM22 WY 
-- 
Percent C Articles Companson 

Table 
Difference 

ASSETS 
O Cash on Hand 
O Travelers Checks 

Banks Metals 
Funds at NBU 
Secunties held for sale 
State Bonds Nominal Value 
Less Unamortized Discount I Premium 
Net lnvestment in State Bonds 
Equity Secunbes 
Debt Secunrties 

Total Secuntles held for sale 

Market Adjustment 0 0 0 0 0 -- - - 
Net Securities held for sale 2 130 971 70 0 2 130971 70 0 0 

Due Fmm Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Less Bad Debt reserve 

Net Interbank Loans 

Secuntles Purchased under Agreement to resel I 0 00 0 0 0 0 
Loans to 
Business enhhes 3 258 756 00 0 3 25875600 0 0 
State agencies 0 0 0 0 0 
lnd~viduals 307 779 00 0 30777900 0 0 
Employees 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Loans 

Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 

Secunties held for investment 
State Bonds Nominal Value 1 780 000 00 0 178000000 0 0 
Less Unamortized Discount I Premium 346 503 00 0 346 503 00 0 0 -- - - 
Net Investment in State Bonds 1 433 497 00 0 143349700 0 0 

Equity Securities 0 0 0 0 0 
Debt Secunties 0 0 0 0 0 

-- - - - 
Total Securities held for investment 1 433 497 00 0 1 43349700 0 0 

Market Adjustments 0 0 0 0 0 -- - - 
Net Secunt~es held for Investment 1 433 497 00 0 1433 497 00 0 0 

Investments in affiltates 0 0 0 0 0 
O Low Value Items and Supplies lnvetones 36 505 63 50 000 00 13 494 37 0 0 

Prepatd Expenses 1 290 40 0 1 29040 0 0 
Misc Accounts Receivable etc 21 8 686 78 0 21868678 0 0 
Less Allowance for Bad Debt 0 0 0 0 0 

-- -- - 
Net Accounts Recetvalbe 218 686 78 0 218 68678 0 0 

Cleanng accounts 
Advances to Branches 



Articles 
- -- - 
Pnmary Correct~ons Balance w~th 
Table Corrections -- 

14 602 73 0 14 602 73 

Companson 
Table 

-- 
Percent 

Accrued Interest Rece~vable 
Prepald Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Operating F~xed Assets 
o w e d  
Leased 
Construct~on In Progress 
Less Accumulated De~reclatlon 

Net Flxed assets 

Foreclosed and other lnactlve fixed assets 
lntang~ble Assets 
Less Accumulated Amort~zation 

Net lntang~ble Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Deps~ts 
State Budget 
Buslness entitles 
lnd~v~duals 
Time Deposrts 
State Budget 
Business enhtles 
lnd~vlduals 
Certificate of Deposits 

Total Deps~ts 

Due to banks 
Loans Due NBU 
Short Term 
Long Term 
Interbank Loans 
Secunttes sold under Agreement to Repurchase 
Debt Secunhes lssued 
T e n  and revolving 
Less Unamortized Dlscont I Premlum 

Net Term and Revolvmg 

Subord~nated Debt 

Total Debt Secunrtles Issued 

Accrued Interest Payable 
Misc Accounts payable and accruals 
Cleanng Accounts 
Advances from Branches 
Deffered Income 
Stockholdeh investment pend~ng registra 
Accrued Income Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total bablllt~es 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Cap~tal 



Campanson 
Table 

Percent 

-- 
0 00% 
0 00% 
- -- 

0 00% 

0 00% 
-- 
0 00% 

0 00% 
0 00% 
0 00% 
0 00% 
0 00% 
- 
0 00% 

0 00% 
- 
0 00% 

- 
0 00% 

- 
0 00% 

0 00% 
0 00% 
- 
0 00% 

Pnmary Correct~ons Balance w~th 
Table Correctmns -- -- 

6 000 000 00 0 6000000 00 
0 0 0 

- -- - 
6 000 000 00 0 6000000 00 

5850~ Statutory Par Value 
5900C Cap~tal 6ald ~n excess of par value 

5950C Total statutory Capital 

6000C Less stock subscnbtion rece~vable 

6050C Net Statutoly Cap~tal 

6100C O Current Penod Net Income 
Retamed eamlngs appropnated 345 225 08 0 345 225 08 0 
Retamed eammgs unappropriated 262 380 65 0 262 380 65 0 
Revaluation Indexat(on 71 728 23 0 71 728 23 0 
Accumulated IAS adjustments 0 0 0 0 

-- 
Subtotal 7 459 973 47 0 7459 973 47 0 

Less Treasury Stock 

Total Cap~tal 

Total Cap~tal and L~ab~l~t~es 

-- 
BALANCE 0 0 0 0 

Not Found Accounts" 
Pos~five 
Negative 

D~fference 

For more Info on Rejected Accounts refer to Error Log 
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Run Date 1811 111998 

Exhibit IU - 1 

Sample Bank Forergn Exchange Posrtron from #01 Frle dated 29/05/1998 
Hrlvnlall 000 

- -- US$ - D M  - - IJKL - -- - -- RR - - --Other - -- - - -Total - - 
Descr~ptlon Short term Long term Short term Long term Short term Long term Short term Long term Short term Long term Short term Long term 

Currency 
State securlt~es held for sale 
Other secur~t~es held for sale 
Funds In NBU acccounts 
Funds In other banks 
Interbank loans 8 REPOs 
Loans to busmesses 
Loans to government 
Loans to ~ndlv~duals 
Secur~t~es held for ~nvestrnent 
Other mvestrnents 
M~sc Accounts Receivable & clear~ng 
Total Forex assets 

Demand Depos~ts 
T h e  depos~ts 
Due to banks 
NBU loans & REPOs 
Loans & REPOS from other banks 
Debt secur~t~es ~ssued by bank 
M~sc Accounts payable & clear~ng 
Total forex l~ab~l~tles 

3800 AL Pos~tlon In forex & metals 
Off balance sheet long pos~t~on 
Off balance sheet short pos~t~on 
Other off balance sheet contmgent 



Sample Bank Fore~gn Exchange Detall from #01 file dated 29/05/1998 

Currency 
Account Branch Code 

Asset1 
Amount Long 

Term 
Liab~lrty 

Forex Report Line L500 

Current accounts of busmess entltles 

D~strlbut~ve accounts of busmess entitles 

Current account of indlvlduals 

Short-term deposlts of indw~duals 

Long term deposrts of lnd~v~duals 

Accumulated expenses on term deposlts of lndiv~duals 

Accounts payable on inactwe accounts of clients 

Lme L500 Total 6 384 710 31 



Currency 
Account Branch Code 

Asset/ 
Amount Long ,--- L~abll l ty 

Forex Report Lme L510 

2610 26 840 51 43750 S L Short-term depos~ts of business entitles 
2618 26 840 -70459 S L Accumulated expenses on term depos~ts of busmess ent~t~es 
Line L510 Total 52,142 09 

Forex Report Line L520 

1600 26 280 225 13 S L Correspondent accounts of other banks 
26 840 -2 424 56 S L 
26 840 1749 S L 

1919 26 810 029 S L Other accounts payable on transact~ons w~th banks 
26 840 2 169 331 01 S L 

Lme L520 Total -2 171,998 48 

Forex Report Lme L995 

3640 26 250 219182 S L Accounts payable on purchase of foreign currency and bank metals 
26 826 835 60 S L 

3720 26 112 6 701 77 S L Credit amounts under invest~gation 
Line L995 Total 9,729 19 

Grand Total 8,618 580 07 



Test Bank 
FUNDS FLOW REPORT 

Prevlous Per~od #01%X%88 WV 22 08 1998 

Current Per~od #01W88 WWW 23 08 1998 
For Branch I Reg~on Consol~dated 

Funds Were Obtamed From (Used For) 
Increase (Decrease) In deposlts 

Demand 
T~me 
Due to banks 
Total Increase (Decrease) 

Increase (Decrease) In Loans due NBU 
(Increase) Decrease In Interbank Loans and Repos 
Increase (Decrease) In Interbank / Repo Borrow~ngs 
(Increase) Decrease In Loans to 

Buslness entltles 
Ind~v~duals and other 

Total (Increase) Decrease In Loans 
(Increase) Decrease In Secur~t~es held for sale 
(Increase) Decrease In secur~tles held for lnvst 
(Purchase) Sale of premlse, eqlpm, & ~ntang Ass 
Advances (To) From Branches 
Increase (Decrease) In Debt Secur~tles Issued 
Increase (Decrease) n Cap~tal 
Increase (Decrease) In Clearlng Accounts 
Other Increases (Decreases) In funds, net 
Total Increase (Decrease) In funds 

Funds beg~nnmg of day 
Funds end of the day cons~sts of 
Currency and metals 
Due from NBU 
Due from Banks 
Total 

Balance 

Funds (Required) Prov~ded overnight 
Dally operatlng currency 
Statutory Reserve 
Interbank Loans / Repos 
Interbank Borrow~ngs / Repos 
Transact~ons w~th  securlt~es 
Cred~t Operat~ons 
Other 

Total 

Funds (Required) Provided day 2-8 
Interbank Loans / Repos 
Interbank Borrowings / Repos 
Transactions wlth securities 
Credit Operatlons 
Other 
Total 

Excess (Deficient) Funds 

Prepared by N N w b k y  



Date 1211 111 998 BANK BRANCH PERFORMANCE REPORT 

L~ne  T~tle January February March Ap r~ l  May June July August September October November December 

Brancl - 
01 0 
020 
030 
040 
050 
060 
070 
080 
090 
100 
110 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 - 

03 Performance 
Net Interest lncome 
% of total assets 
Net other bank Income 
Salarles 8 benefits 
Operatmg expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 
lnterbranch lncome 
lnterbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earnlng assets 
% of total assets 
Customer depos~ts 
lnterbranch recelvables 
lnterbranch payables 
Net lnterbranch 

Branch 08 Performance 
010 (Net Interest lncome 

% of total assets 
Net other bank lncome 
Salarres & benefits 
Operatmg expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 
lnterbranch Income 
lnterbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earnlng assets 
% of total assets 
Customer deposlts 
lnterbranch rece~vables 
lnterbranch payables 
Net lnterbranch 

Page 1 of 3 



-- 

Line Title January February March April May June July August September October November December 

Branch 13 Performance 
01 0 1 Net interest income I 21 26 29 3 18 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 
020 
030 
040 
050 
060 
070 

Branch 14 Performance 
010 lNet interest income i 12 17 2 9 15 13 13 0 0 0 0 0 

% of total assets 
Net other bank Income 
Salar~es & benefits 
Operatmg expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 

080 
090 
100 
110 
120 
130 

lnterbranch income 
lnterbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earning assets 
% of total assets 
Customer depos~ts 

Page 2 of 3 

020 
030 
040 
050 
060 
070 
080 
090 
100 
1 1  0 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 

% of total assets 
Net other bank Income 
Salar~es & benefits 
Operahng expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 
lnterbranch Income 
lnterbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earning assets 
% of total assets 
Customer depos~ts 
lnterbranch rece~vables 
lnterbranch payables 
Net Interbranch 



Page 3 of 3 

Llne T~t le January February March Aprrl May June July August September October November December 

Branch 19 Performance 
010 
020 
030 
040 
050 
060 
070 
080 
090 
100 
110 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 

Net ~nterest ~ncorne 
% of total assets 
Net other bank lncome 
Salarles & benefits 
Operating expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 
lnterbranch lncorne 
Interbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earnrng assets 
% of total assets 
Customer depos~ts 
lnterbranch rece~vables 
lnterbranch payables 
Net mterbranch 

4 5 5 3 6 6 8 0 0 0 0 0 
0 9 1 1  0 8 0 5 0 8 0 7 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

3 2 4 2 3 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 
3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 
7 7 9 5 9 8 11 0 0 0 0 0 

15 1 5  1 4  0 8 1 1  1 0  1 3  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
4 3 17 10 11 13 5 0 0 0 0 0 
4 3 17 10 1 I 13 5 0 0 0 0 0 

452 465 668 691 797 791 855 0 0 0 0 0 
334 296 52 1 515 571 551 550 0 0 0 0 0 
73 9 63 6 78 0 74 5 71 7 69 7 64 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
234 257 249 296 31 2 31 1 364 0 0 0 0 0 
209 204 204 252 262 394 692 0 0 0 0 0 
115 102 323 332 357 467 62 0 0 0 0 0 
94 102 119 80 94 72 630 0 0 0 0 0 

Branch 26 Performance 
010 
020 
030 
040 
050 
060 
070 
080 
090 
100 
11 0 
120 
130 
140 
150 
160 

Net mterest rncome 
% of total assets 
Net other bank lncome 
Salaries & benefits 
Operatlng expenses 
% of total assets 
Profit(Loss) before tax 
lnterbranch lncorne 
lnterbranch expense 
Total assets 
Total earnrng assets 
% of total assets 
Customer deposlts 
lnterbranch rece~vables 
lnterbranch payables 
Net mterbranch 

422 485 255 793 405 595 71 7 0 0 0 0 0 
0 3 0 4 0 2 0 6 0 3 0 5 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
305 131 374 130 603 100 31 4 0 0 0 0 0 
117 115 128 127 1 73 127 125 0 0 0 0 0 
651 582 657 808 695 566 845 0 0 0 0 0 
0 5 0 5 0 5 0 6 0 5 0 4 0 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
76 34 27 115 313 129 187 0 0 0 0 0 

119 65 32 84 351 207 188 0 0 0 0 0 
43 47 -45 63 50 22 14 0 0 0 0 0 

130846 130210 131951 135751 138571 130089 144864 0 0 0 0 0 
83 465 85 281 80 926 89 355 87 291 79 272 86 472 0 0 0 0 0 

63 8 65 5 61 3 65 8 63 0 60 9 59 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
10226 10 784 11 397 11 369 11 430 11 187 11 803 0 0 0 0 0 
13910 13410 13 162 14 027 f 4  319 16 076 13 720 0 0 0 0 0 
16 605 16 205 15 486 16 704 16 884 16 756 14 921 0 0 0 0 0 
2 695 2 796 2 324 2 676 2 565 680 1 201 0 0 0 0 0 



National Bank of Ukrarne - Frnancral Infrastructure Development 
Implementatron of Internatronal Accountrng Standards Frnal Report 

Exhibit IV 
1AS-Based Financial Reports as of December 31,199'7, and 

the Quarters ended March 31,1998 and June 30,1998 

Internatzonal Buszness & Technrcal Consultants Inc 



fnternutlonal Buszness & Teclznzcul Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Tnternahonal Development 

F~nanc~al Infrastructu~ e Development Project 

Vulltsa Lysenko 4, Apartment 13 
Kyn 252034 Ukrame 

E-Ma11 ~btc~ua@sovanlua corn 

Telephone (380 44) 246-4952 
(380 44) 225-75 15 
(;SO 44) 229 6>25 

Fax (?80 44) 246 49513 

FORUM BANK 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
December 31,1997 
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Internatzonal Buszness & Teclznrcal Consultants, Inc 

U S Agency for lnternat~onal Development 
Fmanclal Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
Kytv 252034 Ukra~ne 

Telephone (380-44) 246 4952 
(380-44) 225-75 15 
(380-44) 229-6525 

Fax (330-44) 246-4953 

These financial statements have been prepared in connection with the Financial Infrastructure 
Development Project, Pilot Bank Program, promoted by the National Bank of Ukrame (NBU) and 
funded by the Umted States Agency for International Development (USAID) These financial 
statements are submtted to NBU and USAID to illustrate results of the above mentioned project and 
should not be used for any other purpose 

f 

The Bank adopted vanous changes in financial accountmg policy dmng the fourth quarter 1997 m 
order to comply wrth NEW directives, whch guded a phased transition to the adophon of 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) For tlus reason, the financial records of the Bank as of 
and for the quarter ended December 31, 1997 reflect only partial adoption of IAS pmciples The 
financial statements presented here do not agree with the accounting records of the bank because 
certam additional fourth quarter adjustments were made in order to present financial statements, 
which were m substantial compliance with IAS 

These financial statements are not audited and certain additional IAS adjustments and disclosures 
could be required by independent auditors performing an examination m accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 

NBU/USAIDABTCYFmancial Infrastructure Development Project 2 



Forum Bank 
Balance Sheet as of December 31,1997 

Assets 
Cash on Hand 
Travelers Checks 
Fwds zt NNSU 
Securities held for sale 

State Bonds - Nommal Value 
Less Unamortlzed Discount / Premium 

Net Investment In State Bonds 
Market Adjustment 

Net Securities held for sale 
Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Loans to 

Business entitles 
Individuals 

Total Loans 
Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 
Secwit~es held for investment 

State Bonds - Nomlnal Value 
Less Unamortlzed Discount / Premium 

Net Investment In State Bonds 
Market Adjustments 

Net Securities held for Investment 
Prepald Expenses 
Misc Accounts Receivable, etc 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Prepaid Taxes 

Current 
Deferred 

Operating Fixed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 

Less Accumulated Depreciat~on 
Net F~xed assets 

Foreclosed and net ~ntangible assets 
Total Assets 

(thousand UAH) 
548 

19 
3,310 - 



L~abilities and Shareholders' Equ~ty 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Deposits 

Busmess entitles 
Individuals 

Time Deposits 
Business entlt~es 
Individuals 

Total Depos~ts 
Due to banks 
Interbank Loans 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Misc Accounts payable and accruals 
Accrued Income Taxes 

Current 8 5 
Deferred 43 

Total Liabilities 10,523 
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 
Capital stock, 10 hr~vna parvalue, 600,000 shares auto 6,000 
Appropriated retained earnings 

Reserve for loan losses 
Other 

Unappropriated retamed earnmgs 
Revaluation Indexation 72 
Shareholders' Equ~ty 7,688 

Total Liabilit~es and Shareholders' Equ~ty 18,211 

* The notes are an lnfegral pad of  fhese financral sfatemenfs 



Forum Bank 
Statement of Income 

For the Quarter Ended December 31,1997 
(thousand UAH) 

Interest Income 
Interbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Securities 

Total Interest Income 
Interest Expense 

Interbank Borrowings 
Deposits 

Total Interest Expense 
Net Interest Income 

Other bankmg Income and Expenses 
Fee and Commission Income 
Fee and Commission Expense 
Gain (loss) from FX trade operation 
Gain (loss) from Trading Securities 
Other banking income 

Total other banking Income and expenses 
Total Banlung Income 

Operatmg Expenses 
Salartes and Employee benefits 
Advertismg, Audit and professional fees 
Travel and Entertainment 

-Amortization of Ftxed Assets and Intangibles 
Utilities 
Rent 
Telephone 
Security 
Repairs 
Charitable contributions 
Other taxes and penalties 
Other Operating Expenses 

Total Operatmg Expenses 

Income before provlslon for Income Taxes and 
cumulative effect of IAS Adjustments 465 
Income Taxes 

Current 180 
Deferred Benefit 

Total Income Taxes 
Net Income before cumulative effect of 
IAS Adjustment 385 
Cummulatwe effect of IAS Adjustments 
Income accrued on loans and state securit~es 473 
Expenses accrued 5 7 
Total cummulative effect of IAS Adjustments 416 

Net Income 80 1 
* The notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



Forum Bank 

Statement of Cash Flow 
For the Quarter Ended December 31,1997 

(thousand UAH) 

Cash Flow From Operating Activiues 

Net Income from operattons 385 

A~jwstments to reconnle net zncome to net cash flow 
provzded from operatzng actzvztzes 

Depreciatton and amorttzaaon 29 

Market value adjustment on securtttes 331 
Amorazatton of dscount on secunaes (330) 
Deferred tax benefit on market value adjust (100) 
Increase (Decrease) tn prepads and other assets (161) 
(Increase) Decrease ln other habihes (8 5) 

Net cash promded by operaang acavtttes 70 

Cash provlded from Investing Activities 
(Increase) Decrease ln Interbank loans and REPOs 4,164 

(Increase) Decrease m Loans to 

Bustness enatles (1,054) 

Indtlduals and other (63) 

Purchase of state bonds held for mvestment (350) 
Redempaon and sale of secunaes 

State bonds held for investment redeemed 1,533 

Equlty secunaes sold 12 
State bonds sold 929 

Purchase of p r m s e  and equipment, net of remements (104) 
Purchase of tntangtble assets (4) 

Net cash (used) promded from tnvesang acavlttes 5,063 

Cash provlded from financing activities 

Increase (Decrease) tn Deposlts 
Demand (3,539) 
Time 409 
Due to Banks 542 

Increase (Decrease) ~n Interbank borrowings and REPOs (494) 
Net cash (used) provlded from finanung actlvlttes (3,082) 

Net tncrease m cash and equtvalents 2,051 
Cash and equvalents at begnmng of penod 2,878 
Cash and equtvalents at end of year 4,929 

* The notes are an rntegral pad of these f~nancral statements 



FORUM BANK 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,1997 

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

Background 
Joint Stock Commercial Bank "Forum" was registered with the National Bank of Ukraine N U )  on 
January 31, 1994 as Joint Stock Bank "Lad-Credit" and renamed to Joint Stock Commercial Bank 
"Forum" according to Protocol # 7 on December 26, 1996 The Bank operates on the basis of NJ3U 
License # 62 offenng banklng services to residents and non-residents, including transactions with 
foreign currency and investment secunties 

In June 1997 the secunties and stock market state commission gave permission to Forum bank to 
register owners of nominative shares, as well as permission to realize depository activities The bank 
was admitted to the Professional Registrar and Depositary Association 

Basis of Preparation 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IAS requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 
recorded in the financial statements and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilibes Actual results 
could differ from those estimates Estimates that are particularly susceptible to change relate to the 
provisions for esbmated loan losses and the fair value of financial instruments 

@ The Bank adopted vanous changes in financial accounting policy dunng the fourth quarter 1997 m 
order to comply wth  NBU directives, whch guided a phased transition to the adoption of 
International Accounting Standards (US) For ths  reason, the financial records of the Bank as of 
and for the quarter ended December 31, 1997 reflect only partial adoption of IAS principles The 
financial statements presented here do not agree with the accounting records of the bank because 
certan additional fourth quarter adjustments were made in order to present financial statements, 
whch were in substantive compliance with all IAS These financial statements are not audted and 
certam additional IAS adjustments and disclosures could be required by independent auditors 
performing an exammation in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 

Foreign currency 
The Bank's reporting currency in the financial statements is the Ukramian Hryvna (UAH) 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into UAH at the NBU official rate of 
exchange on the transaction date Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the balance sheet 
date exchange rate All gains and losses resulting from the changes in the exchange rate are reported 
in the Income Statement 

The official exchange rates for the major currencies as of December 31, 1997 were the 
following 

UAH 
100 United States Dollars (USD) 189 90 
100 German Marks (DEM) 105 97 
10 000 Russian Rubles (RUR) 3 19 

NBU/USAID/IBTCVFmancial Infrastructure Development Project 7 
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Cash and Cash Equwalents 
In order to prepare the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents, including cash on hand, 
traveler's checks, due from NBU and due fiom banks 

Loan Loss Reserve 
The loan loss reserve is provided based on the analysis of the probable losses in loan portfolio 
(except interest and commissions) for all types of loans in national and foreign currency Specific 
provisions are made as a result of a detailed appraisal of nsk on the bases of the borrower's payment 
history, unusual situations, which may affect borrower's repayment ability to return a loan, the value 
of the collateral and current economic conditions Increases to the specific reserve are charged to 
expense in the penod the estimate is made A general reserve is provided on the entire loan portfolio 
to cover overall nsks and is reported as an appropnation of retained earnings 

Secur~t~es 
Secmties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or market value Investment secunties held for 
investment are acquired for yield or capital growth purposes and it is management's intention to 
hold them until maturity In accordance with NBU directives, secunties held for investment are 
stated at the lower of cost or market on year-end market valuation 

F~xed assets 
Fixed assets are stated at histoncal cost, adjusted for statutory revaluahons Depreciation is provlded 
on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets The useful lives of the assets are 
estimated as 

0 BuzMngs 50 years 
Furnzture, Jittzngs and equzpment 5 years 
Motor vehzcles 5 years 

Interest and Comm~ss~ons 
Interest and commissions are recognized in the penod in which they are earned or incurred Fee and 
commission income pnmanly relates to transaction processing services performed for customers 

Taxahon 
Income tax expense was determined on the basis of the "Law on the Enterprise Profit Tax" 
Introduced on 01 01 97 Dmng 1997 the base tax rate in Ukraine for banks was 30% 

Note 2 CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 
As of December 3 1,1997 
(in thousands UAH) 

Cash on hand 548 
Travel checks 19 
Due fiom NBU 3 311 
Total Cash 3 878 

The Bank is required to maintain obligatory minimum cash reserves with the NBU The reserve as 
of December 3 1, 1997 was computed based on deposit balances in accordance wth  NBU 
reqlurements Of the total cash balance as of December 3 1, 1997, - is restricted 

NBUNSAID/IBTCI/Fmancial Infrastructure Development Project 8 



Note 3 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 
The loan portfoho by industry group as of December 3 1,1997 
(in thousands UAH) 

Manufactmng 105 
Trading 2 932 
Loans and advances d~sbursed to banks 4 950 
Other 455 
Total loans and advances 8 442 

The average interest rates on loans to business entities and other clients as of December 3 1, 1997 

Legal entities - 34%, 
Individuals - 55% 

Interbank loans with collateral (state bonds) compnse 60% of the total loan portfolio All loans were 
short-term with matunty less than one month The average annual interest rate approximated 38% 

Reference zs made to Note 9 for dzsclosure of average loan maturztzes 

Note 4. LOAN LOSS RESERVE PROVISION 
As of December 3 1,1997 
(in thousands UAH) 

Specific Reserve General Reserve appropnated 
fiom Retained Eamngs 

B e g m n g  Balance 5 5 0 
Provision for the penod 0 0 
charged to expense 
Appropnation of Retamed 20 45 
Earmngs 
Less Recovery 0 0 
Ending Balance 75 45 

Note 5 FIXED AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
(in thousands UAH) 

Descrrption 1 October Additions Disposals December 
1997 31,1997 

Bmldmgs 9 44 0 5 3 
Transportation means 125 13 6 132 
Computers and equipment 503 38 0 541 
F u t u r e  49 19 0 68 
Intangible assets 13 4 0 17 
Total 699 118 6 811 
Accumulated depreciation -76 -32 0 -108 - 

Fixed assets are revaluated in accordance with Ministry of Finance regulation, which define 
revaluation indexes pertinent to the category and life of a fixed asset ltem 
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Note 6 INCOME TAX 

@ For the accounting penod the Bank reports current income tax expense of 180,000 UAH Income tax 
expense is based on taxable net income calculated in accordance wth Ukrainian tax rules and 
regulations 
In addition a future tax benefit of 100 000 UAH was recorded on the market value reserve provided 
for state bonds 

Note 7 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

The NBU regulates Ukrainian banks through monthly reporting of capital adequacy ratios Capital 
adequacy is computed as the ratio between equity and nsk weighted assets and must be minimum of 
8% As of December 31, 1997, the Bank's reported capital adequacy ratio was 433% 

Note 8 MATURITIES AND AVERAGE INTEREST RATES ON ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES 
As of December 3 1,1997 
(m thousands UAH) 

Assets Less than Less than More than More than Total 
I month 3 months 3 months 12 months 

Cash on hand and balance w~th 3 878 3 878 
the NBU 
State bonds for sale 
Due from banks 
Loans to 
Busmess enthes 
lnd~v~duals 
State bonds for mvestment 
F~xed assets 
Other assets 
Total assets 

L~abllitres and Equity 
Due to banks 
Demand Depos~ts 
Busmess ent~t~es 
lnd~v~duals 
T~me Depos~ts 
Busmess enthes 
lndw~duals 
Other habll~t~es 
Total l ~ a b ~ l ~ t ~ e s  
Equ~ty 
Total l~abl l~ t~es  and equ~ty 

According to the bank's policy preference is given to short-term loans for a penod fiom 1 month up 
to 3 months 
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Average interest rates on deposits of business entities are as follows 
Less than 1 month - 8% d Less than 3 months - 13% 
More than 3 months - 18% 
More than a year - 20% 

Average interest rates on deposits of individuals are as follows 
Less than 1 month - 5% 
Less than 3 months - 9% 
More than 3 months - 13% 
More than a year - 15% 

Note 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The NBU has defined insiders as key Bank managers and, among others, individuals or 
corporations, which own directly or indirectly 10% or more of Bank's shares of Capital Stock 

As of December 3 1, 1997, 982 000 UAH inloans were outstandmg to insiders at an average Interest 
rate of 35% In addition the Bank rented its building from a major shareholder at an annual rental 
cost of 241 121 UAH 

Note 10 NET FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITIONS 

As of December 3 1,1997 
(m thousands) 

Assets 
Cash 
Accounts with banks 
Bank's debtors 
Loans to clients 
Accrued interest 
Due from banks 
Total assets 

USdollars DEM RUR 
28 4 4 
809 199 43 
62 3 0 
348 742 0 
950 0 0 
760 0 0 
2 008 947 47 

L~ab~hhes USdollars DEM RUR 
Customer accounts 
Bank's creditors 
Accrued expenses 980 3 0 
Time deposits 902 0 0 
Due to banks 0 106 0 
Total hab~htles 2 030 842 23 
Net long (short) forelgn currency posltion (22) 105 24 
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Internatzonal Busmess & Technzcal Consultants, Inc 
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BANK FORUM 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
March 31,1998 
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Forum Bank 
Balance Sheet 

(thousand UAH) 
ASSETS March 31, 1998 December 31,1997 

Cash on Hand 745 548 
Travelers Checks 
Funds at NBU 
Secunhes held for sale 

State Bonds N o m a l  Value 
Less Unamortmd D~swunt 

Net Investment m State Bonds 
Equlty SecwQes 

Total Secuntles held for sale 
Market Adjustment 
Net Secuntles held for sale 

Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Loans to 

Busmess ent~tles 
Indlvlduals 

Total Loans 
Less Reserve for Loan Losses 
Net Loans 

Secuntles held for investment 
State Bonds - N o m a l  Value 
Less Unamortmd D~swunt 

Net Investment in State Bonds 
Low Value Items and Supphes Inventones 
M~sc Accounts Recewable etc 
Accrued. Interest Receivable 

Preplud Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Operatmg Ftxed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Less Accumulated Deprectat~on 

Net F~xed assets 
Intangble and Inactwe Assets 
Less Accumulated Amorbzatlon 

Net Intangible Assets 
Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Deposlts 

Busmess entlues 
Indmduals 

Tune Depos~ts 
Busmess enbtles 
Indlvlduals 

Certificate of Deposlts 
Total Depos~ts 

Due to banks 
Interbank Loans 
Secuntles sold under Agreement to Repurchase 
Acaued Interest Payable 
Mlsc Accounts payable and accruals 
Acnued Income Taxes 

Current 
Deferred 

Total Llabdlues 

Shareholders' Equ~ty 
Cap~tal Stock 
Appropriated Retamed Earmngs 
Loan Loss Reserve 
Other 
Unappropriated Retamed Earnmg 
Revaluation Indexat~on 

Total Shareholders Equlty 
Total L~abll~tles and Shareholders' Equlty 



Forum Bank 
Statement of Income 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

Interest Income 
Interbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Securltles 
Total Interest Income 

Interest Expense 
Interbank Borrowings 
Depostts 

Total Interest Expence 
Net Interest Income 

Other banking Income and Expenses 
Fee and Cornm~ss~on Income 
Fee and Commlsslon Expense 
(Gamn)/loss from FX trade operation 

(Gamn)lloss from Tradlng Secur~tles 
Other banklng Income 

Total other bankmg Income and Expenses 
Total Banlung Income 

Operatmg Expenses 
Salaries and Emploee benefits 
Advertlsmg, Aud~t and professional fees 
Travel and Entertamment 
Amortlzatlon of Flxed Assets and Intangibles 
Utllltles 
Rent 
Telephone 
Secunty 
Repaws 
Charltable contrlbutlons 
Other taxes and penalties 
Other Operating Expenses 
Total Operatmg Expenses 

Income before provlslon for Income Taxes and 
IAS adjustment 
Income Taxes 

Current 
Deferred Benefit 

Total Income Taxes 
Net Income before cummulat~ve effect of IAS 
Adjustment 

Cummulatlve Effect at January 1, 1998 of IAS 
Adjustment to record amortization of Dscount on State 
Bonds 

Net Income 



Forum Bank 
Statement of Cash Flow 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

Cash Flow From Operatmg Actlvltles 
Net Income fiom operations 

A&strnents to reconcile net mcorne to net cashflow 
provldedfiom operating actntltres 

Depreclatlon and arnortlzatlon 
Market value adjustment on securit~es 
Amortization of dlscount on securities 

Net decrease (mcrease) m tradmg securities 
(Increase) Decrease m Loans to 

Busmess entlties 
Individuals and other 

(Increase)/decrease m accrued mterest receivable 
Lncrease (Decrease) m Depos~ts 

Demand 
Tune 
Due to Banks 

Increase/(decrease) m accrued mterest payable 
(Increase) decrease m prepaids and other assets 
Increase (decrease) m other habilltles 
Cash pad for mcome taxes 

Net cash prov~ded by (used m) operat~ng actlvltles 

Cash (used) provlded in (from) Investmg Actlvltles 
Increase (Decrease) m mterbank borromgs and REPOs 
Purchase of state bonds held for mvestrnent 
Redernptlon and sale of securities 

State bonds held for mvestment 
Transfer to secutltles for sale 

Purchase of premlse and equipment, net of retirements 
Purchase of mtanglble assets 

Net cash (used) prov~ded m lnvestrng actlv~tles 

Increase (decrease) m interbank borromgs and REPOs 
Capltal contnbutlon fiom Shareholders 

Net cash (used) provrded by financ~ng actlvrtres 

Net Increase (decrease) m cash and equlvalents 
Cash and equlvalents at begmnmg of perrod 

Cash and equrvalents at end of year 



Forum Bank 
Statement of changes In Shareholders' Equity 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

Appropr~ated Unappro- 
Retamed Earnings prlated Revalua- 

Cap~tal Loan Loss Retamed tion 
Stock Reserve Other Earnings Indexation 

Balance as of 
December 3 1,1997 6 000 45 300 1 043 72 

Stock Subscripttons 
recetved 694 0 0 0 0 

Increase tn General 
Loan Loss Reserve 0 32 0 (32) 0 

Current Pertod Net 
Income 0 0 0 972 0 

Balance as of 
March 3 1, 1998 6 694 77 300 1 983 72 



Vulrtsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
Kyiv 252034, Ukra~ne 

E-Mad ~btc~ua@sovanlua corn 

Internattonal Busmess & Technrcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for International Development 

Fmanc~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Telephone (380-44) 246 4952 
(380 44) 225 7515 
(380 44) 229-6525 

Fax (380-44) 246-4953 

FORUM BANK 
FINANCIAL REPORTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the quarter ended 
June 31,1998 
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Balance Sheet 
(thousand UAH) 

ASSETS 01 07 1998 01 04 1998 Difference 
(+I-) 

Cash on Hand 1 008 745 262 
Travelers Checks 79 57 22 
Funds at NBU 2 453 905 1 547 
Securities held for sale 
State Bonds - Nominal Value 0 2 885 -2 885 

Less Unamort~zed Discount 1 Premium 0 -406 406 
Net Investment in State Bonds 
Equity Securities 
Total Securities held for sale 
Market Adjustment 
Net Secur~ties held for sale 
Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Loans to 
Business entities 
Individuals 

Total Loans 
Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 15 296 8 491 6 805 
Securities held for investment 
State Bonds - Nominal Value 6 699 667 6 032 

Less Unamortized Discount / Premium -646 -7; -573 
Net Investment in State Bonds 6 053 595 5 459 

Prepa~d Expenses 45 56 -1 I 
Misc Accounts Receivable, etc 19 1 18 
Accrued Interest Receivable 2 1 53 -32 
Prepaid Taxes 
Current 32 29 3 

Deferred 0 7 5 -75 
Operating Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets 

Owned 3 864 1356 2 509 
Leased 0 3 1 -3 1 

Less Amortizat~on of Fixed Assets and -1 84 -139 -4 5 
Intangibles 
Net Fixed assets and Intangible Assets 3 680 1 247 2 433 
Total Assets 38 459 21 084 17 376 

NBUIUSAIDIIBTCIIFI~~~CI~I  Infrastructure Development Project 2 



Balance Sheet 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Deposits 
Business entities 

Individuals 
Time Deposits 
Business entities 

Individuals 
Total Deposits 
Due to banks 
Interbank Loans 
Securities sold under Agreement to 
Repurchase 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Misc Accounts payable and accruals 
Accrued Income Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Total Liabilities 

CAPITAL 
@ Statutory Capital 

Retained earnings - appropriated 
General reserve 
Other reserve 
Retamed earnings - unappropriated 
Revaluation Indexation 

Total Capital 
Total Capital and Liabil~ties 

(thousand UAH) 
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Statement of Income 
(thousand UAH) 

Interest Income 
Interbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Securities 
Other 

Total Interest Income 
Interest Expense 
Borrowmgs from NBU 
Interbank Borrowings 
Deposits 
Total Interest Expense 
Net Interest Income 

Fee and Commission Income 
Fee and Commtssion Evpense 

Gam (loss) from FX trade operation 
Gain (loss) from Trading Secur~ties 

Other banking Income 
Total non-lnterest Income 
Less Provls~on for loan losses 
Total Banlung Income 

Operating Expenses 

0 Salartes and Employee benefits 
Advert~sing, Aud~t  and professional fees 
Travel and Entertainment 

Amort~zat~on of F~xed Assets and Intangibles 
Uttl~ttes 
Rent 
Telephone 
Security 
Repam 
Chantable contributtons 
Other taxes and penalties 
Other Operating Expenses 
Total Operatmg Expenses 
Income before provlslon for Income Taxes and prlor 
per~od adj 

Income Taxes 
Current 

Deferred 
Total Income Taxes 
Net Income before prlor perlod Adjustment 

Effect of prlor Perlod Adjustment to 
Income y l h  s l h  0 
Expense 0 1 1 
Total p r ~ o r  per~od Adjustments 516 -515 I 
Net Income after prlor Per~od  Adjustment -2 254 -972 8 282 

for 6 months 
1998 
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Statement of Cash Flow 
(thousand UAH) 

For 6 months [ For quarter ended 

:ash Flow From Operattng Act~v~ttes 
let Income from operations 
hjustments to reconcde net rncome to net cash 
'low providedfrom operatrng actlvlties 
)epreciation and amortization 
rovision for credit losses 
4arket value adjustment on securites 
~mortlzatlon of discount on securities 

I 9 9 8  " 

2 770 

Jet deciease (increase) in trading securlties 

[ncrease) decrease in Loans (net of write-offs) to 
Business entities 
Individuals and other 

[ncrease) decrease m accrued Interest receivable 

March 31 

743 

ncrease (decrease) m Deposlts 
Demand 
Tune 
Due to Banks 

ncrease (decrease) m accrued mterest payable 
[ncrease) decrease m prepalds and other assets 
xrease (decrease) m other liab~l~tles 
lash pald for mcome taxes 

June 31 

2 026 

Net cash provtded by (used in) operat~ng 
Actlvlties 

:ash (used ~ n )  prov~ded by Investmg A c t ~ v ~ t ~ e s  
[ncrease) decrease in Interbank Loans 
Purchase of Securities 

State bonds held for Investment 

Redemption of securlties 
State bonds held for investment 

Sale of securit~es, net of gain or loss 
Purchases of premise and equipment, net of retirements 
Purchases of premise intang~ble assets 

Net cash (used 1x1) provtded by mvest~ng a c t ~ v ~ t ~ e s  
:ash (used) prov~ded (from) financ~ng actlv~t~es 
ncrease (decrease) in NBU and mterbank borrowings 
nd repos 

'reasury stock (acqu~red) reissued 
:ap~tal Contr~but~on from Shareholders 

Net cash (used In) prov~ded by financmg acttvlt~es 
Jet increase (decrease) in cash and equ~valents 
:ash and equ~valents at beg~nmng of perlod 
:ash and eauivalents at end of vear 

55 1 
8 OOC 
8 551 
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Forum Bank 

Balance as of 
December 3 1, 
1997 
Increase in the 
Statutory Cap~tal 
Decrease in the 
Statutory Capital 
Balance as of 
March 3 1, 1998 
Increase in the 
Statutory Capital 
Decrease in the 
Statutory Capital 
Balance as of 
June 30,1998 

Statement of changes in Shareholders' Equ~ty 

Capital 
Stock 
6 000 

Appropriated ~etainedl 
Earnings Current period 

Net income 

thousand UAH) 

Unappropriated 
Retained 
Earnings 

262 

Revaluation 
Indexation 

72 

N B U / U S A I D / I B T C I / F I ~ ~ ~ C I ~ I  Infrastructure Development Project 6 



Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
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OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
December 31,1997 
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These financial statements have been prepared in connection with the Financial Infrastructure 
Development Project, Pilot Bank Program, promoted by the National Bank of Ukraine (NBU) 
and fimded by the United States Agency for International Development (USAID) These financial 
statements are submitted to NBU and USAID to illustrate results of the above mentioned project 
and should not be used for any other purpose 

The Bank adopted various changes in financial accounting policy during the fourth quarter 1997 
in order to comply w t h  NBU directives which guided a phased transition to the adoption of 
International Accounting Standards (IAS) For this reason, the financial records of the Bank as 
of and for the quarter ended December 3 1, 1997 reflect only partial adoption of IAS principles 
The financial statements presented here do not agree with the accounting records of the bank 
because certain additional fourth quarter adjustments were made in order to present financial 
statements which were in substantial compliance with IAS 

These financial statements are not audited and certain additional IAS adjustments and disclosures 
could be required by independent auditors performing an examination in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 
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OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 

ASSETS 

BALANCE SHEET 
As of December 31,1997 

Hryvna (000) 

Cash and balances with the National Bank of Ukrame 
Securities held for dealmg purposes 
Placements with, and loans and advances to, other banks 

Loans and advances to customers, less provlslon 
Government and other securit~es held for mvestment 
Fixed and intangible assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and amortization 
Loans and advances to branches 
Prepaid income taxes 
Other assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

L~abi l~t~es  
Loans from the National Bank of Ukraine 
Deposits of other banks 
Customer deposits 
Loans and advances from branches 
Other habillties 

Notes 

Total lzabzlltzes 

Commitments and contingenc~es 

Shareholders' equlty 
Statutory capital 
Reserves and retamed earnmgs 

Less treasury stock 

Total shareholders eqwty 

Total llabzlrtzes and shar eholders equrty 

a 
The notes are an ~ntegralpart of these Jinanczal statements 
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Interest income 
Interest expense 

OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 
INCOME STATEMENT 

For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

NET INTEREST INCOME 

Notes 

Commission income, net 
Currency trading gains (losses), net 
Other income (expense) 

Total non-interest income 

TOTAL INCOME 

Operating expenses 13 

0 Loan loss provision 

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE AND AFTER 
INCOME TAXATION 10 

The notes are an zntegral part of thesejnanczal statements 
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OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the quarter ended December 31,1997 
Hryvna 

Notes (000 ) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Loss before Income taxatlon 
AdJustrnents to reconcile net loss to net cash provrded by operatrng 
actlvltles 
Depreciation and amort~zat~on 
Provisions for credit and other risks 
Amort~zat~on of discount on government securities 

(Increase) decrease In accrued interest receivable 
Increase (decrease) In accrued Interest payable 
(Increase) decrease In miscellaneous assets 
Increase (decrease) In miscellaneous l~abil~ties 
Cash payments for income taxes 

Net repayments of loans and advances to banks 
Net repayments of customer loans and advances 
Net repayments of borrowmgs from the National Bank of Ukraine 
Net decrease ~n current accounts and depos~ts of other banks 
Net Increase m customer current accounts and deposits 

Net Cash provtded by (used t )  operattng actcvcttes 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of government d~scount and other securit~es 
Proceeds of matured secur~t~es 
Acqu~s~tions of fixed and ~ntanglble assets 
Proceeds from sales of fixed assets 
Net (Increase) decrease In branch investments 

Net cash provided by (used in) tnvesttng actcvcttes 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Treasury shares purchased from shareholders 

Net cash provtded by (used t )  financtng acttvciies (1,390) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,129 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnmg of the period 2,500 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the per~od 5,629 

The notes are an integral part of theseJinancza1 statements 
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OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

Statutory Retained General Other Treasury 
Capital Earnings Reserves Reserves Stock Total 

Balance as of 
September 30, 1997 7,784 7,225 47 - - 15,056 
Changes in 
accounting policy (135) 135 

Restated balance 7,784 7,090 4 7 135 - 15,056 

Changes in loan 
provision 

Net loss for the 
penod 

Shares repurchased (1,390) (1,390) 

Balance as of 
December 3 1, 1997 7,784 6,568 8 1 135 (1,390) 13,178 

The notes are an lntegral part of these financzal statements 
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OLBANK - HEAD OFFICE 
NOTES TO THE F-INANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

Note 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

Background 
OLBank (the Bank) was legally established as Joint Stock Company of closed type on January 
26, 1994 The Bank's primary activities are the provision of banking and financial services to 
cornmerc~al and private customers primarily located in Ukraine 

Basis of Preparation 
The preparat~on of financial statements in conformity with IAS requires management to make 
est~mates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liab~lities, revenues and expenses 
recorded in the financial statements and disclosure of contingent assets and liab~lit~es Actual 
results could differ from those est~mates Estimates that are particularly susceptible to change 
relate to the provisions for est~mated loan losses and the fan value of financial instruments 

Generally, formal financ~al statements are issued for a consolidated entity These financial 
statements, however, reflect the statement of pos~tion and results of operations of the Kyiv head 
office of OLBank In addition to the man office, OLBank has five branches throughout Ukramne, 
the financial position and results of operations of whlch are not reflected in these statements 

The Bank adopted vanous changes rn financial accountrng policy dunng the fourth quarter 1997 
in order to comply w t h  directives of the National Bank of Ukraine (NBU), whch guided a 
phased transition to the adoption of International Accounting Standards (IAS) For t h ~ s  reason, 
the financial records of the Bank as of and for the quarter ended December 3 1,1997 reflect only 
partial adopt~on of IAS principles The financial statements presented here do not agree with the 
accounting records of the bank because certain addit~onal fourth quarter adjustments were made 
In order to present financial statements which were in substantive compliance with IAS These 
financial statements are not audited and certain additional adjustments and disclosures could be 
required by independent auditors performing an exammation in accordance wth  International 
Standards on Aud~ting (ISA) 

Forelgn currencles 
The Bank's reporting currency in prepmng its financial statements is the Ukrain~an Hryvna 
(UAH) Transactions denominated m foreign currencles are translated into UAH at the official 
rate of exchange of NBU on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities are 
translated at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date All resulting gains and losses are 
recorded in the respective profit and loss account 

The official rate., of exchange for major currencies as of December 3 1, 1997 were 

100 United States Dollars (USD) 
100 German Marks (DEM) 
10 000 Russ~an Roubles (RUR) 

UAH 
189 90 
105 97 

3 19 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of these financial statements, reported cash and cash equivalents are comprised of 
cash on hand, travelers' checks and deposits in correspondent account with the NBU Cash on 
deposit at foreign and domestic banks is classified with other interbank placements 

Allowances for Loan Losses 
Allowances for loan losses reflect an amount which is judged by management to be adequate to 
provide for specifically identified risks of loss in the loan portfolio (excluding accrued interest 
and commissions receivable) Management's evaluation of the allowance is based on the Bank's 
past experience, known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect 
borrowers' ability to repay, the estimated market value of any underlying collateral and current 
economic condit~ons 

The total of the allowance for loan losses is deducted from the corresponding balance sheet 
figures of balances due from banks and loans and advances to banks and customers, respectively, 
and the portion representmg an impairment which occurred during the reporting period is 
deducted as a provision in the income statement 

In addition to the speclfic reserves described above, the Bank is required by the NBU to form a 
general reserve as an appropnation of retained e m n g s  

Non-accrual Loans 
Loans are placed on non-accrual status when interest or pnnc~pal is delinquent in excess of thirty 
days, except when all amounts due are fully secured by cash and collection proceedings are in 
progress After an additional thuty days' delinquency, previously accrued interest income 
relatmg to non-accrual loans 1s reversed 

Securit~es 
Securit~es held for sale are stated at the lower of cost or market value Investment secur~ties are 
acquired for yield or capital growth purposes and usually held to maturity Temporary declines 
in market value of investment secur~ties are therefore not recognized in the financial statements 

F~xed assets 
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, adjusted for statutory re-indexations Deprec~ation is 
provided on a straight-line basis over estimated useful lives of the assets The useful lives of the 
assets are estimated as 

Buildings 50 years 
Furniture, fittings and equipment 5 years 
Motor vehicles 5 years 

Interest and Comm~ss~ons 
Interest and commissions are recognized in the period in which they are earned or incurred Fee - 

and commission income primarily relate to transaction processing services performed for 0 customers 
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Taxat~on 
Income tax expense was determined on the basis of the "Law on the Enterprise Profit Tax" 
introduced on 01 01 97 During 1997 the base tax rate in Ukraine for banks was 30% 

Note 2 CASH 

Cash as of December 3 1, 1997 was 

Thousand UAH 
Cash on hand 
Travelers' checks 
Balances with the NBU 

Total cash 5,629 

The Bank IS required to maintain obligatory minimum cash reserves w t h  the NBU The reserve 
as of December 3 1, 1997 was computed based on deposit balances in accordance w t h  NBU 
reqmrements Of the total cash balance as of December 3 1,1997, is restricted 

* Note 3 PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS 

December 3 1,1997 
Thousand UAH 

Correspondent accounts w t h  banks 854 
placements w t h  foreign banks - 
Placements w th  Ukrainian banks 4,039 

Total 4,893 
Speclfic allowance for potential losses 
Recognized as a reduction of current 
penoh income - 

Total interbank loans and advances 4,893 

General allowance for potential losses 
Recogmzed as an appropriation of 
Retained earnings 8 1 

Correspondent accounts with banks are Nostro accounts comprised of interest and non-interest 
bearing accounts w ~ t h  Ukrainian and foreign banks 

As of December 3 1, 1997, loans to banks were comprised of UAH and foreign currency 
placements with maturities of less then one month The average annual Interest rates at December 
3 1, 1997 were approximately 18% for foreign currencies and 35% for local currency 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/F;nanczal Infrastructure Development Project 9 
P 
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a Note 4 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 

Loans and advances to customers as of December 3 1, 1997 were 

Business entlties 
Individuals 

Total 
Specific allowance for potential losses 
Recognized as a reduction of current 
Period income 

Total loans and advances to customers 

General allowance for potential losses 
Recogmzed as an appropr~ation of 
Retained earninns 

The customer loan portfolios 

Manufacturing 
Trading 
Energy 
Other 

Thousand UAH 
12,630 

as of December 3 1, 1997 were distributed as follows 

Total current accounts 

Thousand UAH 
1,700 

Note 5 ALLOWANCES FOR LOAN LOSSES 

The spec@ loan loss reserves as of December 3 1, 1997, and changes In reserves for the quarter 
then ended were as follows 

Balance as of September 30, 1997 

Thousand UAH 
Loans and advances to 

Banks Customers 
.-a 

Provision for estimated losses of current period - 898 

Loans charged off during current period - (447) 

Balance as of December 3 1, 1997 873 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Flnanclal Infrastructure Development Project 10 



The general loan loss reserves as of December 3 1, 1997, and changes in reserves for the quarter 
then ended were as follows 

Thousand UAH 

Balance as of September 30,1997 

Net change in general reserves 

Balance as of December 3 1, 1997 

Note 6 SECURITIES 

Loans and advances to 
Banks Customers 

47 - 

The composition of trading and investment portfolios of securities as of December 3 1, 1997 was 
as follows 

Thousand UAH 

Securztzes held for sale 227 

Securztzes held for znvestment 

Ukrman government treasury bills 
N o m a l  value 
Less unamortized clmount 

Equity Investments 

Total secmhes held for investment 

There is no active market for the equlty secmties in the above portfolio, therefore no reasonable 
estimate of current f a r  value can be made Accordingly they are stated at cost 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Fznanczal Infrastructure Development Project 1 1  



Note 7 FIXED ASSETS AND INTANGIBLES 

(Thousand UAH) 
September December 

30,1997 Additions Disposals 31,1997 

Bmldings - 600 - 600 
Vehcles 1,230 4 19 1,215 
Equipment 353 486 365 474 
Furniture 856 6 8 - 924 
Leasehold improvements 214 214 
Intangible assets 55 242 83 214 

Total 2,708 1,400 467 3,64 1 

Accumulated depreciation 260 171 7 424 

Net book value 2,448 1,229 460 3,217 

Note 8 CURRENT AND TERM DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS e \ 

Current and term deposit accounts as of December 3 1,1997 

Current accounts 
State enterprises 

Thousand UAH 

Limited liability and joint stock compames 7,763 
Individuals and other 90 

Total current accounts 11.137 

Term deposzts 
Limited liability and joint stock compames 197 
Individuals and other 1,040 

Total term deposits 1,237 

Total current and term depos~t accounts 12,374 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/FI~~~CZU~ Infrastructure Development Project 12 



Note 9 DUE TO NBU AND OTHER BANKS 

Due to NBU and other banks as of December 3 1,1997 
Thousand UAH 

Due to NBU 4,492 

Correspondent accounts 
Borrowings fkom banks 

Total due to banks 572 

As of December 3 1,1997, borrowngs from banks were at an average annual interest rate of 20% 
and matured w t h n  one month 

Note 10 MOVEMENTS IN CAPITAL 

In the ongmal books of entry of the Bank, numerous fluctuations m retamed e m n g s  durmg the 
fourth quarter of 1997 resulted from drawmg on reserves and allocation to reserves based on tax 
accountmg rules whch Mered  from financial accountmg d m g  thls transitional penod 

Due to the lack of d e a l  and resources avalable to compile accurate b e g m g  balances of 
capital accounts (as of September 30, 1997) and the related cumulative effect of IAS changes as 
o m s  date, the focus of these statements was to confirm those IAS differences only at December 
3 1,1997 The only cumulative effect change shown in the accompanymg Statement of Changes 
in &w.ty is to reflect the transfer of cumulative asset re-indexahons out of retained earrungs to a 
separate component of capital 

One sigmficant adjustment to the balance of reported retained e m n g s  as of September 30,1997 
whch was not made is the recognition of the pnor penod effect of the 898,000 loan loss 
provision made in the fourth quarter 1997 According to IAS, asset impairments should be 
recogruzed m the penod in whch they occurred It is possible that a sigmficant portion of the 
loss recogruzed m the fourth quarter 1997 should have been recognized in the performance 
statemenl of pnor quarters 

Note I 1  INTEREST INCOME 

Loans and advances to individuals 
Loans and advances to banks 
Investment activities 
Other 

Total interest income 

Thousand UAH 
1,3 84 

372 
3 89 

17 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Flnanclal Infrastructure Development Project 



Note 12 INTEREST EXPENSE 

Thousand UAH 
Current and term deposit accounts 
Deposits and borrowngs fiom banks 
Other 

Total interest expense 

Note 13 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Salary and related expenses 
General admmistrative expenses 
Depreciahon 

Total operatmg expenses 

Thousand UAH 

Note 14. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

The NBU regulates llkmxuan banks through monthly reportmg of capital adequacy ratios 
Capital adequacy is computed as the raho between equlty and risk weighted assets and must be 
mlnrmum of 8% Proportion of capital and assets indicates capital adequacy of the Bank for 
achve transactions wth  allowance for nsks mcident to different types of banlung activibes As of 
December 3 1,1997, the Bank's reported capital adequacy ratio was 55% 

Note 15 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

As of December 3 1, 1997, the Bank has outstanding guarantees and export letters of credit 
arnountmg to UAH 2,OO 1,600 

Note I6 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As of December 3 1, 1997, the Bank had outstandmg loans to related parties as follows 

Thousand UAH 
Shareholders 4,258 
Other related parties 302 
Gross loans to related parties 4,560 
Specific allowances for losses (858) 

Net loans to related parties 3,702 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Fznancral Infrastructure Development Project 14 



@, Note 17 MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Thousand UAH 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Trading securities 
Loans tdmiks a id  customers 
Investments 
Fixed Assets 
Advances to branches 
Other assets 

Total assets 
LIABILITIES AND 
EQUITY 
Loans from NBU 
Interbank deposits 
Deposits from legal entities 
Deposits from mdividuals 
Interbranch borrowmg 
Other liabiht~es 

8 Shareholders' eqwty 
Total Zzabrlrtres and equrty 

Under Under 3 3 to 12 Over 
1 month months months 12 months 

5,629 

Total 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Fznanczal Infrastructure Development Project 15 



Note 18 FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION 

Sigmficant forelgn currency positions of the Bank as of December 3 1, 1997 are as follows 
Thousand UAH 

Assets Deutsch Russ~an 
US Dollars marks Roubles 

Cash 6 1 59 5 
Accounts with banks 460 96 280 
Debtors 6 8 10 
Loans to cllents 3,338 
Accumulated revenue 18 
Loans to banks 1,139 
Total Assets 5.084 165 285 
L~ab~l~tres 
Customer accounts 
Creditors 
Interbranch settlements 
Accrued expenses 29 
Term deposits 569 
Borrowmgs fiom banks 570 
Total L~abhtres 3,913 86 266 
Net 'long (short) foreign 
currency pos~tron 1,171 79 19 

Note 19 INTERBRANCH BALANCES 

The accompanymg balance sheet reflects receivables fiom and payables to branches of 90 1,000 
and 1,822,000 hryvna, respectively These balances would be ellrninated in a consolidated 
balance sheet Analogous interbranch eliminations would be made for income and expense 
accounts m the income statement The accompanymg income statement includes interest Income 
and interest expenses of 17,000 and 1 10,000 hryvna, respectively 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Fznanczal In@astructure Development Project 



Internatronal Buszness & Technical Consultants, Inc. 
U S Agency for Internahonal Development 
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Telephone (380-44) 246-4952 
(380-44) 225 75 15 
(380-44) 229-6525 

Fax (380-44) 246-4953 

OLBANK 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 
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March 31,1998 
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* Balance Sheet on 01-04-1998 

ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Travelers Checks 
Banks Metals 
Funds at NBU 
Secunbes held for sale 
State Bonds - Nom~nal Value 
Less Unamortrzed D~scount I Premium 
Net lnvestment n State Bonds 
Equrty Secunbes 
Debt Secunrhes 

Total Secunbes held for sale 

Market Adjustment 

Net Secumes held for sale 

Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Less Bad Debt reserve 

Net Interbank Loans 

021XV43 C42 
OLE ANK 

Pnmary Correchons Balance wrth 
Table Correchons 

Secunbes Purchased under Agreement to res I 0 ,OO 0 0 
Loans to 
Busmess enbties 9 606 187,85 0 9 606 187,85 
State agencles 0 0 0 
lndiv~duals 256 980,lO 0 256 980,lO 
Employees 0 0 0 

Total Loans 

Less Bad Debt Reserve -91 5 295,93 0 -915 295,93 

Net Loans 

Secunbes held for Investment 
State Bonds - Nom~nal Value 5 648 600,OO 0 5648 600,OO 
Less Unamor6zed D~scount I Prem~um -522 835,79 0 -522 835,79 

Net Investment ~n State Bonds 5 125 764 21 0 5 125 764 21 

Equrty Secunbes 0 0 0 
Debt Secunbes 0 0 0 

Total Securities held for ~nvestment 5 125 764 21 0 5 125 764 21 

Market Adjustments 0 0 0 

Net Secunbes held for Investment 5 125 764 21 0 5 125 764 21 



Investments n affihates 
Low Value Items and Supphes lnvetones 
Prepa~d Expenses 
MISC Accounts Recewable, etc 
Less Allowance for Bad Debt 

Net Accounts Recewalbe 

Cleanng accounts 
Advances to Branches 
Accrued Interest Recewable 
Prepa~d Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Operating F~xed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Construction n Progress 
Less Accumulated Deprec~ation 

Net Fwed assets 

Foreclosed and other inac6ve tixed assets 
Intang~ble Assets 
Less Accumulated Amorbzation 

Net Intangible Assets 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Deposrts 
State Budget 
Bus~ness entities 
lndwiduals 
Time Deposrts 
State Budget 
Bus~ness entrhes 
lnd~duals 
Ceaficate of Deposlts 

Total Depos~ts 

Due to banks -2 015 52 0 -2 015 52 
Loans Due NBU 
Short Term -952 250 00 0 -952250 00 
Long Term 0 0 0 
Interbank Loans -1 000 000 00 0 -1 000 000 00 
Securities sold under Agreement to Repurcha 0 0 0 
Debt Secunties ~ssued 
Term and revolving 0 0 0 
Less Unamorbzed D~scont 1 Premlum 0 0 0 

Net Term and Revolwng 



* Subordinated Debt 

Total Debt Secunmes Issued 

Accwed Interest Payable 
M~sc Accounts payable and acc~a ls  
Cleanng Accounts 
Advances from Branches 
Deffered lncome 
Stockholder's Investment pendmg reg~stra 
Accnred lncome Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total Llablllbes 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Caprtal 
Statutory Par Value 
Capltal Pald-n excess of par value 

Total statutory Capital 

Less stock subscnbbon receivable 

Net Statutory Cap~tal 

Current Penod Net lncome @ Retamned eamlngs - appropriated 
Retamned eamlngs - unappropnated 
Revaluabon Indexation 
Accumulated IAS adjustments 

Subtotal 

Less Treasury Stock 

Total Capital 

Total Capttal and habllhes 

BALANCE 

Not Found Accounts' 
Posrbve 
Negative 

* For more mfo on Rejected Accounts refer to Error Lo 



* l m e  Statement on 01 44-1998 021XV43 C42 
OCB ANK 

Pnmary Corredlons l m e  wth C 
Table Conectlw -- 

lnterest Income 
Interbank Loans 
Custmer Loans 
Secuntles 
Other 

Total lnterest lncome 

lnterest Expense 
Bormwngs from NBU 
Interbank Bomwngs 
oeposlts 
Bank-lssued secuntces 
Other 

Total lnterest Expence 

Net Interest lncwne 

Fee and Comm~ssion Income 
Fee and Mmmmon Expense 

Gam (loss) from FX trade operat~on 
Galn (loss) from Tradmg Secunttes 

D ~ d e n t  l m  
Penaltces 
O(her banking home 

Total Mnhterest Income 

Total Banking Income 

OpwatcngExpenses 
Sahnes and Emploee beneMs 
AdvetWng Audd and pmfkslonal fees 
Tfavel and Entectalnment 
Amoctoahon of F w d  Assets and lntang~b 
Uhlltles 
Rent 
Telephone 
S-J* 
Repairs 
Chantable contnbuhs 
Other taxes and peiialtres 

Opeatlng w== 

-- 
and prior p 368 444 68 61 100 00 3 0 7  344 68 Income before provlslon for Income Taxes 

I m T a x e s  
Cunent 
Deferred 

Total lncome Taxes 

Net lncome before pnor penod Adjustme 

Effect of pnor Penod Adjustment to 
lncome 
Enpence 

Total pnor penod Adjustments 

Net Income after pnor Penod Adjustmen t 24731222 8110000 18621222 



Cash Flow Statement 
OLBank - head office 
Quarter ended March 31,1998 

Cash Flow From Operattng AfAvttes 

I Net Income (loss) from operat~ons before income Tax 

A@ustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
flow provided from operat~ng actwit~es 

Deprec~at~on and amortuat~on 
Provision for credit losses 
Market value adjustment on secuntes 
Amortuatlon of d~scount on secunt~es 

Net decrease (mcrease) In trading secunt~es 
(Increase) decrease m Loans to 

Total portfol~o 

I (Increase) decrease In accrued Interest receivable 

lncrease (decrease) in Deposlts 
Demand 
Time 
Due to Banks 

I lncrease (decrease) in accrued Interest payable 

I (Increase) decrease In prepalds and other assets 
lncrease (decrease) In other Imb~l~tres 

[cash for income taxes 

I Net cash provided by (used In) operatmg act~vtt~es 

I Cash (used) provided in (from) lnvesttng A c t ~ v ~ t ~ e s  

I (Increase) decrease in Interbank Loans and Reps  

(Increase) decrease in Interbranch Loans 
Purchase of Securities 
State bonds held for investment 
Equty and other debt secunt~es 

Net S&!Rdempfmn (Purchase) of secuwes 
State bonds held for investment 
Equlty and other debt secunt~es 

Sale of secuntles net of gain 
Net (Purchases)/retiremenWsaIes of premise and equipment and 

intanglbie assets 

Net cash (used) provided i n  lnvesttng acttvtties 

(used) provided (from) financing activities 

I lncrease (decrease) tn NBU and interbank h r r m n g s  and r e p s  

I lncrease (decrease) in Interbranch Loans 
Treasury stock (acqu~red) re~ssued 

I Net Capital contnbutianfrom (return to) Shareholders 
Dividends Declared 

I Net cash (used) provided by financing act~vit~es 

( ~ e t  Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 
Cash and eq&aknts at bq inn lnyf  Griod 
Cash and equivalents at end of ye S-lLrevis* XLS 



Statement of Changes in Equity by Account ' 
OLBank Head Office 

1st quarter 1998 

Balances 01 01 98 1 12612353 
I 
I 

FDced asset indexat~on 
reclass 

reclass 

Pnor year earncngs transfer 0 
Correction in compliance 
wdh NBU memo of 5 March 
1998 64 145 
Income tax adjustment for 
4Q97 -58 071 
Pnor year earnings 
correct~on 9 192 
Pnor year earnings 
correct~on -15 520 
Pnor year earnings 
corredon -157 
other adjustments 3 268 

1st quarter 1998 earnings 244 045 I 1 

Adjusted endmg balance 86 692 531 410 5481 691 



Internatzonal Buszness & Technrcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Internahonal Development 

Financ~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Vulltsa Lysenko 4 Aparhnent 13 
Ky~v 252034 UIaa~ne 

E Ma11 ~btc~ua@ovamua corn 

Telephone (38044) 2464952 
(38044) 225-75 15 
(380-44) 229-6525 

Fax (380-44) 246 4953 

OLBANK 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
June 30,1998 

N B U N S A I D A B T C V F L ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  Infrastructure Development Project 



Balance Sheet on 01-07-1998 

Articles 

a 
ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Travelers Checks 
Funds at NBU 
Secuntles held for sale 
State Bonds 
Equlty Secunt~es 

Total Secur~t~es held for sale 

Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 

Loans to 
Buslness entlt~es 
lnd~vrduals 

Total Loans 

Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 

Securlt~es held for ~nvestment 
State Bonds - Nommal Value 
Less Unamortzed Discount I Premlum 

Net Investment In State Bonds 

Total Secunhes held for ~nvestment 

Market Adjustments 

Net Securihes held for Investment 

Investments n affil~ates 
Low Value Items and Supplles lnvetones 
Prepa~d Expenses 
Misc Accounts Receivable, etc 
Less Allowance for Bad Debt 

Net Accounts Receivalbe 

Cleanng accounts 
Advances to Branches 
Accrued Interest Rece~vable 
Prepa~d Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Operating F~xed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Less Accumulated Depreclatlon 

Net F~xed assets 

a lntang~ble Assets 
Less Accumulated Amortlzatlon 

Net lntanglble Assets 

021XV72 626  
OLBANK 

ln~t~al Table Adjustments Balance Sheet 
w~th adjustments 

Total Assets 



Balance Sheet on 01-07-1998 

Artlcles 

LIABILITIES 
Demand Depos~ts 
State Budget 
Busmess enht~es 
lnd~v~duals 
T~me Depos~ts 
Busmess ent~t~es 
lnd~vtduals 

Total Depos~ts 

Due to banks 

Accrued Interest Payable 
M~sc Accounts payable and accruals 
Cleanng Accounts 
Advances from Branches 
Accrued Income Taxes 
Current 

Total L~ab~l~t~es 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Cap~tal 
Statutory Par Value 

Total statutory Cap~tal 

Net Statutory Cap~tal 

Current Period Net Income 
Retamed earnings - approprcated 
Retamed earntngs - unappropnated 
Revaluat~on Indexahon 
Accumulated IAS adjustments 

Subtotal 

Less Treasury Stock 

Total Capital 

Total Cap~tal and Liabd~t~es 

021XV72 G26 
OLBANK 

ln~t~al Table Adjustments Balance Sheet 
w~th adjustments 



a Income Statement on 01.07 1998 02MwZ G26 
OLBANK -- 
W a l  Table Adjustments Bslancs 

shedm 
a- 
for 6 months -- 

Interest Income 
Interbank Loans 
CustOrncT Loans 
Searnt~es 
Other 

Total Interest lnmme 

Interest Expense 
Bwrowings hwn NBU 
Interbank Bonormngs 
Deposits 
Bank issued seamties 
Other 

Total Interest Expence 

Net lnterest Income 

1750s 
Fee and Commtu~on Income 
Fee and Commission Expense 
1900s 

Gain (loss) from FX bade operation 

Gain (loss) from Tradtng Secunt~es 
2050s 
Divident Income 
PenalI~es 
Other banking I m e  

Less Provision for loan losses 

Total Bankmg Income 

2400s 
O W n g  Expenses 
Salaries and Emploee benefts 
Advertlslng Audlt and pmfesstonal fees 
Travel and Entertainment 
Amortuation of Fked Assets and lntang~b 
Mht~es 
Rsnt 
Telephone 
Searity 
Repaln 
CharitaMeconMbutions 
Othtr(sxesMdpcnanies 
-0Peratlng-s 

Total Opentlng Expenses 

Income before provision for Income T u e r  -856 738 60 49 581 00 -607 157 90 

Total Incoma Taxes 

NU lnwme before prior period Adjustme 

34M)S 
Effect of pnor Period Adjustment to 
Income 
Erpem 

Total prior period AdjuJtmsnts 

NU Incoma after prior Period Adjustmen 



OlBank 

I Statement of Cash Flow I 
For the quarter ended June 31,1998 

(thousand UHA) 
:ash Flow From Operatmg Actwites 
Net Income (loss) from operabons before Income Tax 
Adjustments to reconcile net Income to net cash 
Row provlded from operating actlvltles 

Depreclat~on and amortlzatlon 
Provtsion for cred~t losses 
Market value adjustment on securites 
Amort~zat~on of d~scount on secuntles 

4et decrease (mcrease) In tradlng secuntles 
(Increase) decrease In Loans to 
Business entities 
lndlviduals and other 

(1nc)ldec In acc Int Rece~vable 
4djustment for write-offs 

lncrease (decrease) In Depos~ts 
Demand 
Time 
Due to Banks 

Incl(dec) In acc Int Payable 
(Increase) decrease in prepalds and other assets 
lncrease (decrease) in other l~abil~ties 

cash pard for income taxes 
Net cash prov~ded by (used ~ n )  operat~ng activ~t~es 

Cash (used) prov~ded In (from) Investing Activities 
(Increase) decrease In Interbank Loans and Repos 
(Increase) decrease In lnterbranch Loans 
Purchase of Securities 
State bonds held for investment 
Equity and other debt securltles 

Redempt~on of secunt~es 
State bonds held for ~nvestment 
Equ~ty and other debt secunt~es 

Sale of secunties, net of galn 
Purchases of premlse and equipment net of ret~rem'ts 
Purchase of ~ntang~ble assets 

Net cash (used) provided In investing activities 

:ash (used) provided (from) financing activltles 
lncrease (decrease) In NBU and mterbank borrowings and repos 
lncrease (decrease) n lnterbranch Loans 
'reasury stock (acquired) relssued 
Capital Contribution from Shareholders 
Dlvldends Declared 
Net cash (used) prov~ded by financmg act~vit~es 

4et Increase (decrease) in cash and equ~valents 
:ash and equivalents at beglnnlng of perlod 
:ash and equ~valents at end of year 

Balance 

CASHFLOW-corrl XLS 



OiBank 
Statement of changes in Shareholders Equity 

for the quarter ended June 31,1998 
Head Office 

Endmg Balance per 

a 
I I I I 1 I I I I I 1 
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Internattonal Bustnew & Teclzntcal Consultants, Inc 

U S Agency for lnternat~onal Development 
Fmanc~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Vulma Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
Ky IV 252034 Ukrame 

E Mall ~btc~ua@sovarnua corn 

Telephone (380-44) 246 4952 
(380 44) 225 7515 
(380 44) 229-6525 

Fax (380-44) 246-4953 

These financial statements have been prepared in connection mth the Financial Infrastructure 
Development Project, Pilot Bank Program, promoted by the National Bank of Ukraine (NBU) 
and funded by the United States Agency for International Development (USAID) These 
financial statements are submitted to NBU and USAID to illustrate results of the above 
mentioned project and should not be used for any other purpose 

The Bank adopted vanous changes in financial accounting policy d w g  the fourth quarter 1997 
in order to comply wth  NBU directives, whlch guided a phased transition to the adoption of 
International Accountmg Standards (IAS) For thrs reason, the financial records of the Bank as of 
and for the quarter ended December 3 1, 1997 reflect only partial adoption of IAS principles The 
financ~a.1 statements presented here do not agree wth  the accountmg records of the bank because 
certam addrbonal fourth quarter adjustments were made m order to present financ~al statements 
wluch were m substantd compliance w t h  IAS 

These financial statements are not audited and certam addhonal IAS adjustments and disclosures 
could be required by mdependent auditors perforrmng an exarmnation m accordance with 
International Standards on Audrting (ISA) 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/Fznanczal Infrmtructure Development Project 2 



BANK SLAVUTICH 
BALANCE SHEET 
As of December 31 and September 30,1997 

ASSETS Notes Dec 31,1997 Sept 30,1997 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Cash and balances with the National Bank 
of Ukrame 2 358 1,201 
Cash in other banks 3 20 1 370 
Loans and advances to customers 4,5 8,541 8,675 
Investments 6 5,196 4,950 
Fixed and intangible assets, net 7 725 73 8 
Prepaid income taxes 14 29 - 
Other assets 29 90 

Total assets 14,989 16,024 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Llabfitles 

0 
Current and term deposit accounts 8 4,904 5,248 
Due to the Nabonal Bank of Ukrame and 
other banks 9 2,100 3,600 
Accrued lncome taxes payable 14 27 3 1 
Other liabilities 503 170 

Total Lzabzlztzes 7,534 9,049 

Commitments and contlngenc~es 16 

Shareholders' equ~ty 
Statutory capital 
Reserves and retamed e m n g s  

Less treasury stock 

Total shareholders ' equrty 

Total lrabdltres and shareholders' equzty 

The notes are an mtegral part of these financlal statements 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/F~~U~CI~I Infrastructure Development Project 3 



@ BANK SLAVUTICH 
INCOME STATEMENT 
For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

Notes Thousand UAH 

Interest income 
Interest expense 

NET INTEREST INCOME 

Commission income, net 
Currency trading gains (losses), net 
Other income (expenses) 

Total non-mterest lncome 

TOTAL INCOME 

Operatmg expenses 
Loan loss provision 

NET INCOME BEFORE INCOME 
TAXATION 

Income taxation 

NET INCOME 

The notes are an tntegrai part of these financial statements 
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BANK SLAVUTICH 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

Thousand UAH 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Income before income taxation 
Adjustments to reconcrle net zncome to net cash provrded by 
operatzng actzvztzes 
Depreciat~on and amortization 
Amortization of discount on state bonds 
Provisions for credit and other risks 

Decrease (increase) ~n loans to customers 29 
Increase (decrease) in current accounts and deposits (344) 
Decrease (mcrease) m other assets 6 1 
Increase (decrease) m other liabilities 270 
Cash payments for income taxes (58) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activit~es 

DNVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Decrease (mcrease) m loans to banks 
Purchase of government and other secmties 
Proceeds of matured secmties 
Net acqusitions of fixed assets 

Net cash provided by (used in) investzng activities (646) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net repayment of loans from NBU and other banks (1,500) 
Reissuance of treasury stock 35 
Div~dends pad to shareholders (270) 

Net cash provzded by (used cn)Jinanczng actzvztzes (1,735) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS (843) 
Cash and cash equwalents at the beginning of the period 1,20 1 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the penod 358 

The notes are an rntegral part ofthese financral statements 

NBU/USAID/IBTCI/F:nanc:al Infrastructure Development Project 5 



BANK SLAVUTICH 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the quarter ended December 31,1997 

Thousand Hryvna 
Statutory Retained General Other Revaluation Treasury 

Capital Earnings Reserves Reserves Reserve Stock Total 
Balance as of 
September 30, 1997 4,461 1,480 899 215 - (80) 6,975 
Changes in (351) 35 1 
accounting policy 361 361 

Restated balance 4,461 1,490 899 2 15 35 1 (80) 7,336 

Changes in loan 
provision 

Net income (loss) for 353 
the penod 

Treasury shares 35 35 
(purchased) reissued 

@ Payment of dlvldends (269) (269) 

Balance as of 
December 3 1,1997 1 4,461 1,514 351 (45 7,455 

The notes are an ~ntegral part of these financial statements 
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BANK SLAWTICH 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the 4th quarter ended December 31,1997 

Note I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Background 

Bank Slavutich (the Bank) was legally established as Joint Stock Company on May 16, 1992 
The Bank was registered with the National Bank of Ukraine (NBU) on May 16, 1992, License 
No 110 The Bank's primary activities are the provision of banking and financial services to 
commercial and private customers pr~manly located in Ukraine 

Bas~s of Preparation 

The Bank mantams its accounting records in accordance wth the NBU Chart of Accounts and 
other NBU regulations The financial statements have been prepared from those accounting 
records m compliance wth International Accounting Standards (IAS), except as described 
below 

The preparation of financial statements m conforrmty mth IAS requlres management to make 
estmates and assumpaom that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses 
recorded m the financial statements and dsclosure of contmgent assets and liabilities Actual 
results could chffer from those estunates Estunates that are particularly suscephble to change 
relate to the provisions for estimated loan losses and the fa r  value of financial instruments 

The financial statements have been prepared on the hstoncal cost basis of accounting, as 
modified by the penodic revaluation of certain property and equipment in accordance wth  
Ukraiman Mimstry of Flnance (MOF) directives 

Separate balances as at the end of 3rd quarter 1997 are reclassified in compliance mth the 
statement form as at the end of 1997 

The Bank's reportmg currency in preparmg ~ t s  financial statements is the Ukralman Hryvna 
(UAH) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into UAH at the official 
rate of exchange of NBU on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and Ilabilities are 
translated at the rate of exchange on the balance sheet date All resulting gains and losses are 
recorded in the respective profit and loss account 

The official rates of exchange for major currencies as at December 3 1 and September 30, 1997 
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UAH 
Dec 31 Sept 30 

1 United States Dollar (USD) 
1 German Mark (DEM) 
1 000 Russian Ruble (RUR) 

Cash and Cash Equwalents 

For purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash on 
hand, and deposits in correspondent account with the NBU 

Cash placed with other banks is grouped with other interbank loans and advances 

Allowances for Loan Losses 

The allowances for loan losses are based on an analysis of the loan portfolio, and reflects the 
amount whlch, in the judgement of management, is adequate to provide for losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio (excluding accrued Interest and commission receivable) Specific provisions are 
made as a result of a detaded apprsusal of nsk assets Management's evaluation of the allowance 
is based on the Bank's past expenence, known and Inherent nsks m the loan portfolio, adverse 
situation that may affect borrower's ability ta repay, the estmated value of any underlymg 
collateral and current economc conhhons The total amount of loans, shown m balance sheet, is 

@ reduced by the amount of spec~fic reserve 

In addibon, general provisions are recorded to cover nsks, whch, although not specifically 
identrfied, are present m any portfolio of banlung assets In accordance wth NBU regulabons, 
the general reserve is accounted for m bank capital The specific reserves are charged to 
expenses, whle the general reserve is formed as an appropnation of retained e m n g s  

- 

Non-accrual Loans 

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when interest or principal is delinquent in excess of 30 
days at least for one agreement wth a given client or financial cmurnstances of the client 
became worse to the extent, that bank management takes the decision to consider him as a 
doubtful debtor (formalized by minutes of the loan committee) 
Interest income relating to non-accrual loans is not recorded in the profit and loss account when 
recovery is doubtful Further accounting for accrued interest receivable is c m e d  out in off- 
balance sheet accounts until loan limitation expires 

Investments 

Securities in portfolio for sale are stated at the lower of cost or market value Investment 
securities are acquired for yield or capital growth purposes and usually held to maturity 
Temporary declines in market value of investment securities are therefore not recognized in the 
financial statements 
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Flxed assets 

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost, as periodically revalued for the effects of the diminution 
in value of the UAH in accordance wth MOF directives and accounted for in the fixed assets 
revaluation reserve Depreciation 1s provided in accordance wth  acting tax legislation of Ukraine 
on the basis of residual cost over the estimated life of fixed assets depending on appurtenance to 
one of three distinguishing groups The useful lives of the assets are estimated as 

Buildings 50 years 
Furniture, fittings and equipment 4 years 
Motor vehcles 4 years 

Interest and Commlss~ons 

Interest and commissions are recognrsed in the period they are earned or incurred Fee and 
commission income primady relate to operations for customer transactions Interest on non- 
accrual loans is not recognrzed in the profit and loss account 

Note 2. CASH 

December 31,1997 September 30,1997 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Cash on hand 
Balance wrth the NBU 

Cash and due from banks, net 358 1,201 

The Bank is required to maintain obligatory minlmurn cash reserves wth the NBU The reserve 
as at December 3 1,1997 and September 30,1997 was computed based on deposit account 
balances in accordance wth NBU requirements 

Note 3. DUE FROM BANKS 

December 31,1997 September 30,1997 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Correspondent accounts mth banks 20 1 370 

Correspondent accounts with banks are nostro accounts compnsed of interest and non-interest 
bearing accounts w th  Ukrain~an and foreign banks 
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Note 4 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 

Loans and advances to customers were 

December 31,1997 September 30,1997 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Business entities 
Individuals and other 

Total 8,864 8,928 

Allowances for losses (233) (253) 

Total loans and advances to customers, net 8,45 1 8,675 

The loan portfolio as at December 3 1, 1997 was distributed as follows 

Manufactwvlg 
Tradmg 
Other current activlbes 

Total Includmg overdue 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

- - 
1,260 84 
7,424 379 

Total 8,684 463 

Note 5 ALLOWANCES FOR LOAN LOSSES 

General reserve Spec~fic reserve 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Balance as at September 30,1997 
Net change in reserves 

Balance as at December 3 1,1997 
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* Note 6 INVESTMENTS 

Ukrainian government treasury bills 
Other 

December 31,1997 September 30,1997 
Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Total investments 5,196 4,950 -- 

The net value of Ukrainian government treasury bills is shown nominal value less unamortized 
discount The bills mature withn one year and were purchased at yields between 21% and 38% 
yearly 

Note 7 FIXED AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Thousand UAH 
Sep 30,1997 Addibons Disposals Dec 31,1997 \ 

0 Bwldmgs - - - 
Fmture ,  equipment 940 6 (7) 949 
Capital unprovement of - 10 - 10 
leased premises 
Intangible assets 16 2 - 18 

Total 956 28 (7) 977 

Accumulated depreciation (2 1 8) (34) 0 (252) 

Fixed assets, net 

Revaluation of fixed assets amounts 35 1 thousand UAH Revaluation is performed in accordance 
with MOF directives which specify various valuation indexes to be applied based on the type and 
age of the asset 
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* 
Note 8 CURRENT AND TERM DEPOSIT ACCOUNTS 

December 31, September 30, 
1997 1997 

Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Current accounts 
Limited liability and joint stock companies 3,763 3,707 
Individuals and other 276 320 

Total current accounts 4,039 4,027 

Term deposzts 
Limited liability and jomt stock companies 
Individuals and other 

Total term deposits 865 1,221 

Total current and term deposit accounts 4,904 5,248 

e Note 9. DUE TO BANKS 

December 31, September 30, 
1997 1997 

Thousand UAH Thousand UAH 

Borrowng from NBU 500 1 000 
Borrowmgs from other banks 1,600 2,600 

Total due to banks 

As at September 30 and December 3 1,1997, borrowngs from banks were at an average annual 
Interest rate of 37% 

Note 10 MOVEMENTS IN CAPITAL 

In the onginal books of entry of the Bank, numerous fluctuations in retained earnings during the 
fourth quarter of 1997 resulted from drawng on reserves and allocation to reserves based on tax 
accounting rules, which differed from financial accounting during this transitional period 

Due to the lack of detail and resources available to compile accurate beginning balances of 
capital accounts (as of September 30, 1997) and the related cumulative effect of IAS changes as 
of t h~s  date, the focus of these statements was to confirm those IAS differences only at December 
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3 1, 1997 The sigmficant cumulative effect changes shown in the accompanying Statement of 
Changes in Equity were 
1 Amortization of discount on government securities, 
2 Transfer of cumulative asset re-indexation out of retained earnings to a separate component 

of capltal, and 
3 Reclassification of certain fund (capital) accounts as liabilities 

One significant adjustment to the balance of reported retained earnings as of September 30, 1997 
which was not made is the recognition of the prlor perlod effect of the 195,000 loan loss 
provision made in the fourth quarter 1997 According to IAS, asset impairments should be 
recogmzed in the penod in which they occurred It is possible that a sigmficant portion of the 
loss recognized in fourth quarter 1997 should have been recognized in the performance 
statements of prior quarters 

Note 11 INTEREST INCOME 

4th quarter 1997 
Thousand UAH 

Loans and advances to legal entities 
Loans and advances to banks 
Loans and advances to mdividuals 
Investment actwities 

Total mterest mcome 

Note 12 INTEREST EXPENSE 

4th quarter 1997 
Thousand UAH 

Current and term deposit accounts of legal entities 210 
Deposits and borrowmgs from banks 260 
Current and term deposits of individuals 119 

Total interest expense 589 
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Note 13 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Salary and related expenses 
General administrative expenses 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Note 14 INCOME TAX 

4th quarter 1997 
Thousand UAH 

For the quarter ended December 3 1,1997, the Bank made income tax payments of 58 thousand 
UAH of whxh 25 thousand UAH represented income tax expense for the 4h quarter 1997 
Income taxes are calculated in accordance mth Ukraman tax rules and regulations 

Note 15. CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

@ The NBU regulates Ukrman banks through monthly reportmg of cap~tal adequacy ratlons 
Capital adequacy is computed as the ratio between equity and nsk weighted assets and must be 
mimmum of 8% As at December 3 1,1997, the Bank's reported capital adequacy ratio was 68% 

Note 16 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

As at December 3 1, 1997, the Bank has no outstandurg guarantees or letters of credit 
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e 
Note 17 MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Thousand UAH 
ASSETS 

Cash and account with NBU 
Loans to banks 
Loans to clients 
Investments 
Fixed and intangible assets 
Other assets 

- 

Under Under 3 to I2 Over 
1 month 3 months months 12 months Total 

358 358 
20 1 20 1 

8,45 1 
2,032 3,164 5,196 

725 725 
29 29 5 8 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Loans from NBU 
Interbank deposits 
Deposits fiom legal entities 
Deposits fiom individuals 
Other liabilities 
Shareholders' equlty 

Total Lzabllztles 
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@ Note 18 MEANINGFUL FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION 

Significant foreign currency positions of the Bank as of December 3 1, 1997 are as follows 

Assets US Dollars Deutsch Marks Russian Roubles 

Cash 
Accounts with banks 
Debtors 
Loans to cl~ents 
Accrued revenue 
Loans to banks 

Total assets 

Customer accounts 
Creditors 
Other settlements 
Accrued expenses 
Term deposits 
Borrowngs from banks 

Total lzabilztzes 
Net long (short) foreign 
currency pos~t~on 

Note 19 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

As of December 3 1, 1997, the Bank had outstanding loans to related parties as follows 

Thousand UAH 
Shareholders 
Other related parties 

Gross loans to related partles 
Speclfic allowances for losses 

Net loans to related part~es 
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Internatzonal Busrness & Technrcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Internabonal Development 

Financ~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Aparhnent 13 
Ky~v 252034, Ukraine 

Telephone (380-44) 246-4952 
(380-44) 225 7515 
(380 44) 229 6525 

Fax (380-44) 246 4953 

BANK SLAWTICH 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
March 31,1998 
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Month e - 
ly Balance Sheet on 0164-1998 

ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 
Travelers Checks 
Banks Metals 
Funds at NBU 
Secuntles held for sale 
State Bonds Nomlnal Value 
Less Unamortized Discount I Premlum 
Net Investment in State Bonds 
Equlty Secuntles 

8 Debt Secunrtles 

Total Secuntles held for sale 

Market Adjustment 

Net Secunt~es held for sale 

0 Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Less Bad Debt reserve 

Net Interbank Loans 

SIAVUTICH 021WD41 G42 -- 
Pnrnary Mrrect~ons Balance wth 
Table Corrections -- 

Secuntles Purchased under Agreement to re I 000 0 0 
Loans to 

0 Busmess entitles 
State agencles 
lnd~duals 
Employees 

Total Loans 

Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 

Secunt~es held for Investment 
State Bonds Nornlnal Value 
Less Unamortized D~scount I Prernlum 

Net lnvestment In State Bonds 

Equlty Secunt~es 
DeM Secunt~es 

Total Secunt~es held for Investment 

Market Adjustments 

Net Secuntles held for Investment 

Investments In affil~ates 
Low Value Items and Supplles lnvetones 
Prepa~d Expenses 
MISC Accounts Recemble etc 
Less Allowance for Bad Debt 

Net Amunts Recerialbe 

Cleanng accounts 
O Advances to Branches 

Accrued Interest Recemble 
Prepald Taxes 

0 Current 
0 Defer& 

Operating Fixed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Construction m Progress 
Less Accumulated Deprec~atlon 

Net F~xed assets 

Foreclosed and other lnact~e fixed assets 15 162 61 0 15 162 61 
lntang~ble Assets 19 295 19 0 19 295 19 
Less Accumulated Amortlzatlon 2 437 71 0 2 437 71 -- -- -- 
Net lntanglble Assets 16 857 48 0 16 857 48 

Total Assets 

Bse-1 q98-slav xls 



LIABILITIES 
Demand Deposits 
State Budget 

Q 8uslnes.s entdles 
lndlvlduals 
Tlrne Deposits 
State Budget 
Buslness entnles 
lndlvlduals 
Certmcate of Deposes 

Total Deposes 

Due to banks 0 0 0 
Loans Due NBU 
Short Term 0 0 0 
Long Term 0 0 0 
Interbank Loans 120000000 0 120000000 
Secuntles sold under Agreement to Repurch 0 0 0 
Debt Secuntles lssued 
Term and revoinng 
Less Unamortized D~scont I Premlum 

Net Term and Revoinng 

Subordinated Debt 

Total Debt Secunrt~es Issued 

Accrued Interest Payable 
(B Mlsc Accounts payable and accruals 
0 Cleanng Accounts 
0 Advances from Branches 

Oeffered lncome 
Stockholdel's investment pendlng registra 
Accrued lncome Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total Llabllrt~es 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Capital 
Statuto~/ Par Value 
Capdal Pa1d-m excess of par value 

Total statutory Capdal 

Less stock subscnbt~on recewable 

Net Statutory Capital 

Q Current Penod Net Income 
Reta~ned earnmgs appropriated 

Q Retalned earnings unappmpnated 
Revaluat~on lndexatlon 
Accumulated IAS adjustments 

Subtotal 

Less Treasury Stock 

Total Capital 

Total Capital and Ltabdhs 

BALANCE 

Not Found Acwunts 
POSltNe 
Negatrve 

For more lnfo on Rejected Accounts refer t Error Lo 



Month lncome Statement on 01444998 

lnterest lncome 
Interbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Secumes 
Other 

Total lnterest lncome 

lnterest Eqmse 
Borrwngs from NBU 
Interbank Borrwngs 
Depos~ts 
Bank Issued secunt~es 
Other 

Total lnterest Ekpence 

Net lnterest Income 

Fee and Commsslon Incom 
Fee and Commss~on +we 

Gam (loss) from FX trade operation 
Gam (loss) from Trad~ng Secunt~es 

D ~ d e n t  lncome 
PenaL~es 
Other banlnng ~ncome 

Total mninterest lncome 

L e s s  h s l o n  for loan losses 

Total Bankng lncome 

Operatmg Bpnses 
Salanes and Errploee benetits 
Acktt~smng AIM and pmfess~onal fees 
Travel and Enterta~nrnent 
Amortuat~on of Faced Assets and IntanglMes 
Ut~lkles 
Rent 
Telephone 
S = m '  
Repars 
ChantaMe contnkrt~ons 
Other taxss and penaltlffi 
Other Operat~ng Epnses  

Total Operat~ng +rises 

Income before prowslon for Income Tams 

IncomeTaxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total Income Taxes 

Net lncome before pnor penod Adjustm 

Effect of pnor Penod Adjustment to 
lncome 
Expence 

Total pnor pencd Adjustmnts 

Net Income after pnor Penod Adjustmen 



XYZ Bank 

I Statement of Cash Flow I 
For the Month DD WW 

ash Flow From OperaUng Actlvltes I 
k t  Income (loss) from operatlorn before ~ m m e  Tax 

9djustmenh to reconcrle net Income to net cash flow pmv~ded 
m operatmq actiwt~es 

Deprec~at~on and amttmtcon 
Prons~on for cred~t losses 
Market value adjustment on secuntes 
Amxtmtlon of dlscount on secunt~es 

?t decrease (~ncrease) In tradlng secunt~es 
xrease) decrease In Loans to 

Bus~ness entltles 
lndhrtduals and other 

xrease) decrease In accrued Interest receivable 

Increase (decrease) In Depslts 
Demand 
Ti me 
Due to Banks 

ncrease (decrease) In accrued Interest payable 

(Increase) decrease In prep& and other assets 
increase (decrease) m other babhtles 

8sh paid for income taxes 

Net cash provlded by (used In) operating actMbes 

ash (used) provided In (from) Investing Activities 

ncrease) decrease In Interbank Loans and Reps 

xrease) decrease in lnterbranch Loans 
4rchase of Secunbes 
State bands held for Investment 
Equlty and other debt secuntles 

Redemption of secuntles 
State bands held for Investment 
Equlty and other debt secuntles 

Sale of secuntces net of galn 

Purchases of prernse and equipment net of ret~rentts 
Furchase of ~ntanglMe assets 

Net cash (used) provlded In lnvestlng acUvlUes 

ash (used) provided (from) financing activities 

lncrease (decrease) in NBU and Interbank barrorNlngs and reps 

Increase (decrease) m lnterbranch Loam 

reasuiy stock (aoqutred) relsswd 
Captal Contnbvtlon from Shareholders 
DMdends Declared 

Net cash (used) provided by JYnanclng acUvlUes 

k t  lncrease (decrease) m cash and equivalents 

Zsh and equivalents at beglnnlng of penod 
ash and equmlents at end of year 

Balance 

559 592 
639 758 
639 758 

0 



Bank Slavutich 
Statement of Changes in Shareholders equity 
Flrst quarter 1998 

I I I I I I I 
djusted beg~nn~ng balance 1 4 460 672 1 1 600 079 1 214 947 1 966 566 1 -44 813 1 351 010 1 7 548 461 

I I I I I I I 

Total capltal 

7 455 452 

Changes n accounting 
pnnc~ple and 1997 corrections 

I I I I I I I 

Changes m reserves I I 
I I 1 I 

Indexation 
reserve 

51 00 

351 010 

I I I I I I I 

reasury shares re~ssued I 108571 I 10 857 
I I I I I I 

Treasury 
stock 

3120 

-44 813 

50 000 
35 189 

scse-1 q98-slav xis 

Other 
reserves 

5021 

214 947 

(account number) 

Beglnnmg balance 31 12 97 

-958 746 
214 947 

Statutory 
capital 

5000 

4 460 672 

Retained 
earnings 

5030 

1 514 890 

General 
reserves 

5020 

958 746 

958 746 
-214 947 

7 820 

50 000 
35 189 
7 820 



Internatzonal Buszness & Technzcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Internabonal Development 

Fmanc~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
Kyiv 252034 Ukra~ne 

E-Mall ibtc~ua@sovamua corn 

Telephone (380-44) 246-4952 
(380-44) 225-75 15 
(380-44) 229 6525 

Fax (380-44) 246 4953 

BANK SLAVUTICH 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
June 30,1998 
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Balance Sheet on 01-07 1998 

ASSETS 
Cash on and 
Travele&hecks 
Banks Metals 
Funds at NBU 
Secunttes held for sale 
State Bonds Nomlnal Value 
Less Unamorbzed D~scnunt I Prem~um 
Net lnvestment In State Bonds 
Eqully Secunbes 
Debt Secunmes 

Total Secunbes held for sale 

Market Adjustment 

Net Secuntles held for sale 

Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Less Bad Debt reserve 

Net Interbank Loans 

Secunbes Purchased under Agreement to resel 
Loans to 
Busmess enbbes 
State agenwes 
lnd~v~duals 
Employees 

Total Loans 

Less Bad Debt Reserve 

Net Loans 

Secunttes held for Investment 
State Bonds Nom~nal Value 
Less Unamortued D~scount I Premlum 

Net Investment ~n State Bonds 

Equ~ty Secunbes 
Debt Secunbes 

Total Secunttes held for Investment 

Market Adjustments 

Net Secunbes held for lnvestment 

Investments m aftillates 
Low Value Items and Supplles Invetones 
Prepa~d Expenses 
MI% Accounts Rece~vable etc 
Less Anowance for Bad Debt 

Net Acmunts Recenralbe 

Cleanng acmunts 
Advan- to Branches 
Accrued Interest Recewable 
Prepald Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Operabng F~xed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Constructton In Progress 
Less Accumulated Depreaabon 

Net F~xed assets 

Foredosed and other Inactive fixed assets 
lntang~ble Assets 
Less Accumulated Arnort~zabon 

Net lntang~ble Assets 

Total Assets 

# 021WD71 G72 
SLAVU TlCH -- 
Pnmary Correctcons Balance sheet mth Cornpanson Difference Percent 
Table Cormdons Table 
6 mon to 6/98 6 mon to 6/98 3 mon to 3/98 3 mon to 6/98 

914 960 20 0 914 960 20 947 071 36 32 11 1 16 3 51 / 
9 635 08 0 9 635 08 9 635 08 0 0 OOY 

0 0 0 0 0 0 OoO/ 
350 004 04 0 350 004 04 291 401 55 58 602 49 16 74%' - -- -- - - 
574 591 24 0 574 591 24 665 304 89 90 713 65 15 79% 



LIABILITIES 
Demand Depos~ts 
State Budget 
Busmess enbbes 
lndlwduals 
Tme Oeposlts 
State Budget 
Busmess enbees 

Total Deposits 

Due to banks 
Loans Due NBU 
Short Term 
Long Term 
Interbank Loans 
Secunees sold under Agreement to Repurchase 
Debt Secunbes ~ssued 
Term and revolvmg 
Less Unamorttzed D~scont I Premlum 

Net Term and Revolv~ng 

Subordmated Debt 

Total Debt Secunrttes Issued 

Accrued Interest Payable 
M~sc Accounts payable and accruals 
Cleanng Accounts 
Advances from Branches 
Deffered Income 
Stockhddeh Investment pendmg reg~stra 
Accrued Income Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total Llab~l~ties 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Capltal 
Statutory Par Value 
Cap~tal Padin excess of par value 

Total statutory Cap~tal 

Less stock subscnbbon rece~vable 

Net Statutory Cap~tal 

Current Penod Net Income 
Retamed earnlngs appmpnated 
Retamed earnlngs unappmpnated 
Revaluabon Indexaeon 
Accumulated IAS adjustments 

Subtotal 

Less Treasury Stock 

Total Cap~tal 

Total Capital and Liabilities 

BALANCE 

Not Found Acmunts 
Pos~ttve 
Negattve 



INCOME 

lncome Statement on 01-07 1998 
SLAW TlCH -- 
Pnmary Correctlms Income wth 
Table Corrections 

lnterest locome 
Interbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Secunhes 
Other 

Total lnterest l n m  

lnterest Expense 
Borrmngs from NBU 
Interbank B o m n g s  
Deposits 
Bank lssued secuntles 
Other 

Total lnterest Expence 

Net Interest Income 

Fee and Commlsslon lncome 
Fee and Comm~sslon Expense 

Gam (km) from FX trade operation 
Galn (loss) from Tradlng Secunhes 

Dlvldent lncome 
Penahes 
Other banlung Income 

Total non-lnterest lncome 

Less Pmvls~on for ban losses 

Total Banlung lncome 

Operatmg Expenses 
Salanes and Emploee benefits 
Adverblng Audlt and pmfessl~lal fees y 
Travel and Entertainment 
M z a h o n  of Fuced Assets and lntanglb a 
Ubllhes 
Rent 
TelephMle 
*n t~  
Repars 
Chantable contnbubons 
Other tawes and penantes 
Other Operahng Expenses - 
Total Operating Expenses 

- -- 
Income before provision for Income Taxes -82 926 43 85 843 17 2 916 74 

lncome Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 

Total Income Taxes 

Net lnmme before pnor penod Adjustme 

Effect of pnor Penod Adjustment to 
Income 
Expew 

Total pnor penod Adjustments 

Net Income afler prior Penod Adjustmen 



Slavubch Bank 

l~tatement of Cash Flow - - -. - - . . . - - - - . 
For the 2 qv 1998' 

Cash Flow From Operating Acbwtes 
Net Income (loss) from operations before mcome Tax 

Adjustments to reconcile net lncome to net cash 
flow provlded from operating actlvltles 
Depreclatlon and amortlzatlon 
Prov~slon for credlt losses 
Market value adjustment on secuntes 
Amort~zatlon of dlscount on secuntles 

Loss on sale of securltles 
Net decrease (lncrease) In tradlng securltles 

(Increase) decrease In Loans to 
Busmess entltles 
lnd~uduals and other 

(1nc)ldec In acc Int Receivable 
Adjustment for wnte-offs 

lncrease (decrease) In Deposlts 
Demand 
T~me 
Due to Banks 

Inc/(dec) In acc Int Payable 
(Increase) decrease n prepalds and other assets 
lncrease (decrease) In other llabll~tles 

cash pald for Income taxes 

I Net cash provlded by (used in) operat~ng act~vltles 

Cash (used) prov~ded ~n (from) lnvestlng Actlvlt~es 
(Increase) decrease n Interbank Loans and Repos 
(Increase) decrease In lnterbranch Loans 
Purchase of Secuntles 
State bonds held for Investment 
Equlty and other debt secuntles 

Redemption of secuntles 
State bonds held for Investment 
Equlty and other debt secuntles 

Sale of secuntles net of gain 
Purchases of premise and equipment net of rettrem ts 
Purchase of lntanglble assets 

( Net cash (used) provlded in investing act~v~bes 

l ~ a s h  (used) provtded (from) finanslng acDv~ttes 

lncrease (decrease) In NBU and Interbank borrowings and repos 
lncrease (decrease) In lnterbranch Loans 

Treasury stock (acquired) relssued 
Capltal Contnbutlon from Shareholders 
Dlv~dends Declared 

I Net cash (used) provided by financing acbvltles 

Net lncrease (decrease) In cash and equlvalents 
Cash and equwalents at beg~nnlng of penod 
Cash and equlvalents at end of year 

Balance 



chancap xls 

Changes In Shareholders' Equity 2nd Quarter 1998 
5000 5030 5020 5021 31 20 

Statutory Retamed General Other Treasury Flxed asset 
cap~tal earnings reserves reserves stock mdexat~on Total ca ital 

I 

"0° " 
~ M I H H  Y pe3epBl Ha KPeJlMTHI 
P M ~ K M  Changes In reserves 

YMCTMR npM6yT0K aa neplofl Net Income (loss) -87 054 

Kope~qli s n ~ ~ o  MCSO effect of IAS adjustments -85 843 -85 843 
2 584 

Treasury shares 
B # ~ y n n e ~ l  a~1.111 (purchased) or reissued -6 358 

B ~ n n a ~ a  JlMBlJleHAlB D~vidends pa~d 

3anuuo~ ~a 30 06 98 Ending balance 30 06 98 4 460 672 1 594 465 214 947 966 566 -40 314 351 010 7 547 346 



Internatronal Busrness & Technrcal Consultants, Inc Exhlblt IV - 4 
U S Agency for Internabonal Development 

F~nanc~al Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 Telephone (280-44) 246-4952 
Kylv 252034 Ukrarne (380-44) 223 75 IS 

(780 44) 229 6525 
E Mall ~btc~ua@sovamua corn Fax (380-44) 246 4933 

VABANK 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
March 31,1998 

NBUILISAIDIIBTCVFI~~~CI~~ Infkastructure Development Project 



VaBank 
Balance Sheet 

(thousand UAH) 
ASSETS March 31, 1998 January 12,1998 

Cash on Hand 
Travelers Checks 
Funds at NBU 
Securities held for sale 

State Bonds - Nommal Value 
Less Unamortized Discount 

Net Investments In State Bonds 
Equlty Securltles 

Total Secur~ties held for sale 
Market Adjustment 
Net Secur~tles held for sale 

Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Loans to 

Business entlties 
Indlv~duals 

Total Loans 
Less Reserve for Loan Losses 
Net Loans 

Securibes held for Investment 
State Bonds - Nominal Value 
Less Unamortized Discount 

Net Investment m State Bonds 
Investment securities 

Total securities held for investment 
Investments in affiliates and subsid~aries 
Low Value Items and Suppl~es Inventories 
Prepa~d Expenses 
Misc Accounts Recelvable, etc 
Accrued Interest Recelvable 
Prepa~d Taxes 
Operatmg F~xed Assets 

Owned 
Leased 
Constmctlon In progress 
Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Fixed assets 
Intangible and Inactive Assets 

Total Assets 



VaBank 
Balance Sheet 

(thousand UAH) 
LIABILITIES March 31, 1998 January 12,1998 

Demand Deposits 
State Agencies 
Buslness entitles 
Individuals 

Time Deposlts 
Busmess entrties 
Indlvrduals 

Cert~ficate of Deposits 
Total Deposrts 

Due to banks 
Due to NBU 

Short-term 
Long-term 

Interbank Loans 
Securitres sold under Agreement to Repurchase 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Mrsc Accounts payable and accruals 
Accrued Income Taxes 

Total Lrabllities 

Shareholders' Eau~tv 
Caprtal Stock 

Statutory Par Value 
Caprtal pa~d-m excess of par value 
Total Statutory Cap~tal 

Appropnated Retained Earn~ngs 
Loan Loss Reserve 
Other 

Unappropriated Retained Earn~ngs (Deficit) 
Subtotal 

Less Treasury Stock 
Total Shareholders' Equity 

Total L~abilrtles and Shareholders' Equrty 



VaBank 
Statement of Income 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

Interest Income 
Interbank Loan 
Customer Loans 
Securit~es 
Total Interest Income 

Interest Expense 
Borrowings from NBU 
Interbank Borrowings 
Deposits 
Bank-issued securities 

Other 
Total Interest Expense 
Net Interest Income 

Other banking Income (Expenses) 
Fee and Commission Income 
Fee and Commission Expense 
Gam (loss) from FX trade operation 

Gain (loss) from Trading Securities 
Other bankmg income 
Loan Loss Reserve Provmon 

Total other bankmg Income (Expenses) 
Total Banlung Income 

Operating Expenses 
Salaries and Emploee benefits 
Advertising, Audit and professional fees 
Travel and Entertamment 
Amortlzatlon of Fixed Assets and Intangibles 
Utilities 
Rent 
Telephone 
Secur~ty 
Repairs 
Chantable contrlbutlons 
Other taxes and penalties 
Other Operatmg Expenses 
Total Operatmg Expenses 

Income before provision for Income Taxes 
Income Taxes 

Net Loss 



VaBank 
Statement of Cash Flow 

F o r  the  Q u a r t e r  Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

Cash Flow From Operat~ng A c t ~ v ~ t ~ e s  
Net Income (loss) £tom operations 

AdJustments to reconcile net tncome to net cash flow 
provrdedfiom operatrng actzvrtles 

Depreciation and amortization 
Prov~sion for Cred~t losses 
Market value adjustment on securltles 
Amortization of discount on securitles 

Net decrease (mcrease) m tradmg securities 
(Increase) Decrease m Loans to 

Busmess entltles 
Individuals and other 

(Increase)/decrease m accrued mterest recetvable 
Increase (Decrease) m Deposlts 

Demand 
Tune 
Due to Banks 

Increase/(decrease) m accrued mterest payable 
(Increase) decrease m prepa~ds and other assets 
Increase (decrease) m other liabll~t~es 
Cash paid for mcome taxes 

Net cash prov~ded by (used in) operat~ng actlvltles 

Cash (used) prov~ded from Investing Actwt~es  
Increase (Decrease) m mterbank borrowmgs and REPOs 
Purchase of equity and other debt securitles 
Redemption of state bonds for Investment 
Purchase of premlse and equipment, net of retirements 
Purchase of mtangible assets 

Net cash (used) provided In mvestmg act~v~ties 

Cash (used) prov~ded from finanncmg actlvltles 
Increase (decrease) m NBU borrowmgs 
Increase (decrease) m mterbank borrowmgs and REPOs 
Increase (decrease) m fmancmg leases 
Treasury stock (purchased) sold 
Increase (decrease) m unappropr~ated retamed earnings 

Net cash (used) provided by financ~ng actlv~tles 

Net Increase (decrease) m cash and equ~valents 
Cash and equ~valents at beglnnlng of period 

Cash and equ~valents at end of year 



Va Bank 
Statement of changes ~n Shareholders' Equ~ty 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

1997 Correct~ons, 
net 0 0 0 0 330 0 

Net Loss for 
the Quarter 

Statutory 
Cap~tal 

Transfer from General 
Loan Loss Reserve 0 0 (18) 0 18 0 

Balance as of 
January 12, 1998 11 251 6 96 2814 599 3 

Par 
Value 

Treasury Stock 
Purchased 0 0 0 0 0 11 

P a ~ d  ln excess 
of par value 

Appropr~ated 
Retained Eam~ngs 

Balance as of 
March 3 1, 1998 11 251 6 78 2814 (1 775) 14 

Retamed 
Eam~ngs 
(Defic~t) 

Loan Loss 
Reserve 

Treasury 
Stock Other 



Znternatronal Buszness & Technzcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Internabonal Development 

Flnanclal Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 
Kyrv 252034 Ukra~ne 

Telephone (380-44) 246-4952 
(380 44) 225 7515 
(180-44) 229 6525 

Fax (380-44) 246 4953 

VABANK 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

As of and for the Quarter ended 
June 30,1998 
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VaBank 
Balance Sheet 

UAH 
01 07 98 01 04 98 Difference 

ASSETS 
Cash on Hand 9 221 5 421 3 801 
Travelers Checks 338 533 (195) 
Funds at NBU 2 363 2 621 (258) 
Secur~tles held for sale 
State Bonds - Nomtnal Value 7 331 6 702 629 
Less Unamorttzed Dtscount / Premium (814) (408) (406) 
Net Investment m State Bonds 6 517 6 294 223 
Equity Securtties 
Total Secur~tles held for sale 
Market Adjustment 
Net Secur~t~es held for sale 
Due From Banks 
Interbank Loans 
Loans to 
Busmess enttties 
Indtvtduals 
Total Loans 
Less Bad Debt Reserve 
Net Loans 
Secur~tles held for ~nvestment 
State Bonds - Nominal Value 
Less Unamorttzed Dtscount / Premium 
Net Investment m State Bonds 
Equtty Securities 
Net Securltles held for Investment 
Low Value Items and Supplies Invetortes 
Prepatd Expenses 
Mtsc Accounts Recewable, etc 
Accrued Interest Receivable 
Prepa~d Taxes 
Current 
Operatmg Fixed Assets 
Owned 
Leased 
Construction in Progress 
Less Accumulated Deprectation 
Net F~xed assets 
Foreclosed and other tnacttve fixed assets 
Intangible Assets 
Less Accumulated Amortlzat~on 
Net Intangible Assets 
Total Assets 



VaBank 
Balance Sheet 

UAH 
LIABILITIES 

Demand Depos~ts 
Busmess entitles 
Ind~v~duals 
Tlme Deposlts 
Busmess ent~t~es 
Ind~v~duals 
Certificate of Depos~ts 
Total Deposlts 
Due to banks 
Loans Due NBU 
Short Term 
Long Term 
l n t ~ r h g k  loans 
Accrued Interest Payable 
Misc Accounts payable and accruals 
Clearing Accounts 
Accrued Income Taxes 
Current 
Total L~abll~tles 

CAPITAL 
Statutory Cap~tal 
Statutory Par Value -16 757 -11 251 -5 507 
Cap~tal Pa~d-in excess of par value -407 -6 -40 1 
Net Statutory Capltal -17 165 -11 257 -5 907 
Retamed earnmgs - appropriated 

General reserve -371 -78 -293 
Other reserves -8 564 -2 814 -5 750 

Retamed earnings - unappropriated 8 152 1 775 6 377 
Subtotal -17 948 -12 374 -5 574 
Less Treasury Stock 27 14 14 
Total Capltal -17 921 -12 360 -5 560 
Total Cap~tal and L ~ a b ~ l ~ t ~ e s  -116 711 -121 876 5 165 



VaBank 
lncome Statement 

UAH 

lnterest lncome 
lnterbank Loans 
Customer Loans 
Securities 
Total lnterest lncome 
lnterest Expense 
Borrowmgs from NBU 
lnterbank Borrowmgs 
Deposits 
Bank-~ssued securities 
Other 
Total lnterest Expence 
Net lnterest lncome 

Fee and Commiss~on lncome 
Fee and Comm~ss~on Expense 

Gam (loss) from FX trade operation 
Gam (loss) from Trading Securities 

Divident lncome 
Penalt~es 
Other bank~ng Income 
Total non-interest lncome 
Less Provis~on for loan losses 
Total Bank~ng lncome 
Operatmg Expenses 
Salaries and Emploee benefits 
Advertis~ng, Aud~t and professional fees 
Travel and Entertainment 
Amort~zat~on of F~xed Assets and Intangibles 
Utilit~es 
Rent 
Telephone 
Securrty 
Repa~rs 
Charitable contrtbut~ons 
Other taxes and penalt~es 
Other Operatmg Expenses 
Total Operating Expenses 
lncome before provmon for lncome Taxes 
lncome Taxes 
Current 
Total lncome Taxes 
Net lncome before prior per~od Adjustment 
Effect of prior Period Adjustment to 
lncome 
Total prior period Adjustments 
Net lncome after prior Period Adjustment 

six months 
1998p 

Quarter 
frrst I second 



VaBank 
Cash Flow Statement 
For the second quarter 

(thousand hryvna) 
Cash Flow From Operating Act~v~tes 
Net Income (loss) from operations before Income Tax 
Adjustments to reconcile net Income to net cash 

prov~ded by operating act~vltles 
Depreclat~on and amortization 
Prov~slon for credit losses 
Market value adjustment on securites 
Amortlzat~on of d~scount on secuntles 

Net decrease (increase) In tradmg securltles 
(Increase) decrease In Loans (net of write-offs) to 

Busmess entlt~es 
lndivlduals and other 

(Increase) decrease In accrued Interest receivable 
lncrease (decrease) In Depos~ts 

Demand 
T~me 
Due to Banks 

lncrease (decrease) In accrued Interest payable 
(Increase) decrease In prepa~ds and other assets 
lncrease (decrease) In other liab~l~tles 
cash pard for Income taxes 

Net cash prov~ded by (used in) operat~ng 
actlv~tles 
Cash (used in) prov~ded by lnvestmg Act~v~t~es 
(Increase) decrease In Interbank Loans 
(Increase) decrease ~n lnterbranch borrowing 
Purchase of Secunt~es 

State bonds held for lnvestment 
Equlty and other debt secur~t~es 

Redemption of secuntles 
State bonds held for lnvestment 
Equlty and other debt securltles 

Sale of secuntles net of galn or loss 

Purchases of premlse and equ~pment net of retlrem'ts -1 014 

Purchases of premlse ~ntanglble assets -1 66 

Net cash (used in) prov~ded by lnvestlng actlvltles 7 192 

Cash (used) prov~ded (from) financing actlv~t~es 
lncrease (decrease) In NBU and mterbank borrowmgs 

and repos 
-6 824 

Increase (decrease) ~n Interbranch Loans 0 
Treasury stock (acquired) reissued -1 4 

Cap~tal Contnbutlon from Shareholders 5 507 
D~v~dends pald 0 

Net cash (used tn) prowded by financmg -1 331 
actlv~t~es 

Net lncrease (decrease) ~n cash and equlvalents 
Cash and equlvalents at beg~nning of period 
Cash and equivalents at end of year 



Va Bank 
Statement of changes in Shareholders' Equ~ty 

For the Quarter Ended March 31,1998 
(thousand UAH) 

1997 Corrections, 
net 0 0 0 0 330 0 

Net Loss for 
the Quarter 

Transfer from General 
Loan Loss Reserve 0 0 (1 8) 0 18 0 

Balance as of 
January 12,1998 11 251 6 96 2814 599 3 

Retained 
Earmngs 
(Deficit) 

Statutory 
Capital 

Treasury Stock 

Treasury 
Stock 

Par 
Value 

Appropriated 
Retained Earmngs 

Balance as of 

Paid in excess 
of par value 

Loan Loss 
Reserve 

March 31,1998 11 251 6 78 2814 (1 775) 14 

0 ther 
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Internatronal Brrsrness & Teclinrcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for Internat~onal Development 

Futanclal Infrdstructure Development Project 
Vulitsa Lysenko 4 Apartment 13 Telephone 380-44-2296525 
Kylv 252034, Ukraine Fax 380-44-246-4953 

Date February 23, 1998 

To Laune Landy, US AID 
Victor Verhun 

From Gary P Fechtmeyer 
Team Leader 

Subject Focus of PAB component and modification of benchmarks 

Attached please find a prelimnary schedule of accountmg/conversion workshops whch the 
two advlsory teams are proposmg to offer jointly to the PAB group The use of a 'horkshop 
approach" to advlse the PAB group is, I believe, stgruficantly different from the general 
approach outlined in the onginal project TOR and related benchmarks Therefore, I want to 
set forth the reasons for the change m approach and the resulting change to the benchmarks 
for your revlew and approval The revlsed approached has been recommended to NBU by 
Rem and tt is my understanding that NBU supports the change 

The ongnal approach for the PAB component provlded for lmted TA consistmg of 
revlewng the mapptng chart from the old chart of accounts to the new chart of accounts at the 
bas~c account level and advlstng on the application of the new accountmg standards Thrs TA 
was to be delivered to asstgned PABs through a senes of site vlslts, bastcally a one day vlslt 
per PAB each quarter 

The progress made in the IAS conversion has changed the TA needs for the PABs 
Specifically, the majonty of the banking sector IS no longer mapping fiom the old to new chart 
of accounts but are codtng transactions directly tnto the new accounts, thereby elmnating the 
need to revlew mapping procedures Thts represents a major achtevement 1x1 the reform effort, 
but the commercial banks still need stgmficant TA ~n the more complicated process of 
developing the procedures whch need to be adopted to conform their financlal records to IAS 
and in prepmng LAS-formatted financtal reports 

Our expenence wth  the P B s  is that one day site vlsits would not provlde suffictent time to 
adequately tram bank accountmg staff tn the techca l  aspects of d e t e m n g  IAS adjustments 
and to tntroduce them to IAS reporting The advantage of the workshop approach IS that the 
combined resources of both USAlD and EUTACIS teams are used to deltver speclfic 
techca l  subjects based on actual expenence wtth the PIBs The participants would be tralned 
to use conversion implementation tools already tested in the PIBs(i e valuation model for 
investment securities) At the begimng of the following session, time IS allocated for a revlew 
of the results achieved by using the lmplementatlon tool Thls ' hands on7' evaluation process 
is conducted either on a one-on-one basis or tn small groups directed by the project's 
Accounting Consultants and selected PLB staff 



By comb~tung the project resources, we are proposmg to del~ver a senes of ten, one day 
workshops to representatives of 22 PABs dunng a four month penod, March through June 
Part~apation WU be stnctly controlled by the NBU to Insure conttnutty Thls approach should 
provlde trarung in a broader range of techcal  subjects than the ongmal approach as well as 
allowrng for some opportumty for ~nd~vldual TA Thls rewsed program, however, w11 not 
measure whether the lmplementat~on tools are being used effectwely In the lndivldual PABs m 
order to aclueve susta~ned IAS-based financ~al reportmg But, l~mted s~te  vlslts as ong~naIIy 
contemplated would also not acheve that objecttve It would take a more extenstve program 
of frequent stte ws~ts and follow up to develop sustamable IAS-based accounttng systems wlth 
a PAB group 

Based on the approve factors, I am recomrnend~ng we mod~fy the ortgmal benchmarks for the 
PAB component and replace them wth the condensed work shop senes outlmed above If 
you concur w t h  th s  recommendation, please ind~cate your approval below I am ava~lable at 
your convemence to dtscuss any questions andfor suggestlons you may have on the above 
Issue 

Approved by 

Laune Landy, USAID Date 



Internaaonal Busmess & Technzcal Consulta6ts, Inc 
U S Agency for Internat~onal Development 

Fmancial Lnfrastructure Development Project 
Vulitsa Lysenko 4, Apartment 13 Telephone 380-44-246-4952 
Kyiv 252034 Ukraine 225-7517 
e-mail ibtciua@adam kiev com Fax 380-44-246-4953 

Part~c~patmg Bank Workshop Schedule 
Condensed Draft For D~scuss~on and Amendment 

Manual (Chapter 
Reference 

When What 

Intro to Process and Parkipants 
Implementahon Process 
Mam accountmg concepts 
Tool U S  adJustment checklzst 
NBU uersaectwes - Su~emsion and MIS 

Renu Duflot 
Bernhard Kopp ] Chapter 2 
Gary Fechtmeyer I Chapter 3 I 

Follow-up checklist responses 
Monthly closmgs adjustmg, correctmg, post- 

(Taskey, Nlchol 7) 

IBTCI team 

IBTCI team 
JohnstodSavytslu 

Ch 7 1,8 4 

closmg entnes 
Introduction to US-formatted statements 
Tool Fznancral Statement Template Tool 
(FrSTT) v 1 
Follow-up use of FiSTT on 28 02 98 file 02 
Fixed Assets 
Leases 
Follow-up use of FiS'IT on 3 1 03 98 file 02 
Secunhes 
Tool securrfies valuafion model ( S W )  
Foreign Exchange 
Follow uu secuntles valuahon usrne SVM 

I 

IBTCI team 
IBTCI team I ~h 7 4  

IBTCI team 
PW team 
IBTCI team 

PW team ] ~h 7 3  

Ch 7 5  
Ch 7 6  

Loan loss Prowsion 
Tool NB U credzt evaluatron matrzx 

IBTCI team 
PW (and GT7) 

Follow-up loan loss provision 

Contmgencles, Commitments, Post-balance sheet 

Ch 7 2  

IBTCI team 
events 
Off-balance sheet accounts 
Follow-up use of FiS'IT on 3 1 03 98 file 02 

PW team 
IBTCI team I 

Quarterly Fmancial statement adjustments TBA ( ~ h  8 4  1 
Tool FISTT - v 2 (wr fh ad~ustment capabrlrty) 
Follow-up use of FlSTT v 2 on 3 1 03 98 file 02 

JohnstonfSa slu 
IBTCI team 
Colm Sutherland . Accountmg Pollcies and Procedures andlor Colm 

Sutherland s greatest hits - volume 1 
Cash Flow Statement (CFS) TBA 
Tool CFS template or FrSTT v 3 
IAS 30, Footnotes 
Using outside auditors vs dolng your own IAS 
Introduction to Management Accountmg 
Converting NBU report~ng database Into useful 
infornabon 

I 

TBA \ Chapter 4 Ch 8 1 
(UFPAA guests?) 1 
TBA 
TBA 1 Ch 7 9-7 10 I 

PAB-sched doc 



Nabonal Bank of Ukratne - F~nancml Infrastructure Detelopmenf 
lmplementatlon of Intel natronal Accountrng Standards Frnal Repor I 

Exhibit VI 
Conference Material 

lnternatronal Busrness & Technrcal Consultants Inc 



Bank Accounting Reform 
in Ukraine 



System wide adoption of IAS- I 

compatible Chart of Accounts 
(CON 
Transaction level conversion to 
new COA 

Full accrual accounting '.J 

Revised system of 
regulatory/statistical reporting to 
NBU 



June 17,1997- 

July 7,1997- 
July 21,1997- 

September 25,1997- 

September 29,1997- 

IAS compatible COA and 
Underlying Assumptions approved 
Directive on Foreign Exchange 
Finalized Analytical Account 
Structure 1 Bridge Table 
Directive on Accounting for 
Income and Expenses (Accrual) 
Directive on Loan Loss Reserve 
Provision 



October 1,1997- Banks submit first NBU reports, 
Bridging used 

December 1997- Directive on fixed assets and 
leases and Investment Securities 

December 31,1997- Instruction 10, Prudential 
Regulations 

January 1,1998- COA implemented 
January 5,1998- Opening Balances in new COA 

submitted to NBU 



A. Current accounting environment in 
Ukrainian Commercial Banks 

B. What this means to Ukrainian 
Enterprises 

C. The Commercial Banker's Responsibility 
I 





Joint USAID, EUTACIS, British 
Know How Fund effort 
Project Components: I 

Pilot Banks - extensive on-site 
3 

technical assistance 
Participating Banks - workshops to 
train in use of implementation tools 
developed in Pilots 
Sector-wide IAS training 



I Bridge Validation Program 
IAS Adjustment Checklist 
IAS Financial Statement 
Preparation Program 
((<Barracuda>() 
INVEST Program for State 
Bonds 



International Business & Technrcal Consultants, Inc 
U S Agency for International Development 

Financial Infrastructure Development Project 
Vul~tsa Lysenko 4, Apartment 13 Telephone 380-44 246-4952 
K y ~ v  252034 Ukraine 225 7517 
e-ma11 ibtcma@adarn klev ua Fax 380-44-246 4953 

USAID NIS Accountmg Reform Conference 
Almaty, Kazakstan 

D~scusslon Outllne on Ukrame Commerc~al Bank IAS Implementation 
Wednesday 22 Aprll1998 

Sector Infrastructure (Slide - Discussion bullets) 

National Bank of Ukraine (NBU) has been the pnmary govemment entity overseeing banks The 
NBU Law and the Law on Banks and Banking were developed under NBU inihative Although 
Banks are also required to comply with the Accounting Law, the NBU has been able to wnte and 
implement its own accounting d~rectives without Ministry of Finance intervention Accordingly, 
despite the fact that enterprise accounting reforms in Ukraine lag, the banking sector has been able to 
proceed on a relatively fast-track to IAS adoption 

"In collaboration wth  the International Monetary Fund, a matrix of donor assistance was put m place 
early on to develop basic central bank functions - different aspects of bank supervision, development 
of the electronic funds payment system, development of an IAS-based chart of accounts, 
development of a pnmary market in govemment securities " The successful introduction in early 
1996 of the new national currency, the hryvnia, and a significant reduction in the inflation rate further 
improved the backdrop against which an orderly and focused accounting reform process could be 
carned out (Reference and handout Lame Landy's Develovznp Sound Banks m Transztlonal 
Economzes) 

Pro~ect Context (Slide - NBU/AID/TACIS Project Structure) 

USAID has been funding technical assistance programs to develop NBU bank supervision since 
1995 Later, tra~ning programs urlthin NBU were developed, and concurrently, USAID funding was 
provlded to academic programs such as the Center for the Tra~ning of Bank Personnel 
(KPMGBarents, USAID Contractor) Also within the NBU, development of the IAS-based Chart of 
Accounts (COA) began, with consultation from Bntish Know-How Fund and other donor agencies 

The Commercial Bank LAS Accountmg Reform Project began in June 1997, as a joint technical 
advisory program of USAID and EUTACIS to assist the NBU wth  implementation of IAS, using the 
already-drafted COA as an "anchor", and a pre-selected group of fifteen Pilot Banks (PIBs) as the 
preliminary testing "fleet " (Slide - NBU/AID/TACIS Project Structure) While IBTCI and most 
PW effort focus on the commercial banks, other consultants work with~n the NBU all independent 
NBU advisors and consulting groups interface and coordinate efforts, with AID and TACIS 
facilitating the planned joint effort 
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Pro~ect Act~vitv Julv 1997 to date 

This program component of the Financial Infrastructure Development Project launched as a fifteen 
month effort in June 1997 It consists of two components the Pilot Bank (PIB) component and the 
Participating Bank (PAB) component International Business & Technical Consultants, Inc (IBTCI) 
is the USAID contractor providing technical assistance Dunng 1997, substantially all project 
resources were devoted to the PIB component with the objective of shanng these pilot expenences 
with PABs m 1998 Dunng the first quarter of 1998 we delivered three seminars of a ten seminar 
series planned for PABs and being conducted jointly by the USAID-IBTCI and EUTACIS-Pnce 
Waterhouse project teams General project structure and approach are as follows 

The IBTCI team consists of three resident foreign advisors Two advisors are accounting 
speclalists (American CPA's) and the third is a specialist in information technology The team 
also includes five national consultants - four accountants and one IT specialist 
IAS conversion teams at the four project PIBs consist of one (IBTCI) national accounting 
consultant working with PIB accounting and IT personnel Each foreign accountmg advlsor has 
pnmary responsibility for two of the PIB teams The foreign IT advisor and his local counterpart 
work as a team to provlde IT consultation and software development for all four PIB groups 
Work began in JunefJuly wth  a Diagnostic phase at the four pre-selected PIBs The pre- 
selection process itself (of all fifteen PIBs) was a slgnlficant technical effort involving USAID 
and its contractors already working m the bank supervision area The diagnostic phase allowed 
an updated analysis of bank management and the financials, and resulted in confirmation of PIB 
selection and PIB resource commitments 
During the PIB ~mplementation, the USAID-IBTCI teams have spent considerable resources on 
the particular accountmg and reporting systems of their respective PIBs However, we have also 
focused as a Project Team on developing basic Implementation Tools which could be used 
throughout the banlung sector These include a Bndge Validation Program, IAS Adjustment 
Checklist, Market Valuation Model and a Program that prepares IAS formatted Financial 
Statements from NBU-required reporting files 

The Methodolow (Slrde - Conversron Levels) 

As of year-end 1997 PIBs were preparing "roughly" IAS statements based on the old (Gosplan- 
based) accounting systems and bndglng of month-end balances accompanied by account analyses 
and "quick and dirty" transformation adjustments These bndging exercises, however, were planned 
only as expenmentation with and refinement of the new COA 

Very early on in our process, the NBU and all advisors had been agreed that a bridging-based system 
(we called it a "Level 1" approach) could not be easlly sustained (Slrde - Convers~on Levels) The 
sustainable conversion would require a cutover to the new IAS-compatible COA in order to work - 
meaning that all transactions would need to be put into a substantively correct account from the get- 
go - we called this a 'Level 2' conversion In an ideal world in which a PIl3 committed to full sub- 
system redesign (I e , Incorporating international-style subsidiary ledgers instead of keeping all 
account details in the general ledger (GL)) we could even accomplish a Level 3 conversion 

Methodology met with reality in December 1997, when, after conducting cntical tests of the 
electronic payments system, (and possibly due to not being able to change a World Bank 
conditional~ty date 7) the NBU committed us to a minimum Level 2 Conversion - in the last week 
of December, they announced that the new IAS-based COA would be required for daily regulatory 
reporting effective 1 January 1998 

Key Accomplishments the Im~lementatlon Tools 
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Demonstration Segment tool by tool wrth hard coples to be handed out 

1) The Bndpe Validation Program A Foxpro-based model created by the IBTCI resident IT 
advisor that allowed us in the early expenmental phases to test accuracy of old to new 
account conversions (Demo only on laptop) 

2) The IAS Adiustment Checklist A short-form month-end review checklist compliled by the 
accounting team and used in PIBs to ensure that all significant IAS adjustments had been 
made (Hard-copy handout) 

3) We went through several releases of the Microsoft Access-based Financial Statement 
Generator at PIBs dunng fourth quarter 1997, before a beta version of ' Barracuda" was 
released to PIBs and PABs in the first quarter of 1998 

This tool initially filled an immediate need - because NBU required their new monthly 
balance sheet and income statement data to be submitted in "data string" format 
electronically, the PIBs (and all CB's) were left to deal with the problem of how to pnnt 
these data stnngs in recognizable forms so that Chief Accountants could understand the 
numbers they were "signing off' on We as consultants were also interested in "seemg 
the numbers" 
The tool then evolved from a statement printing tool into an accountants' review and 
wnte-up tool It enables booking worksheet entnes, reformatting report lines on balance 
sheet and income statement, and importing prior period numbers for on-screen analysis 
capability 
Current modifications are being made to add a "draft Cash Flow Statement" module that 
w11 greatly simplify the preparation of a full set of IAS financials (Demo on laptop with 
hard copy handout of English language 'Barracuda ' instructions) 

4) The Market Valuation Model called "Invest-A" was developed principally by one of the 
team's national accountmg consultants, and is essentially a "mini-sub-system" for a bank's 
portfolio of Government Discount Secunties (called OVDP) Given data entry of a simple 
database including purchase date and amount and m a m t y  date and amount of OVDP 
acquisitions, it promdes calculations of the effective yield of the secunty, discount 
amortization (straight-line and effective interest method), and an estimated market value 
based on current auction ylelds (Demo on laptop) 

Surprises and Obstacles cop in^ and Solvmg 

December NBU Decision to cutover to new COA on January 1" (As late as end-November 1997, the 
World Bank was considering deferring the "cutover date" to 1 Apnl 1998 ) In retrospect the same 
sector infrastructure that gave us a good start was probably the main reason for the last minute NBU 
dec~sion - the very well developed electronic payments system Key to the new COA decision was 
whether the new account codes (synthetic AND ANALYTICAL) could be accomodated by the 
system and by the banks internally Probably the latter was the main concern, and apparently the 
December test results upheld the cholce to ' go ' 

Late fall 1997 NBU announcement that regulatory filing would be done in electronic data files 
instead of vla pnntable/readable text files in established formats, as in the past This came after the 
banking system had gotten a draft 200 page volume of pnnted, 'picture perfect new regulatory 
reporting forms to go along with the new COA, all in June and July This decis~on of course created 
the need for our IT advisors to help us convert the data Into understandable balance sheets and 
income statements - and a major project accomplishment evolved as a result 
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Obstacles 

Catch 22 - Accountants could not independently adopt policies and procedures based on IAS without 
the impnmatur of an NBU directive (like all NIS countnes) But then NBU-issued draft instructions 
were either confuslng or vague or conflict w th  the tax code and require interpretation anyway 

COA 1s IAS - Accountants at CBs, and even some NBU people thlnk that now that they have adopted 
the new COA, their work is done But old redundant bookkeeping entries continue, despite the fact 
that eventually an economic event lands in the nght account We have been working with PIB (and 
now PAB) staff on differentiating between ground-level bookkeeping entnes (that of course comply 
with NBU instructions) from the month-end adjusting, reclassifying and correcting entries that are 
needed in order to prepare materially accurate IAS statements 

Book VS Tax - Accountants here are havlng a difficult time understanding that IAS-based financial 
accounting is THE bass for a consistent, meaningful set of books, whereas tax rules result in 
incons~stent, non-comparable accounting records At every step they fear vlolatlon of the tax rules 
and the results of any tax exam - especially now that there are distinct RAP-TAX differences We 
are training them to classlfy the differences (permanent vs temporary) and track them (manually so 
far - until the IT functions have time to focus on developing some reporting aids) in the context of 
calculating and booking an IAS tax provision and liability (current and deferred, andlor deferred tax 
assets) 

The Book vs tax issue is much larger than the project itself, however, and this 1s where coordinat~on 
of project funding for revlsion of the tax code, training of bank-spec~allzed tax inspectors and 
development of 'schedule-M-type" models for the NBU, CBs and the tax lnspectorate is important as 
progress toward transferable/sustainable preparation of IAS financlals continues And here is where 
perhaps the NBU needs to move m lockstep w t h  the enterpnse sector - trying to rush too far ahead 
of overall accounting and tax reform could potentially threaten the latter, or erase reform gains made 
to date m the banlang sector 

Conclus~on Lessons to Learn (1 e Thlngs to Copy) from the Ukra~ne Experience 

Macro 

The payments system Ukraine's electronic payments system has been cited as exceptionally good 
for an NIS country This was in part attrtbutable to over $2 million specifically for hardware granted 
by USAID in summer 1995 Of course in any banking system, anywhere, moving money efficiently 
is the first thing it needs to do If operations go smoothly, the central bank obviously has more time 
to spend on writmg a COA and IAS-based directwes since it spends less time chasing mis-routed 
money Clearly a key strategy-level issue 

M~ddle (Project Plannlng and Deslgn) 

The degree of coordination between USAID and EUTACIS in del~venng related advlsory services to 
NBU and commercial banks d u n g  co-scheduled projects could be unique in this bank accounting 
reform effort Wh~le our respectwe TORS ml l  always include overlap, there IS a great deal of 
cooperation golng on between the IBTCI and PW teams that reduces unnecessary duplication of work 
and gets all mvolved donors a better 'bank for the buck (Besides delivering jomt seminars, we 
share our tools with their consultants and PIBs they developed an Implementation Manual and 
shared w ~ t h  us, and have an expanded team to call on for more PIB expenence - it really is as if we 
are all working with all 15 PIBs on some level, even though we only focus ~ndiv~dually on one or 
two) It is never easy to plan and facilitate a consortium effort, but we have realized true efficiencies 
in this expenence that we consider worth emulating 
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The keep-it-simple ("KIS") success formally can be stated as SKILLS PLUS TOOLS Well, you as 
well as we have the skills, and we know a large part of any USAID project is to transfer those skills 
to our counterparts and country clients that's not new But what could be new IS a real dedicat~on to 
developing [mostly simple] accessible, portable tools (like the validation program , the checklist, 
Barracuda and Invest-A) Trainlng and dlsseminatlon of well designed and executed tools is like 
being in more than one place at the same time That's effective time management, a great cost- 
benefit trade-off and anything else you want to call it m management accounting terms (you can buy 
more than a few boxes of diskettes for the price of an add~t~onal consultant) 
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Nat~onal Bank of Ukraine - F~nanc~al Infrastructure Delelopment 
implementation of lnternafronal Accounting Standards Fwzal Repoi t 

Exhibit VII 
Invitation and Program for August 1998, "Wrap-up", 
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E x h ~ b ~ t  VII 

Internatzonal Buszness & Technzcal Consultants, Inc 

U S Agency for Internat~onal Development 
Flnanclal Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lysenko 4, Apartment 13 
Kylv 252034, Ukrame 
Gary P Fechtmeyer, Team Leader 

Telephone 380-44-229-6525 
Fax 380-44 246-4953 

Dear 

You are cordially invited to a Senior Executive Seminar to be held on Friday, August 28, 1998, 
from 10 00 AM to 3 00 PM in the Conference Hall As set forth in 
the attached invitation, this seminar is specifically directed to Senior Management of the Pilot 
Banks and selected Participating Banks who have received on-site technical assistance during 
1998 through the USAID project to implement IAS compliant financial reporting in the 
commercial banking sector The seminar will be conducted by seasoned financial executives 
from the United States who have recently been in Ukraine to assist in finalizing the 
lrnplementation process for Phase One of the technical assistance program 

The presentations will summarize the IAS-based reporting which is currently being prepared in 
your banks usmg software tools deslgned by the USAID technical assistance team The focus of 
the presentations is how you can use these reports to 

Evaluate the performance of your bank 

Manage key elements of risk in your bank operations and the economic environment 

Value your bank based on the standards used by the Western investor 

The topics to be discussed are of interest to Senior Management We therefore urge each of you 
to attend and also ask that you designate up to three members of your Senior Management Team 
to participate 

Please call by with the designated participants so we can 
arrange for entrance into the Conference Hall 

Sincerely Yours, 

Gary P Fechtmeyer 

Team Leader 

a Copies Senash 

Remi 



a International Busmess & Technical Consultants, Inc 

U S Agency for International Development 
Fmanclal Infrastructure Development Project 

Vulitsa Lysenko 4, Apartment 13 Telephone 380-44-229-6525 
Kylv 252034, Ukrame Fax 3 80-44-246-4953 

Invitation to Senlor Management 
USAID Pilot Banks and Selected Participatmg Banks 
Overvlew of IAS Implementation and Internal Fmancial Reportmg 

August 28,1998 

Agenda 

*:* Focus of IAS Techn~cal Asslstance m 1998 

P Implement process of account analysis and verification 
P Implement system of Performance-based financial reporting 
> Initiate development of management reporting 

+3 Speclfic tools utlllzed- Account Analysls, Statement Preparation, and Valuation e k 
Balance Sheet 

> Income Statement 
> Cash Flow 
P Performance and Western standards for bank valuation 

*I. Speclfic tools ut~llzed- Rlsk Management and Declslon Makmg 

P Risk Analysls 
P Management Analysis, operating efficiencies and branch profitability 

*:* Technical Asslstance Focus, 1998 and 1999-Overview and D~scusslon 

Sernmar Leaders Hans Jacobsthal, CPA and Senior Partner (Rt ), Deloite and Touche, 
Richard D Thorsen, CPA and Member, Board of Directors, Citizens Independent Bank, USA 
Semlnar Moderators USAID Pro~ect Team, IAS Implementation in Commercial Banks- 
Gary P Fechtmeyer, CPA, Team Leader 
Dmna Slobod~an, CPA, Bank Accountmg Spec~allst 
Bruce Johnston, DPMA, Information Technology Specialist 

T ~ m e  and Place 

Note Please call or Fax wlth names of attendees by August 26 to 



Irrtentatrorrnl Br~srrress & Teclrrrrcnl Consriltarrls, Zrlc 
U S Agency for Internat~onal Development 

F ~ n a n c ~ a l  Infrastructure Development Project 

Vul~tsa Lyscnbo 4 Apartment 13 Tclcphon~ (380 44) 246 4952 
h\ lv  252034 Ubrame (380 44) 225 7515 

(380 44) 229 6525 
T. Mall ~btc~ua@navereu k ~ e v  ua (380 44) 246 4953 

Semrnar for Senlor Management of 
USAID P ~ l o t  Banks and Selected Partwpating Banks 

O v a  vrew of IAS Implementatron and Internal Flnancral Reporting 

August 28,1998 
Agenda 

10 00 - 10 10 Introduct~on Gary P Fechtmeyer 

10 10 - 11 00 Preparation and Analysis of IAS Financ~al 
Statements Hans Jacobsthal 

11 00 -11  15 Adjustments to banks' data &chard Thorsen 

11 15-11  30 Coffee break 

11 3 0 - 1 2 0 0  Trident Bank - 
New stock Issue and dllution 

12 00 - 12 30 Trident Bank- 
Investor Valuation 

12 30 - 1 00 Reports for risk management 
and decision making 

Hans Jacobsthal 

Gary P Fechtineyer 

kchard Thorsen 

1 0 0 - 1  15 Daily Funds Flow Gary P Fechtmeyer 

1 1 5 - 2 0 0  Lunch break 

2 0 0 - 2  15 Branch Performance 

2 1 5 - 2 3 0  Market cost valuat~on of secur~ties 

2 45 - 3 00 IT De.~clopn~ent rssucs 

Gary P Fechtmeyer 

Dlana Slobodian 

Garb P ~cchtmeycr 

Bruce Johnston 

3 00 - 3  30 Conclus~on and discussron 


